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Creativity and Innovation
The Secret of Our Success
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CREATIVITY AND INNOVATION
THE SECRET OF OUR SUCCESS
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Vision Mission
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Vision
To be a leader of comprehensive cap provider for food & beverage

in South East Asia region which provides caps, capping equipments,
maintenance services and solutions.
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Mission

- Develop the Company to achieve competitive cost and appropriate
return on equity for sustainable growth

- Develop with new innovation to provide food-safe quality assurance
to customer

- Having good corporate governance and strong investor relation

- Quick response to all stakeholders

- Be responsible for social and environment

- Provide safety and happy workplace to employees

- Support the group with professional management as an ASEAN HQ




d1suty

Contents

03
04
20
21
22
26
39
a3
a7
49
70
95
97

103
112

114
118

131
135
144
223

[

pyANINIRUNS ARy
ﬂmzﬂiimmﬁﬁﬁmaxﬂﬁmi

1AS9A51999ANS

A

Foyarluuazdeyadfnd
WlgUgUarA NN IUTENBUTINT
anwuzN15UTENaUTINY
Yadumnudes
Toyavanninduaziiionu
uleurenseduiuwa
1A59851971599NS
msifuguaiansiia
AMNSURATOUSBEIAL
nsuANnely
WasNITUSMSTANISAEY
31YNIITEIINAY
F1B9IUANNSURATOUTDY
ABZATTUNITADTIIIUNNNITHRU

FYNUAUENITUNITIRTIAEADU

AN UELAZNNTIATIEINANITAL LI

dwiul 2559 Wisuiiguivl 2558
TenuvedeulyTTusyym
UMY
MNEWRUTENOUIUNTRY

NAR AU VDIUSEN

03
04
20
21
24
32
a1
a5
a8
59
82
96
100

107
113

116
124

176
180
189
224

Financial Highlights

Board of Directors and Management
Organization Chart

General Information

Company’s Overview

Nature of Business

Risk Factors

Securities and Shareholders
Dividend Payout Policy
Management Structure

Good Corporate Governance
Social Responsibility

Internal Control

and Risk Management

Related Party Transactions
Report on the Board of Directors’
Responsibility for the Companys’
Financial Statements

Audit Committee Report

The Explanation and Analysis of
Operating Results for the Year 2016
Compared to 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

Our Products



JoyanINIsAundiny
Financial Highlights

qUNISRUMNATdUlAEe  sun1sRuanizianis

Financial Statements Separate Financial
in Which Equity Method Statements
is Applied

2559 2558 2557 2559 2558 2557
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

wan1santiuey @uun) Operating Results (million Baht)
snelesu Total Revenue 3,012 3,003 2,984 3,012 3,003 2,984
Mlsmnmssiusurewineenidy  EBITDA 634 572 542 643 572 542

miuaAndensian (EBITDA)
dumdsmlsanBuamuluuigngn - Share of Profit from Investment ©) @) 2 - - -

in Associated Company

flsans Net Profit 372 323 328 381 325 326
F1ULNNTRY (GRITRID)] Financial Status ( million Baht)

Aunsngsu Total Assets 3582 3327 3,111 3593 3,330 3,108
WiAuTI Total Liabilities 603 619 629 603 619 629
duvesiionu Total Shareholders” Equity 2979 2,708 2,482 2990 2,711 2,479
ansdmensiu Gevaz) Financial Ratios (%)

dn31Mlsans Net Profit Margin 1236 1078 1099 1265  10.85  10.94
SNTMANDULNUIINAUNINE (ROA)  Return On Assets 10.78  10.05 1054  11.01  10.12  10.99
IRTINANDULNUADEIUVD Return On Equity 1310 1247 1322 1337 1256  13.85

ginoviu (ROE)

flsorfutuilugiu (LW/AY)  Basic Eaming Per Shear (Baht) 716 622 631 733 627 628
mlsseviuuiuan (Urn/vu) Diluted Earning Per Shear (Baht) ~ 7.05 6.13 6.21 7.22 6.17 6.18
el (wn/s) Book Value Per Share (Baht) ~ 5643 5129  47.00 5663 5135 4695

st ehdu $1in ey 3
Crown Seal Public Company Limited
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Board of Directors

2. NNgwWsSItl arsau
Mr. Pornwut Sarasin

599UTLEIUNTITUANT
Vice - Chairman

1. ngInw YNUY
Mr. Dhep Vongvanich

NT5UNN0aI2 LazUsesIuUNIIUMIT
Independent Director and Chairman

3. modisuu un
Mr. Hirofumi Miki

NIINUNIT
Director

4. umnta Weuwadaud
Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn

N33UNN0ETE WasUILFIUNTIUNIIATIVEDY
Independent Director and Chairman

of the Audit Committee

== 0

3

6. NgNAYT lau:
Mr. Akiyoshi Toha

nN35UN15 kazgInnisive)
Director and President

4 eIzl 2559
Annual Report 2016

5. NNgFT uIN1IN
Mr. Hisashi Nakajima

ATIUNTT
Director

7. 119a1s0 YU
Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul

NTIUNNIDEATL LAZNTTUNINTINADU
Independent Director and the Audit Committee
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8. gty yaqy
Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook

NIIUNTT
Director

=<y
4
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10. gudd ulal
Mr. Junichi Motono

NIIUNIT
Director

12. molgdn Dol
Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani

NIIUNTT
Director

14. UNE@NUMWS LODASTY
Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk

AYUMTUTEN LAZIAYILUNITANENTTUNTUIENY
Company Secretary and
Secretary to the Board of Directors

9. A.0S. Pua fistwya

Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul

NIIUNTDATY
Independent Director

11. MgWI¥MNY  LAIasUnS

Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra
AIUNITDETE LAENITUNIINTIVADU

Independent Director and the Audit Committee

Ec!

13. eledals indn:
Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

NIIUNIT
Director

U3 ehJu e ()
Crown Seal Public Company Limited

5
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Management

2. 1edlst3 MM
Mr. Hiroshi Takahashi
Homien1senlauseiunmnIn

Senior Vice President - Quality Assurance

4. NYSIU  AunlASYT
Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi

He11eN1515au
Vice President - Plant

6. UNASWS Hadmuas:a
Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul

HEMIENITUINNT
Vice President - Administration

6 eIzl 2559
Annual Report 2016

1. nngoaled lau:
Mr. Akiyoshi Toba
HInN15Lviey
President

3. UNANAS gsuiu
Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan
He1IEN U TuagnIsiy
Vice President - Finance and Accounting

g

5. 1oledals indn:
Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

He1nensvaila
Vice President - Technical

7. 9sIY ASAY
Mr. Thongchai Srisook
HInn1sEheyama
Personnel Manager



ATUSNSSUNISUSYN

Board of Directors

umeInw YNUY
Mr. Dhep Vongvanich

218 70 U
Age 70 years
NIIUNTDATL LarUIes1UNTIUNNT

Independent Director and Chairman
dtyv@d - Tne / Nationality - Thai

UGN - NIIUNNTBeATY
(WAaRATTuN 24 f.8. 2551)
- U58)UnIsung
(usiariadudl 15 5.0, 2559)
ot Ay ao et
dnaumstovuuiun* Govay) -liil-
ARAINTTANY / UseiAniseusy
- USeyeyma AANITUANERS d1v13AINssules

PHAINITAUMING Y
Uszaunsabitnulusses 5 U daunds
Yaqtu - NTIUMIBaATE UarUTEENTIUNS
U3EN 63U AR (W)
- Useeu

USH 73w wanadin wewrlaiinea
ABSUBLITY A1R
- MU nwINTIUNSEAIAN1S NG
UM YuBwudlng iin Gnww)
- SCG Country Executive Director
UsznAIgnuI
- NITUNT
s Inenanafnuaziaiiine 1 ()
- NITUNT
UIEN UNenduRdsaLia 91109
- Board of Commissioner
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

Position - Independent Director
(Appointment as of 24 Jun. 2008)
- Chairman
(Appointment as of 15 Dec. 2016)

Ratio of Shareholding® (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- Bachelor of Civil Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Independent Director and Chairman
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Chairman
TPC Vina Plastic and Chemical Corp., Limited.
- Advisor of the President
Siam Cement Public Company Limited. (SCG)
- SCG Country Executive Director Vietnam.
- Member of Board of Directors
Thai Plastic and Chemicals Public Company
Limited.
- Director
Bangkok Industrial Gas Co., Ltd. (BIG)
- Board of Commissioner
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

ugwSIl asau
Mr. Pornwut Sarasin

918 57 U
Age 57 years
999UTEFUNTIUNNT

Vice - Chairman
&ryv@d - ne / Nationality - Thai

CRIRGIN - NPT
(usiasiadun 24 H.8. 2558)
- 589UEFIUNTINNTT
e 2

(uslanadunt 15 6., 2559)
- NITUMIERE MBI AUUTEN

o

dndunistievuluuien® (Geeay) 0.0415
AMYAINIANY / UsyiRniseusy
- Usgayin envudvinagsia annivendendunaslon
UseinAanigaisni / ‘
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 3uil 45
Usgaumsaivitnulusyes 5 U dounds
Yl - 799UsEHUNTIUNT VT FNTU 911A (@)
- Usgsnunssums usew Inethiing $ain
- NIIUNNT KAZUTLEIUAMZNITUNIIATIVEOU
U3EM a5lne 15 wewd wida din ()
- N551N15 U9 TewllUsend Wumes $hiin @)
- n5suns Ut Lefl (Ineuaus) $1m (W)
- N335 VST huld (Wsemelne) i
- NS5UNNT U3 gawn eelalida (Usewrlne) $1in
- NIIUNT U3EM By wawmes (Uszneilne) d1iin
- N35UMS USTW Inelole wUdila usiaes 31in
- n3suns USTm Ineuseaaalau S1in
- N55UN15 U9 Tne 18u-8 S1im
- N3IUMS USEh eSiwes Byy wad i
- NITUNNT UTEW isines By Bada 911n
2542-2556 - 599Us¥51UNTINANT VST Inethfing $1in
Position - Director
(Appointment as of 24 Jun. 2015)
- Vice-Chairman
(Appointment as of 15 Dec. 2016)
- Authorized Director

Ratio of Shareholding® (%) 0.0415
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- MBA. Pepperdine University, USA /
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP 45)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Vice-Chairman
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Chairman ThaiNamthip Company Limited.
- Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Charoong Thai Wire & Cable Public Company Limited.
- Director Home Product Center Public Company
Limited.
- Director AP (Thailand) Public Company Limited.
- Director Denso (Thailand) Company Limited.
- Director Honda Automobile (Thailand)
Company Limited.
- Director Isuzu Motors (Thailand) Company Limited.
- Director Thai Asia Pacific Brewery Company Limited.
- Director Thai Bridgestone Company Limited.
- Director Thai-MC Companys Limited.
- Director Tii Petch Isuzu Sale Company Limited.
- Director Tri Petch Isuzu Leasing Company Limited.

1999-2013 - Vice-Chairmann ThaiNamthip Company Limited.

U3 rhiu $1im () 7
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



wodisul on
Mr. Hirofumi Miki

918 721
Age 72 years

uawia Wonwadaud
Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn

914 80 U
Age 80 years

NITUNT NI3UN159aTE LazUTEsIUNIIUNITATIAEDU

Director Independent Director and Chairmnan of the Audit Committee
o a a . . o a . . .

dyue - )i / Nationality - Japanese dtyv@d - Ine / Nationality - Thai

FUN - NI AU - NSIUNNTDETE

(uslsieTufi 5 .o, 2529)
- NTIUNTHAS NI IUENUUTEN
dndunstievuuion® (Seeay) -Lill-
AMYAINSANYY / UseiRniseusy

- USqueyes AeeNansuaziFnIINeNEns

UINE1RE WASEDA UsemegUu
Uszaunisabitnulussey 5 U daunds

Uagltu - NIIUNS
USEN WU 9107 (Wv)
_ UsysuRndudna
U39 Tale oy n3u Teaned St
- Usesunssunig
UTEN W13V 91197 (W)
- Us851UNTINNNT
UISEN UNNDNLAL LLNUHLLWﬂLﬁ]aé\i 19

2558-2559

2550-2559

2550-2556 - ATTUAT WarUTEsIUNTINNITUSING
uSem Tale oy lnan $aim
Position - Director

(Appointment as of 5 Nov. 1986)
- Authorized Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- Bachelor of Science and Engineering,

Waseda University, Japan

Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Director
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Honorary Chairman

Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company Limited.

2015-2016 - Chairman
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2007-2016 - Chairman

Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.

2007-2013 - Director and President

Toyo Seikan Kaisha Company Limited.

8 s1euUsEInt 2559
Annual Report 2016

(WASHITUN 12 f.p. 2542)
= UitﬁDUﬂS?ﬁJﬂ’]iﬁ]S’mﬁaU
(LA9AIUN 8 5.0, 2554)
dndrumstovuluuien* Sevas)  -ludl-
AMAINSANYY / UsediRniseusy
- Usgayns n1sUy® vnaansaluvninende /
- faoutiny@Suayam (CPA. NO.2336)
- Certified Internal Audit AnFiuFng
370 Institute of Internal Auditors
(CIA. NO.30861)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
Uszaunisalviauluszes 5 U dounds
UJagiu - NITUNITDATL KazUILTIUNTIUNTATIAEBY
YT W13U 9110 ()
- Us¥au
U3 00RR LOUA UNLLALIV ADLEALALN 9119
- NITUNIDETE LAZNITUNMINTIVEDU
UsTm Usgiudelved o 91im (o)
Position - Independent Director
(Appointment as of 12 Oct. 1999)
- Chairman of the Audit Committee
(Appointment as of 8 Dec. 2011)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Bachelor of Accountancy,
Chulalongkorn University /
- Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
(CPA. NO.2336)
- Honorary Certified Internal Auditor
from The Institute of Internal Auditors
(CIA. NO.30861)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Independent Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- President
Audit and Management Consultant
Company Limited.
- Independent Director and Audit Committee
Thaivivat Insurance Public Company Limited.



U8y uINMIN
Mr. Hisashi Nakajima

218 60 U
Age 60 years

NITUNIT

Director |

dyv1@ - Uu / Nationality - Japanese
AL - NITUNT

(wissiaTudl 4 we. 2558)
dndunistievuuien® (Seeay) -ludl-
AMAiNIIANY / UsziRnseusy
- Useygy1eis Amnssumans
13N sNAIeINa uninendeseninle

Uszimnaguu
G0 N oY o
Usvaumsahiaulusyey 5 U dounas
Uaqiu - IS

UIEN /13U D1 (W)
n.g. 2558-UaqUu - President and Representative Board Director
Ui JUUeu lradiwesa 911n
- Board Director and Executive Operating
Officer, Head of Technical Development
Headquarters
Uiwn fuvou lraawesd 1in

2556-d.A. 2558

2553- 2556 - Operating Officer LazdAN1313497U Ishioka
Usun fuleu lragwasd 31nn
Position - Director

(Appointment as of 4 Nov. 2015)

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with IOD

- Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering,
Hokkaido University, Japan

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

Sep.2015-Present - President and Representative Board Director
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

- Board Director and Executive Operating
Officer, Head of Technical Development
Headquarters
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

- Operating Officer and Plant Manager,
(shioka
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2013-Aug. 2015

2010-2013

unganled lau:
Mr. Akiyoshi Tobha

21y 53 U
Age 53 years
nN331N15 Wawkdnnising

Director and President
deyd - U / Nationality - Japanese

AU -NIIUNT
(WS TUR 5 n.A. 2548)
- NITUNTHAS WA UUTEN
dadrumsievuuivn (Geway) 0.0189
AMAINSANYY / UseiRniseusy
- USyy s wngleenans
winendeyles Ussineagly /
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
Usgaunsalvhaulussey 5 U dounas
Yagtiu - N33UN15 UazEInN3lviey
UIEN AU 110 (W)
- President Director
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures
- Operating Officer 13t fiudau lraaives d1rin
- NFTIMS UTEN Uinenuau Lauvineese 31rin
- N33UNTT UTI LWUSLNA 9100
- General Manager International Operations
VTN LU AsUABSA 3119
- 793UszeU USEW Tale leiu wiedlaea
wous wonduilawstu weia Wumes
(10138) 911A
- gnegdnnslngeilasiuuims
VTN ATU 9110 (W)

2553-2556

2549-2555

Position - Director
(Appointment as of 5 Jul. 2005)
- Authorized Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0189
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- Bachelor of Commerce, Chuo University,
Japan /
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - Director and President
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- President Director
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

- Operating Officer
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

- Director Bangkok Can Manufacturing
Company Limited.

- Director Petpak Company Limited.

- General Manager International Operations
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

- Vice President Toyo Seikan Technical
and Administration Service Center (Asia)
Company Limited.

- Senior Vice President-Administration
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2010-2013

2006-2012

U3 rhiu $1im () 9
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



918 68 U
Age 68 Years

uneasa NyYwuna
Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul

NITUNNTDATE LAZNITUNITATINADU
Independent Director and the Audit Committee
deyd - e / Nationality - Thai

91y 48 U
Age 48 years

ngFGIaE yaqy
Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook
N3NNI

Director
&ed - lne / Nationality - Thai

ALY - NITUPITDATY
(wAsAaYuN 29 .9, 2552)
- NITUNIIATIVEADY
(WASATTUN 29 8.8, 2552)
dndunstiovuuion® (Seeay) -Lidl-
AMAINSANYY / UseiRniseusy
- WU, (USMN35371Q), Uvavendesssuaans
- M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of
Leeds, UK. / ;
- Director Certification Program (DCP) $uil 83
Uszaumsaivihauluszey 5 U dounds
Yagiu - NITUNNTDEATY UATNITUANTATIVEBY
U3EN /13U 91ie (W)
- U9e51UNTIUAT
UST Lea 1Bu B Weswes $in (uvnvw)
- NITUNTBATT UAYNTIUNIINTIVAEY
U3EN Loide wad n3U leadsd 91in nww)
- NFIUNTBATY UALNITUNIINTIAAOU
UST ada nSenmesH 31An (Wrww)
- NIIUNTBATL UASNTIUNIINTINARY
ustn Tne avlns Wuwesd s (wnww)
- NFIUNT UTEM dnnIng Ledle weia 31rin
- n55uMs USTn Tne weslan leafsd drvim
- N3IUMT VST Loand leuleide 91in
- NIIUANT UM Indmasu TWsend d1iin

Position - Independent Director
(Appointment as of 29 Jun. 2009)
- Audit Committee
(Appointment as of 29 Jun. 2009)

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with [OD
- M.A. (Business Administration),
Thammasat University
- M.Sc. (Textile Technology),
University of Leeds, UK. /
- Director Certification Program (DCP 83)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - Independent Director and the Audit Committee

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Chairman
SNC Former Public Company Limited.

- Independent Director and the Audit Committee

Asia Plus Group Holdings Public Company Limited.
- Independent Director and the Audit Committee
Lalin Property Public Company Limited.

- Independent Director and the Audit Committee

Thai Agro Energy Public Company Limited.

- Director Asia Plus Securities Company Limited.
- Director Thai Airline Holdings Company Limited.
- Director SPC Home Ideas Company Limited.
- Director Witcorp Products Company Limited.

10 s1euUsEInt 2559
Annual Report 2016

AL -NIIUNNT
(WASFITUN 20 NN, 2553)
dnahumstovuluuisv* (Sewaz) 0.0120
- U3gyeyalm UsMn3§3A Babson College
Ussinmanigelisni
- USyeyeis AnssuAans
PaNIalvINg 1y /
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
U 78/2549 (English Program)
Uszaunsalviuluszes 5 U dounas
Yot - NIFUNT UTEN 63U 9iin (mvw)
- NN UIEM L 91 (W)
- N35UN1S U3 vl (euaus) $1in
- NTINNIT V3 iefiuae Loaned 9in
- NTIUNNT UTEM LefSuan luediss 91rin
- NIIUNT VIY LeBugn wisutls in
- NSUNNT USWM Great Brands Limited.
- NIFUNT U LATDPNLIAED3 (2008) 911
- N33UNNT VS Tnen3en 9119
2554-1.8. 2558 - NIIUMTERANT U3 1S 911in (o)
Position - Director
(Appointment as of 20 Feb. 2010)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0120
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- MBA of Babson College, USA
- Bachelor of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University /
- Director Certification Program (DCP 78/2006
/English Program)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Director Sermsuk Public Company Limited.
- Director Petform (Thailand) Company Limited.
- Director Sermsuk Holding Company Limited.
- Director Sermsuk Beverage Company Limited.
- Director Sermsuk Training Company Limited.
- Director Great Brands Limited.
- Director Wrangyer Beverage (2008)
Company Limited.
- Director ThaiDrinks Company Limited.

2011-Sep. 2015 - President Sermsuk Public Company Limited.



A.0s.dua fistiwya
Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul

918 62 U
Age 62 years
ASINNTOATY

Independent Director
&ey1d - lne / Nationality - Thai

CRIGTAIN - NITUNTOATE
(WeaRaTUR 26 1.8, 2553)
dndunstievuluuivn* (Gewar) -lud-

AMAINTSANYY / UseiRniseusy

- USeylv wazUSygyien AFnIsuAIEns
anvmalulagnisvidn anIne1§eslsdan
Useimegu /

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Uil 97/2555

Uszaunisaiviaulusses 5 U dounds

YJaqdu - NITUNNTBATE
UIEW 63U 109 ()

- g1915dUsEInAITImaluladnisenmns
ANEINGIAENS - PAINTINNTIVE Y

- NSINNNTOATE .

UTEN INSTLAUN LULNBS IR (L)

- JunulvevenguenamnNIINeIMS
anararnssuusUsznelneglunisussu
Codex Committee on Food Hygiene
224lATINITUINTZILD M TTENINUTENA
FadnvinlngesAnisanuseanv@ FAO/WHO

2540-2554

Position - Independent Director
(Appointment as of 26 Apr. 2010)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Doctor and Master of Engineering
(Fermentation Technology),
Hiroshima University, Japan/
- Director Accreditation Program
(DAP 97/2012)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - Independent Director Crown Seal Public
Company Limited.

- Lecturer at the Department of Food
Technology
Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University.

- Independent Director President Bakery
Public Company Limited.

- Representative of the Food Industry Group
The Federation of Thai Industries in Codex
Committee on Food Hygiene of Codex
Alimentarius Commission, Organized by
Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)
and World Health Organization (WHO) of UN.

1997-2011

neudd wlalu
Mr. Junichi Motono

91y 64 U
Age 64 years

N3NNI
Director
dyvd - YUy / Nationality - Japanese

A

ALIALA -NITUNNT
(WA e TUR 22 AW, 2559)
dndunistievuuien® (Geeay) -ludl-
AAINSANYY / UsyiAnsousy
- U319 @1v1U3vesia amninendeid

UszmegUu
Usgaumsalvihaulusees 5 U dounds
Uagtu - N3IUNNT

VI HAU 1A (Wrvw)

- Senior Executive Operating Officer and
Board Director
U3um duveu lraaesa d1in

- Board Director and Senior Executive
Operating Officer
U3 duleu laadwesa 91in

- Board Director and Executive Operating
Officer, Head of Administration Department
UStm fuleu lraaesa S1in

2556-2558

2553-2556

Position - Director
(Appointment as of 22 Feb. 2016)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with [OD
- Bachelor of Business Administration,
Meiji University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Senior Executive Operating Officer and Board
Director
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2013-2015 - Board Director and Senior Executive
Operating Officer
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2010-2013 - Board Director and Executive Operating

Officer, Head of Administration Department
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited



uMgWI¥MNY  tmasuns
Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra

918 57 U
Age 57 years
NITUNTDATY LATNITUNITAIIVEDU

Independent Director and the Audit Committee
deyf - lne / Nationality - Thai

CRIGIN - NITUPITOETY
(WASATTUN 8 5.A. 2554)
- NSIUPITATIVEBU
(WASATTUN 8 5.A. 2554)
dndumstevuuien* (Sesay) -lul-
ABIAINTSANYY / UseiAnsousuy
- M.A. (Economics), Northwestem University,
USA./
- Financial Statements for Directors
(FSD 2/2008)
- Role of the Chairman Program
(RCP 21/2009)
Usvaunisaiviheulussey 5 Y dounds
Yaqlu - NSFUATOATLUALNTTUAIIATIFADU
U3EN 613U 200 (WIUL)
- Udnnsensae nsensnsyieaiieanasiun
- NSIUANS
AssabinvudsnavuLelsemalneg
- ASSUNT
15 TneeSuseiune $1in
- NSIUANS
USm nstulne 19 @nv)
- NIIUNT
su1IASNISINg 1R ()

2554-2558 - 509UaANIENTINITARY
ATENTNNITAN
Position - Independent Director

(Appointment as of 8 Dec. 2011)
- Audit Committee
(Appointment as of 8 Dec. 2011)
Ratio of Shareholding® (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- M.A.(Economics), Northwestern
University, USA. /
- Financial Statements for Directors
(FSD 2/2008)

- Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 21/2009)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - Independent Director and the Audit
Committee Crown Seal Public Company
Limited.

- Permanent Secretary Ministry of Tourism
and Sports.

- Director Mass Rapid Transit Authority of
Thailand.

- Director ThaiSri Insurance Company Limited.

- Director Thai Airways International
Public Company Limited.

- Director TMB Bank Public Company Limited.

- Deputy Permanent Secretary
Ministry of Finance.

2011-2015
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weledn Do 91y 58 U
Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani Age 58 Years
AFIUNNT
Director

a

doy@ - gUu / Nationality - Japanese

A

AUNU - NITMT
(UAIRTIUN 28 131.8. 2559)
dndunstieuluuien* (Gewar) -Lis-
AMAINSANYY / UseiRniseusy
- U3y a3 anvuIvnsgsne amninenaend
UszmegUu
Uszaunisaivineulussey 5 U dounda
Uyl - NTIUAT
UsE 63U 9100 (W)
- iinnslvey .
U UenenueL WnyLuviAeSs 1R
- finmlviey
w3 Tale loiu (WUsswrlve) $1in
- NSNS
US¥m lnauea dla-uau afen (Usvndlne) 311n
- Operating Officer
u3em ey Loy Shiim
2556 - Operating Officer .
Uit loile lariu n§U Teadied d1rin

2554-2556 - General Manager of Procurement Department
Us Tale loriu ndU Teadsd 911in
Position - Director

(Appointment as of 28 Apr. 2016)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Bachelor of Business Administration,
Meiji University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Director
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- President
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company
Limited.
- President
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Company
Limited.
- Director
Global Eco-can Stock (Thailand)
Company Limited.
- Operating Officer
Toyo Seikan Company Limited.
2013 - Operating Officer
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company
Limited.
- General Manager of Procurement
Department
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company
Limited.

2011-2013



uoledals indn:
Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

91y 46 U
Age 46 years

NIIUNIT
Director

a

#oy@ - Uu / Nationality - Japanese

v 9

AU - ASTUANS
(WAIRSIUT 28 n.A. 2557)

- NITUMIHASUIBMNUHNRUUTEN
dndunstievuuion® (Seuay) -lidl-
AMAiNSANY / UsgiRnnseusy
- USyy i3 Aenssuenans anviaingsy
LATBINA WNINYGY Nihon Useinagu
Uszaunmsalviaulusses 5 U dounad
Taqdu - NS
U3t 63U 91in (vnww)
- {eensivAila
U3t 63U 911in (Wvww)
- Manager, Engineering Management

q

Department, Production Division
Usem fuleu laaawasa 311

Position - Director
(Appointment as of 28 Jul. 2014)
- Authorized Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D

- Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering,
Faculty of Engineering Division,
Nihon University, Japan

Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Director
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Vice President-Technical
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Manager, Engineering Management
Department, Production Division
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

1. NSSUMSUSEMIAY 13 viulaifanuduius

N0
NNATOUATITZNINAUY
2. “fusmrfuresgausa wasynsigilivseg
AAnmzee
Remark 1. All above 13 Directors have not family
relations.

2. *Ratio of shareholding includes shares
of spouse and minor children.

UNRADUNWS LOTASTY
Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk

91y 52 U
Age 52 years

AYUNITUTEN UaLLavIUNITAMLNTIUNITUTEN
Company Secretary and Secretary to the Board of
Directors

&ey1d - lne / Nationality - Thai

QRGN - l@YUNITUIEN
(uriadaTud 24 2.0, 2551)
- l@VILNITAMLNTTUNMTUTEN
(usiasoTuil 26 a.n. 2551)
dneunisiieuuien* (Segay) 0.0148
AMAINIIANY / UsziRnseusy
- USnyey o3 AnuesgAnans
UNTINISUTTINANERNT /
- Company Secretary Program (CSP)
- Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
- Board Reporting Program (BRP)
- Company Reporting Program (CRP)
- Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide

(ACPG)
Usgaunmsalvhaulussey 5 U dounds
Uagdu - g sdninauIynsuIem
SN /13U iR (@)
- @VIYNTUTEN

USEN 613U 1A (WIvL)
- AYIYNTAMNTIUNITUTENY
U3EM /13U 19 (Wrvw)

Position - Company Secretary
(Appointment as of 24 Jun. 2008)
- Secretary to the Board of Directors
(Appointment as of 26 Aug. 2008)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0148
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Bachelor of Political Science,
Thammasat University /
- Company Secretary Program (CSP)
- Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
- Board Reporting Program (BRP)
- Company Reporting Program (CRP)
- Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide

(ACPG)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Company Secretary Office Manager

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Company Secretary

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Secretary to the Board of Directors

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

s ehdu $1in Gy 13
Crown Seal Public Company Limited
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Management

wgaaled lou: 918 53 U
Mr. Akiyoshi Toha Age 53 years
H3nnstngy

President

dey¥d - QJdu / Nationality - Japanese

unodlssda mmad
Mr. Hiroshi Takahashi

91y 57 U
Age 57 years
Hennenisenjlalseiunmnn

Senior Vice President - Quality Assurance
doyd - U / Nationality - Japanese

QIR - §annslng
(uredeTudl 1 .m. 2556)
dndunstievuuivn* (Seuag) 0.0189
ARAINTTANY / UseiAniseusy
- Usyey1eis Wglvemans
wninendegles Ussinegu /
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
Usgaunsahianulusses 5 U dounas
Yagiu - 3nnnstvg) U3Em ehdu 91dn Wnww)
- President Director
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures
- Operating Officer U3t fitueu laaaives d1rin
- AFTINT U3 Uenenuen wiuguinee’e 91in
- NTINNIT UTHN s 9119
- General Manager International Operations
USE LKy AsadaesA 991n
- soeUssnu U lale letu wadlaea
wouA uoaduawsiu wesid Wumes
(10\F8) 4110
- ghegdnnslrgjerlanmuims
USEN WAV 1A (W)

2553-2556

2549-2555

Position - President
(Appointment as of 1 Jan. 2013)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0189
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
- Bachelor of Commerce, Chuo University,
Japan /
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present - President
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- President Director
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

- Operating Officer
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

- Director Bangkok Can Manufacturing
Company Limited.

- Director Petpak Company Limited.

- General Manager International Operations
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

- Vice President Toyo Seikan Technical
and Administration Service Center (Asia)
Company Limited.

- Senior Vice President-Administration
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2010-2013

2006-2012

14  swruusesd 2559
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ALY - gomnen1senlausziunmunin

(usteieudl 9 w.a. 2559)
dndunstievuuien Gewaz) -Liil-
AMAINIANYY / UsgdRniseusu
- Usyay i Arnssueans anviadussyng
UTINENEY Iwate UszinagUu
Usgaumsalvianulussey 5 U dounas
Yagliu - gomnen1senlausziunmunin
UTEW B3V 9109 ()
- Operating Officer, Quality Assurance
uien dUveu lradwesa 911n
2558 - Operating Office, Production Engineering
Department
viem Auveu lradiwesa $1in
2557 - General Manager of Production Engineering
Department
uTen dUleu lradwesa 911n
2556 - General Manager of Production Control
Department
uien dUveu lradwesa 311n

2552-2555 - General Manager of Procurement Department
st fuUau laaawesd 3110
Position - Senior Vice President - Quality Assurance

(Appointment as of 9 May. 2016)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Applied Chemistry, Graduate school of
Engineering, Iwate University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Senior Vice President, Quality Assurance
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Operating Officer, Quality Assurance
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2015 - Operating Officer, Production Engineering
Department
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2014 - General Manager of Production Engineering
Department
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2013 - General Manager of Production Control
Department
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
- General Manager of Procurement Department
Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2009-2012



UNANAS dsuiu
Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan

918 60 U
Age 60 years
He1en15UnT wagn1siuy
Vice President - Finance and Accounting
deyd - lne / Nationality - Thai

IR - geuensUyd warnstu
(wiedaTudl 1 n.e. 2547)
dndunstiovuuien® (Seeay) -lidl-
AandinsAne / UsgiRniseusy
- Mini MBA 531818855 5uAanS
- YS9 USvs§3nia uvninendedadutey
CIA. No. 30833 /
- Company Secretary Program (CSP)
- Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
- Director Accreditation Program

(DAP 132/2016)
Uszaumsaliaulusyey 5 U dounas

2547-Jaqliu - 81Uy duarn1siiu
UIEN AU 109 (Un1TL)
- NITUNIIATIVEDU
S WSidlesidunesingd S1in @mww)

2558-Uaqdu

Position - Vice President - Finance and Accounting
(Appointment as of 1 Sep. 2004)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with I[OD
- Mini MBA Thammasat University
- Bachelor of Business Administration,
Assumption University, CIA. No. 30833 /
- Company Secretary Program (CSP)
- Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
- Director Accreditation Program

(DAP 132/2016)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

2004-Present - Vice President - Finance and Accounting
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Audit Committee

Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited.

2015-Present

ngsIi AruniAsyd
Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi

918 52 U
Age 52 years
He18n151l59u

Vice President - Plant
&ey1@ - lve / Nationality - Thai

AU - {81IEN9lINY
(uafoeud 1 0. 2555)

dndunsievuuien* (Sesay) 0.0019
AMAINSANYY / Useiniseusy

- USeyglm msdmnisesAns

WveapgInatding

Uszaumsalvitnulusses 5 U doundd
Uagtu - {81WILNTlIeY

a o =) o [
UIUN 11U 1A (UNRITU)

2548-2555 - f3an1sEemEn 1
UsEN {13V 2100 (W)
Position - Vice President - Plant

(Appointment as of 1 Jun. 2012)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0019
- Master of Business Administration
(Major Organization Management),
Dhurakij Pundit University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Vice President - Plant
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
2005-2012 - Production 1 Manager

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

Uit ehdu $1dn ) 16
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



unolesals indn:
Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

918 46 U
Age 46 years
Henngnsivaila

Vice Presiddent - Technical
deyd - Uy / Nationality - Japanese

AU - geenanalia
(WASATTUN 1 L1318, 2556)
o B N o~
dndrumstovuuiun Gevay) -liil-
AAINSANYY / UseIAnsousy
- YS9 AMINTINANERS @1UIAINTIY
< a ) . A
LATBINA UNINE18Y Nihon Usenagyu
Uszaunisabirnulussey 5 U daunds
Tagtu - gewenanalia
USE 63U 119 (W)
- Manager, Engineering Management
Department, Production Division
US uleu lraawesd 31in

Position - Vice President-Technical
(Appointment as of 1 Apr. 2013)

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering,
Faculty of Engineering Division,
Nihon University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Vice President - Technical
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Manager, Engineering Management
Department, Production Division
Nippon Closures Company Limited

16 s1euUsEInt 2559
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91y 54 U
Age 54 years

UNASWS Hadlwmuas:ga
Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul

HO1IENITUIINS
Vice President — Administration
deyd - lve / Nationality - Thai

AUAU - §8138NTUIIT
(WASRTIUN 17 @.p. 2558)
v 4 v ae i~
dndrumsiovuuivn (Gevay) -luil-
AAINTSANY / UseiAnseusy
- Syl pgdranssuAIans
VIR AN INDS

AN NG 14T
Usgaunsahiianuluszes 5 U dounds
Yagliu - §81LNTUIIS

U3 63U 910 (nww)
2557-2558 - {8185

V3TN /13U 0@ (U1vu)

2550-2556 - fdan1sEhegsiasialszna
UsEN 613U 9100 (WIT)
Position - Vice President - Administration

(Appointment as of 17 Aug. 2015)
Ratio of Shareholding® (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
- Master of Computer Science, Faculty of
Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present - Vice President - Administration
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2014-2015 - Vice President - Sales
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
2007-2013 - International Business Manager

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.



ungsIde ASAY 918 58 U
Mr. Thongchai Srisook Age 58 years

HInnsEheyana
Personnel Manager
&yv@d - Ine / Nationality - Thai

IR - fAamstheyaaa
(useedudl 1.8, 2537)
dndunstieuuien® (Seeay) 0.0033
AANSAnw / UsziRnseusy
- Usyayn3 Sgenans

PRI INGS
Usvaumsabiaulusyey 5 U dounas
2537-Jaqliu - fian1sEheyaaa

UsEN {13V 200 (WIUW)

Position - Personnel Manager
(Appointment as of 1 Jun. 1994)
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0033
Education / Director Training Courses with [OD
- Bachelor of Political Science,
Chulalongkorn University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
1994-Present - Personnel Manager
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- JuImsnia 7 viuliifiannuduiug

EWe) 1
NNATOUATITININNY
2. fusiuiuvesgansa uazymsiddlivssg
dAnmzae
Remark 1. All above 7 executives have not family
relations.

2. *Ratio of shareholding includes shares
of spouse and minor children.

Uit ehdu $1dn o) 17
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



sr1onumisidagundainisiiorannsweuseny
YOINSSUNISUSENUAZCUSHIS tu Jun 31 Sula1Ay 2559

NI dadau
sedenssunsuazEUEnS U o 31 5.A. 58 WU & 31 5.A. 59 Wiay (ana) nsdiaviu
’ Y ) . Tuuden
AT NSO XTI WA WNTRN K SaN MR et T g
1. WEwmn WY - - - - - - : - . §
2. ‘Ll’]EJ‘W‘J’g@ a19du 21,926 - 21,926 21,926 - 21,926 - - - 0.0415
3. wgdlsndl 1A - - - - - . : . . §
4. usitla Jounedanud - - - - - - . . . §
5. WwEuY UINTUN - - - - . - . B _ B
6. wwedled  lauy 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 - - - 0.0189
7. weasn FIYINA - - - - - - - - ; .
8. wghiod YagY 6,320 - 6320 6,320 - 6,320 - - - 0.0120
9. A.ATFINA Asdfiya - - - - - - - : - :
10. w1wquBl Talaly - - - - - - - - : -
11 WenadnIy  wnguns - - - - - - - . . §
12. weledn feend - - - - - - - . . i
13, weleTdls Ia3iny - - - - - - : i . §
14, wedlesd NAENT - - - - - - - : . §
15. u9AnA3 qoUgY - - - - - - - - - -
16. 1394 AOULATYY 1,000 - 1,000 1,000 - 1,000 - - - 0.0019
17. WNAINT naelmunsENa - - - - - - : - . §
18. W85y ﬂ%‘qﬁu 1,720 - 1,720 1,720 - 1,720 - - - 0.0033
19. UNENIUNINT Lmﬁﬂ%'qm 4,884 - 4,884 7,826 - 7,826 2,942 - 2,942  0.0148
374 45,850 - 45,850 48,792 - 48,792 2,942 - 2,942 0.0924

mnewg © *mstevuresdansatarynsidiliussaiinne swdvjuniyaeadulatiendnnindliununssunis fuims
ViToRieUIAIUAL

18  swwudsednd 2559
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Report on changes in securities holding by company directors and
management members as of December 31, 2016

No. of shares Shareholding
Narne As of December 31, 2015  As of December 31, 2016 Increase (Decrease)  ratio in year
2016
Direct Indirect* Total Direct Indirect* Total Direct Indirect * Total

1. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich - - - - - = - - - -

2. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin 21,926 - 21,926 21,926 - 21,926 - - - 0.0415
3. Mr. Hirofumi  Miki - - - - - = - . - -
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn - - - - - - - - - .
5. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima - - - - - = - . - -

6. Mr. Akiyoshi  Toba 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 - - - 0.0189
7. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul - - - - = - - . - _

8. Mr. Dhitivute  Bulsook 6,320 - 6,320 6,320 - 6,320 - - - 0.0120
9. Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul - - - - = = - . - -
10. Mr. Junichi Motono - - - - - = - - - -
11. Mr. Pongpanu  Svetarundra - - - - - = - - - -
12. Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani - - - - = = - - - -
13. Mr. Yoshihiro  Kaitsuka - - - - - = - . - .
14. Mr. Hiroshi Takahashi - - - - - = - - - -
15. Mrs. Suphasri  Sutanadhan - - - - = - . , - _

16. Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi 1,000 - 1,000 1,000 = 1,000 - - - 0.0019
17. Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul =~ - - - - - = - - - -

18. Mr. Thongchai  Srisook 1,720 - 1,720 = 1,720 - 1,720 - - - 0.0033

19. Ms. Napaporn  Temeesrisuk 4,884 - 4,884 7,826 - 7,826 2,942 - 2,942 0.0148

Total 45,850 - 45,850 48,792 - 48,792 2,942 - 2,942  0.0924

Note : * Shareholding by spouse and minor children including any person holding share in the replacement of director,
management or controlling person.

Ui edu S0 @) 19
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



ATUENSSUNISUSEN
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

gyamsiney
91AlYd Tnus
PRESIDENT
Akiyoshi Tobha

ATUENSSUNISCISIIADU
Audit Committee

1AS3dS$199IANS

Organization Chart

gaulensisanu
Sl CunLAsyy
V.P. PLANT

Ruj Tantsetthi

giomschenumuul
awya ns:01unal
PRINTING MGR.
Saichol Kradasthong

giomscheuanchian:

s Boaudus

METAL CAP PRODUCTION MGR.
Wiharn Ruangpetch

{9331s (hdn:
V.P. TECHNICAL
Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

gaungnsinAtn

giomscheuanchwaratin

Uy Toisely¥ang

PLASTIC CAP PRODUCTION MGR.
Buncha Triyapunjavit

giomscheativayumsuac
33 audumuur
PRODUCTION SUPPORT MGR.
Vasu Oupathumpanont

gyamschemnssulnsanis
WUAND 1AISWILAF
PROJECT ENGINEERING MGR.

Punsak Kaorapapong

giamschearnssunl

ylass WUWAMa

GENERAL ENGINEERING MGR.
Chalothorn Pimpisal

gawgmsanla
Js=nuAtuniw

Fs:m MMy

S.V.P. QUALITY ASSURANCE
Hiroshi Takahashi

gdedduems
UssnuAtuniw

Usu dansuvntu

D.V.P. QUALITY ASSURANCE
Preecha Suthivechakun

giomscheIiouazweun

Algda: lu

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT MGR.
Kiyohisa Kaito

giomischeusmisinaliata:ANUIGIWakgnA
WUTYAISSTU  ITYTUSIA

TECHNICAL SERVICE & CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION MGR.

Benchawan Channarong

giomischedszauaunwchian:

Js:T azszoz

QUALITY ASSURANCE METAL CAP MGR.
Hiroshi Harada

FINFAS dsuiiu

gawnemsiyduaznsau

V.P. FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING
Suphasri Sutanadhan

giomschedszaunumuwchwanatin
asugn [@aAduncma

QUALITY ASSURANCE PLASTIC CAP MGR.
Sarinya Lertbunditkul

gauignsye

V.P. SALES

giomsthe0nyguaznsau

yaw d1saAfna

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING MGR.
Chutima Damrongsak

giomschessiathadszina
WUTYIISSTU YIYTUSIA
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MGR.
Benchawan Channarong

gaugMISUSHIS

ASWS Haadtuus:na
V.P. ADMINISTRATION
Siriporn Lawattanatrakul

giomschengludszina
U as3sews
DOMESTIC SALES MGR.
Nittaya Sirijariyaporn

giomschenauauuieug
anvn ansna

CORPORATE PLANNING MGR.
Apichat Sathirakul

giomscheinda
unad afsna
PURCHASING MGR.
Malinee Sathirakul

giomscheansauine

91AN ANUHY

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MGR.
Arkom Sanguanmoo

giomscheunna
510y ASAY
PERSONNEL MGR.
Thongchai Srisook

ginmsadtiniagiunsusen

unuws LASAY

COMPANY SECRETARY OFFICE MGR.
Napaporn Temeesrisuk

(o)
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INTERNAL AUDIT OFFICE MGR.
Wannapa Somprasit
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General Information

Fousén
Uszinnssia

lagn:1iguusen
nuian:wgu
nuyiszudn
yadtariu
Toguenaantdu

Adadtinanuuasisinu
nswd
{nsans

Butad
lagunisusen

ngnziigurannswe

AUSnungHg

UIIN /13U 9w (W) (CSC)
wankazIMeldmSUUANBUZUTEANUIN
9791 thiu iheglidlemndeniuuaeu shuding
Ananain uag Ameulndn

vzifouavil 0107537000416 (Funanil uia. 288)
528,000,000 v

528,000,000 um

10 UM

Yuanslay 52,000,012 v

YUUIUENS 799,988 iU

@il 5 weesdn-uasuwien 46 AuaUszusilng
gunefyys Jwmiaunusil 12130
0-2533-0450-9

0-2974-1118

www.crownseal.co.th

WNANUAMT LaTATEY

03 : 0-2533-0450-9 fiv 638

8lwa : napaporn@crownseal.co.th
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93 QUUSTANALLA  LUNAULAT LUAAULAS

N3N 10400

Tns@wil : 0-2009-9000 5615 : 0-2009-9991
WPVENG ANATYIUUN LAY/ Y30
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Name
Type of Business

Registration No.
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital
Par Value

By dividing into

Address
Telephone
Fax

Homepage
Company Secretary

Company Registrar

Independent Auditor

Legal Consultant

Crown Seal Public Company Limited (CSC)
Manufacturing and Sale of Crown Caps,
Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi Series, Plastic Caps
and Composite Caps

0107537000416 (Bor Mor Jor 288)
528,000,000 Baht

528,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

Ordinary share 52,000,012 Shares
Preferred share 799,988 Shares

5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Prachatipat,
Tanyaburi, Pathumthani 12130

(662) 533-0450-9

(662) 974-1118

www.crownseal.coth

Ms.Napaporn Temeesrisuk

Tel : (662) 533-0450-9 # 638

E-mail : napaporn@crownseal.co.th

Thailand Securities Depository (Thailand) Company
Limited. 93 Ratchadaphiesk Rd., Dindaeng,
Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

Tel : (662) 009-9000 Fax : (662) 009-9991
Mr.Chayapol Suppasedtanon and/or

Ms.Pimjai Manitkajohnkit, and/or

Ms. Rosaporn Decharkom,

EY Office Limited (Previous Ernst & Young Office
Limited) 33" Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex
193/136-137 Rajadapisek Rd.,

Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel : (662) 264-0777 Fax : (662) 264-0789-90
S.AT. Associates Legal & Tax Co., Ltd.

444, 4™ Floor, Olympia Thai Tower. Ratchadapisek Rd.,
Samsennok, Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (662) 541-4214-6 Fax : (662) 541-4200

Juristic person where the Company’s shareholding at least 10%
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

Address

Type of Business
Telephone

Fax

% Shareholding
Type of Share

PETPAK Co., Ltd.
Address

Type of Business
Telephone

Fax

% Shareholding
Type of Share

: Kawasan Industri MM2100. JI. Madura | block LIO,
Kel. Cikedokan Cikarang Indonesia

: Manufacturing and Sale of Plastic Cap

: (662) 021-3860888

: (662) 021-3520908

: 14,375 Shares (25% of registered capital)

: Ordinary share

: 170/87, 32" Floor, Ocean Tower 1 Bldg.,
New Ratchadapisek Rd., Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

. Manufacturing and Sale of Plastic Bottle

: (662) 648-6100

: (662) 648-6199

: 140,000 Shares (10% of registered capital)

: Ordinary share

U3 ehJu e ()
Crown Seal Public Company Limited

21



ulgUIgLazNIWSILNISUSENDUSSHA

1. ANFIUNTUTLNBUFINAVIIUTEN

U3t shdu it () Useneugsiaiduganuazdmiine /du dindeatutaes dufind dmanefin wazriaosindn
dmfuaniinuanussedoamlmannvaneUseLm 1Ty thénau uudamdes oS Tuem ERHIVERREe thwald] GERRY thii
gulan Saun wavnedug nufdmhoedowdndgnivuuuilenuasaiesindugting venani viene dudins
Tiusmssuinsiuiukulanzias uiuogiileunsiniag

U3 a3 i () desdlud 2511 Fsumseifuayumeluladnisndnannuiom dudeu Tnaawesa $1if Saduusm
Tunduvasuisi Tole leiu n$U leansd 10 Ussinadiu wasdhondndomifitnnnmgs suvarmdmssdaiififiome uisn-
IFsmingaudliitugninduiidlulsamauasssssne tytufisentennnt 2,800 Suumsel Tnefiiormanegly
naugREMNIIIUIIIALAzLASoR HuA Ut Tuueu lnaaieda din Uit Tl lefu $1dn U3em yasem3ned S
U3E Ingthiing $1in u3ew wEsuaY 911A (WrYw) wauI¥n nsuaven 911

naenIzEzaTlunsALtugsAuTsdueikhUanddn vsene iimuasiasuaianuduiussusnuuiugndnme
nstaulunsudnndndarndannin wavaienuiianelaliiugnm lnenisldnalulagduihannguuidm Taly ladu
n3U lgafad S1in USEM Sansjunuaziaiuegiafud favdnaludanudufinlugsioussdasiluewan

L4

2. mMstAagukUaasiauINISNaIAgY

U 13U 911 (W) (Crown Seal Public Company Limited)lé’ammL‘ﬁau%’ﬂﬁ%Lﬁuﬁamﬂaﬂiumwﬁﬁmﬁﬁm dlefuf
26 Wi 2511 Tnefvuaemgideuizauusn 100,000,000 v uiaduuaiydnou 10,000,000 %u yarfinsliuay 10
UM USEN ammmuimamsiawwawswmmamLﬂiaammmﬂuﬂivmmumw wesdganes $1ia uazuIty Tole Loty
T arim émLﬂu;:flummmEJmaammmmmasmmﬂumswawﬁqmu regfiflosindeaiutass dhusing uaziwanafin

U3t lasveugeliduuidniavsifoulunaiandnnindwisszmalne Weouil 30 Sunmau 2520

Tuduil 2 puaTius w.a. 2537 U3 taanzideuwdsan mduussnunsudidamunszssdyaAusenumuusngia
w.A. 2535 nzidouaniiuug.288 Jagtuwdeudunzidouani 0107537000416

=

U 2555

. in*ﬂimmwﬂu U LWYILWA 9117 1UIU 2 ﬂiﬂ 334 180,000 ‘WLJ iqﬂﬂﬁuau 450 um ifsmﬂumumau 81 AU
RISAVERSEE ZJMHIUUiUVl N TUNA 1A L‘W‘LISUULUU 260,000 ‘vm Andusevay 18.6 %JE]\TVM‘VN‘M&I@

U 2556

. U3t Tole Lo Inon it Faduiddvlnguesnguuidnldivasulassaauasdousondu vidn Tole lufu nid
Toansd 1in uagldlouruimanuasudt hdu $af ) $1u7u 5,280,000 visefndutovay 10 vawiu
mw@ﬂmnwiw Tole oty $nitn Safuuendon warforulaeuien Tl lefu n3U Teansd Srfaviavan daud
Fuil 1 ey 2556

. Uidiauduasieesa St dieviulvauosuiing S1ua 19,843 338 uvdeRnidiutosas 37.58 vesuiavin lUAey
Foudsmduuien udou Tasawesa S fustuil 1 wweu 2556

. Uiune Winevuly USem wesuna 31in S1uau 120,000 u Tunavusy 48348 un ituusen el ledu nfy
Toansd $1in yiluSnmaeruluusn mesune 5150 $1uau 140,000 siu vieRnidu Soaz 10.0 vemuannzleu

22  swnudszd 2559
Annual Report 2016



U 2557

. US¥n laTamamuiuusn dudeu laaawesa 911 wag Davlyn Steel Corporation (Hong Kong) Co.,Ltd. Fausen
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures wansuazdmhglulssmadulaiige vuaamzideu 5,750,000 neamsansy lngusen«
o1y druau 14,375 vu visednluiosas 25 vosuannzileu

U 2558
« laifinswasuwlasniidednealul 2558

o

U 2559

. Vs Wsaudszmaausual dunusinu iR (Collective Action Coalition) vesniaenyulve lunissesiu
QUFVREE

- U3 Iaasmhe Suamuluniev se3ma dlauwns S1dn Swau 10 duuw FldEnsidisesnisanases
waAufudul g 2501 Uisndsnanldduarans warmaduazanenandldiicdsliaifuanudlul 2559

3. In39a319nsheviuuaIuTen

4 = - - y - Jndaun1stioy
YUIEN Uselangsia slinvewiu  uIanzileu %)
(o]
UIEN3W
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures NARAUAZINUE algy 5.75 a1u 25.0
Hwanasin ABARNTANSY
A v aa v
USENNYIVDY
U LNYTUNA 9719 NANAIYUSNAIERN algy 140 a1uum 10.0
USEN UNDNLAY UIUWUNALIBS 911 nannnszUog algy 1,800 81U 1.6

AszUad 2 FU wag
nszUe 3 Yu

4. aAnudunusiungussnavesneulve

USEnY nsumsativayumivins uasmalulaglunsudnann uem lele ey in wasusun duveu lraawesa 9110
Ussnadiu e usenn S1szandnsnisudndudnuiuiesazaesenvisansveusasndnsda uazaldinedudmiuany
Hewdelunsdminamaaugisuiuuanmnanduasinsmuanud iy

s ehdu $1in Gew) | 23
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



Company’s Overview

1. Company Business Overview

Crown Seal Public Company Limited is a manufacturer and distributor of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof Caps,
Maxi-Series, Plastic Caps and Composite Caps used as bottling and container seals for products namely carbonated
drinks, milk, beer, liquor, soda, drinking water, Chicken essense, bird’s nest and medical supplies including the
hand-held capping machine and Maxi-Cap Sealing machine. Furthermore the Company also earns the revenue

from the printed sheets service.

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was established in 1968 by receiving technological supports from Nippon Closers
Co., Ltd., a company in Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd. of Japan. With the high quality products and sufficient
production capacity, the Company has distributed the products to leading customers both in country and overseas
with the sales revenue of over 2,800 million Baht per year at the present. Major shareholders are in the packaging
industrial and beverage group: such as; Nippon Closers Co., Ltd., Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd., Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd.,
ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd., Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd., and Green Spot Co., Ltd.

Throughout the operational period of being engaged in the business of caps and closures packaging, the Company
has developed and built up long standing relations with the customers by firmly adhering to the productions of
quality products and create satisfactions to the customers which, in this respect, leading technology from Toyo
Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd., is used in the productions. In addition, the Company has still devoted its utmost
effort and firmly determined at all out endeavor possible to step forward in becoming the leader in packaging in

the future.
2.Significant Change and Development

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was registered for incorporation as a juristic person under the category of
a limited company on 26 April 1968 with the initial registered capital of 100,000,000 Baht divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares with par value of 10 Baht each. The Company was established through a joint venture of a domestic
beverage production companies with Berli Jucker Co., Ltd. and Toyo Seikan Kaisha Co., Ltd., where providing
academic and technical assistances on the productions of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi-Caps and Plastic

Caps.
The Company to be a listed company in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 30 December 1977.
On 2 February 1994, the Company made a registration converting its status to a Public Company Limited in

accordance with Public Company Limited Act, B. E. 2535, under the Registration No. Bor.Mor.Jor.288 (PLC.288).
The Registration Number is currently changed to 0107537000416.
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The Year 2012

« The Company increased the capital in Petpak Co., Ltd., twice, thus, accounting for a total of 180,000 shares
at 450 Baht per share, hence totaling amounting to 81 million Baht which consequently resulting in the
Company to have its shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., increased to a total of 260,000 shares or 18.6% of the total
number of the shares.

The Year 2013

» Toyo Seikan Kaisha Co., Ltd., changed its structure and renamed it to Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd.,
and transferred all 5,280,000 shares of Crown Seal Public Company Limited or 10% of the total number of the
shares to Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary company that its total shares were held by Toyo Seikan Group
Holdings Co., Ltd. since 1 April 2013.

« Japan Crown Cork Co., Ltd., the major shareholder of the Company in the totaling number of 19,843,338
shares or 37.58% of the total number of shares changed its name to Nippon Closers Co., Ltd., since 1 April 2013.

« The Company sold its 120,000 shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., at the price of 483.48 Baht per share to Toyo Seikan Group
Holdings Co., Ltd., So that the Company’s shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., remaining at 140,000 or 10.0% of the
registered capital.

The Year 2014

+ The Company had jointed with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. and Davlyn Steel Corporation (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
to establish a new company called “PT. Indonedia Caps and Closures” to manufacture and distribute Caps
and Closures in the Republic of Indonesia. It registered capital of 5,750,000 US Dollar, the number of shareholding
at 14,375 shares or 25.0% of the registered capital.

The Year 2015

« There was no significant change.

The Year 2016

+ The Company has joined the declaration of intent in view of establishing Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action
Coalition Against Corruption.

e The Company had written off the investment in Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. amounting 10 million Baht
which had been reserved the full allowance for loss on diminution in Value sice 1998. This Company had
gone bankrupt and the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered closing the case in the year 2016.

3. Ownership Structure of the Company in associated and affiliated companies

Type of Registered

Company’s Name Type of Business Share Capital % Sharesholding
Associated Company
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures Plastic Caps Common 5.75 million USD 25.0
Affiliated Companies
Petpak Co., Ltd. Plastic Packaging Common 140 million Baht 10.0
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  Easy open end, Common 1,800 million Baht 1.6

283 pieces can

4. Relation between the major shareholders business

The Company receives technology supports from Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. and Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. of Japan.
As a result, the Company paid the royalty fee by percentage of net sales amount of each product along with

other expenses if necessary for technicians coming from Japan.
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Nature of Business

Our Products

Crown Cap is a bottle closure made from pressed coated steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel) lined with
liner to prevent leakage. Once closed, Crown cap preserves the original content quality with an excellent sealing

performance. Crown cap is used for carbonated drinks, beer, soda, soymilk and fruit juice.

Pilfer-Proof (PP Cap) Cap is a screw cap developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing aluminum
sheet into cylindrical shape, perforated (between the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust-proof, easy to
open, can be recapped if the content is not wholly consumed. Pilfer-Proof cap is suitable for carbonated drinks,

health drinks, spirit and medicine.

Plastic Cap is a screw cap made from plastic resin which is molded into shape. The inside is designed either
with or without liner material to prevent leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for easy opening, it can
recap after used. Now Plastic cap is used in many products upon customer’s requirement such as

« Plastic cap with a liner: use for carbonated drinks or product using high temperature filling process such

as tea, milk and energy drinks

« Plastic cap without liner: provided anti-leaking feature without liner material, use for drinking water, fruit juice.

« Plastic cap without liner for product using high temperature filling process: use with; milk, tea.

« Plastic cap without liner: use for Aseptic filling process.

Maxi Crown Cap is bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated tin free steel shell. The score is
developed for easy opening by simply pulling the attached ring. This closure gives a perfect anti pilferage feature.

Maxi crown is recapping for non-refrigerate product.

Maxi Cap is a bottle closure made from coated aluminum sheet pressed into one piece, scored and lined.
Apart from the same general characteristic as Maxi crown cap, Maxi cap made of aluminum, is rust-proof and

more suitable for product kept in high humidity. Maxi cap is used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit juice.

Maxi-P Cap is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated aluminum shell. The general characteristic
is the same as Maxi cap except the pulling ring is made of plastic. Maxi-P cap used for drinking water, beer, spirit

and Fruit juice.

Composite Cap is a closure comprised of two parts, the shell formed by plastic resin and metal top panel.
Composite cap is designed for product with retort sterilization process and suitable for Chicken Essence, Bird’s

Nest or other premium grade products.

Hand-Crowner the hand-crowner is specially designed to crimp crown caps tightly, it is efficient in protecting

the product inside. The hand-crowner is easy to use and can be hand carried.

Maxi-Crimping Machine is a Single-hand, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine can be used to crimp either Maxi

series. It is designed with high technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.
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Printing Service is provided for coating, printing on steel plate and aluminum sheets before forming shaped.

The service is also cover to design, pattern from the high technology printing system.

Revenue structure of the Company for the past 3 years

2016 2015 2016

Revenue Type
million Baht % million Baht % million Baht %

Net Income
1. Manufacture and Sales of caps 2,710.90  89.99 2,680.65 89.28 2,623.78  87.92
2. Printing Service and Sales of 173.15 5.75 162.04 5.40 157.12 5.26

Printed Sheets
3. Others Income 128.42 4.26 159.84 5.32 203.48 6.82

Total Revenues of consolidated 3,012.47 100.00 3,002.53 100.00 2,984.38 100.00

financial statements*

Remark : * Indicating in accordance to consolidated financial statements which include other revenues such as income from

sales of scrap metal, administration, and others.
Marketing and Competitive
Marketing strategies of the Company in the year 2016, were as follows:
1. Quality of Products

The Company has clear policy to do business under the quality certifying of several work systems in international
level through developing and maintaining the quality system for the Company’s goods production including
quality management system, ISO 9001 : 2015 which is the latest revision, environment management system,
1ISO14001 : 2004, food safety system certification, 1ISO FSSC22000 : 2013, food safety management system,
ISO 22000 : 2005 and basic program of PRPs for factory producing packaging products used with food, PAS
223 : 2011 (Public Availability Specification), occupational health and safety management system, TIS 18001
and occupational health and safety management system, BS OHSAS 18001 : 2007, TISI 18001-2554, in order to
be sure that customers will receive goods having quality which complies with requirement, which is safe and

appropriate for use.

Furthermore, the Company produces products under the Good Manufacturing Practice - GMP, Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Point - HACCP which is the system used in food and beverage manufacturing places.
In the year 2016, the Company emphasized implementing CPM - Crown Seal Productive having target to reduce
7 wastes, energy conservation and 5S. and Kaizen as basic principle, to create confidence to the customers in

using the Company products.
2. Price

The Company engages business transparently and fairly. The specifying of goods price is made reasonably, to

comply with the market mechanism and to be competitive. The Company also takes into account the size of
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production and proportion of buying/selling of each customer. The selling price of products is adjusted appropriately
according to the change of raw materials price. In the year 2016, the Company was successful in participating in

price bidding to major customers both domestic and export.
3. Service

The Company emphasized the importance of response to customers’ requirement, from pre-sales, during sales
and after sales through providing service quickly and correctly with the sales teams and technical service teams
who have knowledge and skill in every products. The Company also provides service of checking the capping
conditions of the products and provides product knowledge training to customers, as well as making references
database for checking the capping condition for the customers, so that customers will be confident in using the

Company’s products.
4. Development of products

In the year 2016, the Company started to produce 28 mm. ROPP caps with molded liner, the new type of
liner is needed for energy drink and electrolyte products. Furthermore, the Company invested in new machinery
for plastic bottle packaging and flexible packaging which become more influence in the market. Cooperation is
obtained from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., in transferring technology. The Company also invested more in laser
coding machines in order to provide laser promotion to every kind of caps required by the customers, as well
as installed new Video Inspecting Device (VID) to detect products that did not conform with the customers’

requirement.

Sales and Sales Percentage of Major Customers

Details of the past 3 years of sales to top ten major customers and sales percentage when compared to total

sales are given as follows:

Unit: million Baht

Year Total Sales Sales to top ten customers % of total sales
2014 2,781 1,863 67.0
2015 2,843 1,879 66.1
2016 2,884 1,928 66.9

Among the top ten customers, one was a shareholder of the Company, namely Group of Boon Rawd Brewery

Company Limited

In the past three years, The Company did not sell to any customer in excess of 30% of its total sales.
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Ratio of Domestic and Export Sales

Unit: million Baht

Year Domestic Sales Export Sales Total Sales
2014 2,079 702 2,781
(%) 74.76 25.24 100
2015 2,156 687 2,843
(%) 75.84 24.16 100
2016 2,150 734 2,884
(%) 74.55 25.45 100

Major countries for exports are Indonesia, Myanmar, Vietnam, Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan, Laos, Philippines,

Malaysia, India and China.
Industrial Overview and Competition
1.Market size and growth rate

Market size of metal closures for glass packaging growth at 2 percent comparing to the previous year. Soy milk,
energy drink, electrolyte, bird nest and chicken essence, beer and liquor were the market leaders of metal closure
for the year 2016. The glass bottled carbonated soft drink shown declining growth while the PET bottled had
growth and launched varieties of package size to fit the customers’ requirement, pricing of these PET packaging
products were close to the glass bottled, this increased its popularity among the consumers. New products
launched to the market were mostly in PET packaging, flexible packaging also became the new alternative in
packaging type for beverage business in 2016 since it can provide benefit on packaging cost, ease of transportation
and distribution with less limitation than glass bottle. The Company aware of this, product development and

machinery investment was prepared to get in to this new market.

Due to the economic slowdown, low in agriculture product price and flooding in some area of the country
make shrinking in purchasing power of the consumer, effected the market consumption especially the beverage

industry, this impact also hit the continuous growth product like bottled drinking water.

In 2016 beer and liquor market shrank due the slowdown economic situation, the competition among those
producers continuously carried on, the producer changed their packaging and launched new products to fit the
consumers’ need, The Company was trusted to take part of these changes resulting in the increase of our sales

by new products launched of customers.

Chicken essence and Bird’s nest products which targeted on the high purchasing power customer, did not have
high growth as per the projection. This product group got high marketing promotion during the specific festival in
order to emphasize the product’s image of valuable products suitable to be a gift for special persons. During the
end of 2016, this product group showing high growth and The Company also increased our sales over the same

period of last year as well.
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Plastic closures in 2016 expanded 5 percent over 2015, producers continuously do the marketing campaign all
over the year using price discount, lucky draw campaign etc. including to find co-packer for the new products,
expanding filling facility and setup product provincial distribution center to reduce the transportation cost and
enhance the distribution efficiency to the consumers.

ASEAN beverage market shown the same trend to domestic market, in many countries the economic outlook
shown no growth also there were fluctuation in exchange rate. However, the countries in this region namely
Myanmar, Vietnam, Lao and Indonesia still are the target of the investors who planned to set up their production

facility or to find the investment partner.

2.Business trend

Beverage market for the first half of 2016, there was positive movement for the industry, there was trend
of growth of every product. There was stock preparing for summer sales to come, for the second half of the
year the shrinking in consumption impact every product groups, the economic slowdown making all marketing
activities cancelled, these effected beverage market growth lower than the projection especially in liquor beer
and soda, the impact also hit every other beverage groups. The sales promotion using under the cap promotion
code for SMS still be used, this kind of promotion help the producers to maintain their market share meanwhile

the producers introduced new products to the market as alternatives for the consumers.

Alcohol and liquor were under control by the government focusing on sales location, control time to do the
TV advertising, also other government campaigns against alcohol which ran through the year, the producers had

to try to maintain their sales by launching new products to stimulate the market.

3. Difficulties of the new entrant.

ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) is a potential market and grows continuously comparing to other regions of
the world. Manufacturers from Europe, America, Asia, such as Korea, Japan, China and India are interested to invest
in this market for using as a production base and export base to other regions. The current situations in Thailand,
there are the packaging producers from overseas offering their products to the domestic beverage producers.
Furthermore, beverage producers have a policy of risk management by having a large number of suppliers,

to solve problems of goods shortage for production and increase the bargaining power.

For major beverage producers having parent companies abroad, they would employ bidding method and use
the total volume of market demand in several countries to be the base for price offering and the contractual
period of sales would be determined clearly. The form of trading in the future will be the emphasizing on trade
alliance which has potential to create strong supply chain on base of good cooperation towards each other.
Therefore, when the Company had good relationship with customers, offered fair price and responded to the

requirement quickly; this would make new competitors to enter into this industry difficulty.

The Company had been supported technically from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (which is a subsidiary company
of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd., a leading manufacturer of packaging in Japan) continuously. Experts had
always been sent to study and give recommendations for improvement, to strengthen the production team,

quality assurance and technical team to catch up with new technology in the future.
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Right and Restrictive on Business practice
The Company entered into technical licenses agreement with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., whereby the Company
receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps. Compensation is payable at a percentage of net

sales of products stipulated in the agreement.

Production Capacity and Quantity

Year 2016 Year 2015 Year 2014

Total Quantity Capacity Total Quantity Capacity Total Quantity Capacity

Product (million pcs.)  Utilization  (million pcs.)  Utilization  (million pcs.)  Utilization
Rate (%) Rate (%) Rate (%)
Caps 17,000 59 16,161 62 14,500 53

Raw materials and raw materials suppliers

The policy of the Company is to promote and support domestic industries so if the raw materials have the
suitable quality, standard and cost not more than that of the imports, the Company will make a purchase
domestically. The purchasing policy is to procure raw materials from more than one supplier to ensure quality

of the products in accordance with the standard at the suitable price and timely delivery.

To select the raw material suppliers, the priority is given to quality of the raw materials employed in the
production first with clear inspection criteria and consistent examination on the raw material suppliers of the
Company to ensure that the raw materials employed would not affect the quality of the products. New raw
material suppliers will be searched systematically each year through separation of raw material suppliers by
type of raw materials, test of raw materials by the quality assurance division in accordance with the international
assessment standards such as I1SO, GMP, HACCP, OHSAS and FSSC 22000 to prevent shortage of raw materials for
the production of the Company.

Product Major Raw Materials % to domestic procure
Metal caps Thin plate / Aluminum plate Thin plate 97/ Aluminum plate 75
Plastic caps Polypropylene 95

The Company did not have any supplier held more than 30% of the total raw material purchase amount.
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Production Process
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Risk Factors

During the normal operation of the Company, there are some factors that could widely affect the performance.
These factors could be both internal and external factors that the Company cannot control. Therefore, the
Company shall prepare for the unexpected situation which may happen in order to reduce any risk of which may
effect to the Company’s goal and operation. The Company has established the Risk Management Committee
comprising of Senior Executive officers and Executive officers from various departments and the President serves
as the Chairman to evaluate and analyze risk including the trend of potential event that may occur and affect
the Company. Details of risks are as follows:

1. Risk from trade liberalization and entry into ASEAN Economic Community with possible
impacts on sales

The trade liberalization policy of ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) which will lead to a single production
zone and single market with free movement of labors and finished products will intensify the competition in
the domestic market through entry of foreign competitors, including local competitors which have expanded
their production base into the country of their trading partners. However, the Company is ready to cope
with such impact through product quality improvement and close production process controls, increase
in production efficiency and cost reduction, product development and more participation with customers
to undertake the activities for better trade relationship and wider export base. Besides the Company has
registered its patent on new product to prevent infringement by competitors which may want to manufacture
the same products, monitored movements of beverage manufacturers in the country and overseas as trade
liberalization will result in relocation of the production base to other countries in ASEAN where costs of production
are cheaper. The Company has jointly invested in its affiliated company together with two other investors to form
a new company in Republic of Indonesia to manufacture and sell caps and closures, which will start operation
in 2017. Regarding the quality of the packaging containers, the quality management control system has been
employed to supervise the production with international standard certification like Quality Management System,
ISO 9001:2015, Environmental Management System, ISO 14001:2004, Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) at
the premise, Occupational Health and Safety Management system and TIS18001 as well as Food Safety System
Certification to maintain confident of the customers.

2.Risk from fluctuation of exchange rate

The Company has imported raw materials, machines and equipment from overseas and exported finished
products overseas with credit term about 30-90 days so fluctuation in exchange rate may affect its operating
results. Moreover, the Company has incomes and purchased raw materials with foreign currency about 17% of
sales. The Company is able to reduce risk through arrangement of payment in the currency similar to its incomes
and preparation of forward contracts to buy and sell foreign currency. That will help reduce such impact at the
suitable period and the Company has monitored the exchange rate closely.

3.Risk from shortage of key raw materials and global price fluctuation

Major raw materials of the Company are steel sheets, aluminum sheets and plastic pellets of which the
price has changed due to global price fluctuation in accordance with the market demand at the time. Such
factor is not controllable by the Company. To reduce the price fluctuation risk and shortage of raw materials
in the future, the Company has closely monitored movement of the price of raw materials in oversea and domestic
market to look for supporting measures of the purchasing plan in congruence with demands from customers
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of the Company, including coordination with manufacturers of raw materials for timely production and delivery
of raw materials and to manage and maintain its inventory to the suitable level without risk of shortage of raw
materials and to maintain a good relationship with suppliers of steel , aluminum and plastic pellets, including
procurement of additional suppliers of raw materials and substitutes at the lower price. Moreover, if the cap
selling price is determined with reference to the price of raw materials at the time, it will reduce the risk from
fluctuation of global price of raw materials.

The quality of raw materials is another major concern. The raw materials delivered by the suppliers to
the Company are required to be examined on quality in accordance with the standard before they are employed
in the production process every time to reduce risk of production loss due to poor finished product quality caused
by the raw materials.

4.Risk from merchandise quality controls

The Company has controlled its production of finished products in every step through quality inspection
since acceptance of raw materials into the production, packing and delivery process. However, the Company still
incurs risk from claims against the quality by the customers sometimes because the acceptable quality level of
the Company and the customer is not clear and the quality inspection on the finished products is made through
vision. Therefore, the Company has arranged measures to reduce this risk through preparation of acceptable
quality requirement between the Company and each customer, installation of equipment and improvement of
cap quality inspection system with highly qualified camera to ensure precision, arrangement of training program for
employees in the production line, training on finished products production and concept on quality improvement
because such measures will help greatly reduce the risk.

5.Risk from accident and fire casualty

To manufacture the finished products, the Company has employed machines and equipment in the production
process and loading and unloading of raw materials and merchandises at all times; therefore, work safety is
critical to both employees and the Company. An accident incurred during the working process may result in
physical loss of the employees and loss of properties of the Company. To prevent and reduce such loss, the
Company has appointed the occupational health and environmental safety committee and has introduced the
Occupational Health and Safety Management System (OHSAS18000) to manage the work with identification of
hazard and risk assessment in the production process, working procedure and risk area as well as to determine
preventive measures against possible hazard and to arrange a campaign to keep the employees aware of safety
and to assist reduction or removal of the origin of hazard through inspection of machines, tools, equipment and
environment surrounding the working area for improvement and corrective measures. To prevent fire casualty,
the Company has arranged a plan to prevent fire casualty with determination of risk area, including established
the control and inspection measures strictly in accordance with the plan, arrangement of fire drill and evacuation
annually to ensure that the employees have understood and undertaken the correct measures. In addition, the
Company has made the all-risk insurance against its properties and business interruption insurance as well.

6.Risk from carrying high inventory

To manufacture the finished products of the Company is not only to maintain the set up inventory levels which
are determined through the frequency of customer orders and the Company production ability to ensure the
sufficient products for delivery once the customers place orders but also to serve as per particular customers’
orders. By the way, found that the Company has carried high inventory which will lead to risk of excess inventory
for customer demands that may become expired products for use in case the customers changed their product
designs. To prevent and reduce such losses, the committee consisted of relevant unit representatives was
arranged by the Company to co-consider the ways for inventory management to be at appropriate levels. As
the result, action plan meetings and follow up the actions to achieve target as well as other measures were
set up such as the more accuracy of an estimate of customer demands, report system improvement to ease for
the details of inventories follow up, the production quantity control and held products inspection management etc.
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Securities and Shareholders

1. The Company’s Securities
» Registered Capital and Paid-up Capital

As of 31 December 2016, the Company accounted for the registered capital of 528,000,000 Baht which had been
paid up in the amount of 528,000,000 Baht, divided into 52,000,012 ordinary shares and 799,988 preferred shares
with par value of 10 Baht each.

The Company Sold 800,000 preferred shares to the existing shareholders with a par value of Baht 10
each. The selling preice was Baht 76 per share, according to the resolution of the 2007 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders held on April 23, 2007. Then they had converted into 12 ordinary shares. The preferred shares
have the same rights and benefits as the ordinary shares. The preferential rights of the preferred shares are as
follows:

1. Each preferred share is entitled to dividends at the same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht 1.50 for each
preferred share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non -cumulative.

2. Each preferred share has one vote.

3. Each preferred share is convertible into an ordinary share at the ratio of 1:1. A holder may exercise the
right to convert the preferred shares to ordinary shared on the last business day of each month. If

that day in a non-business day, the exercise must be postponed to the next business day.
2. Shareholders

Details of top ten shareholders as listed in the share registered as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Share Amount

Type of
Name of Shareholders **  Nationality Ordinary  Preferred ypf
Total % to Total business
share share
1. Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.! Japanese 19,071,292 772,046 19,843,338 37.582 Packaging
2. Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd.” Japanese 5,280,000 - 5,280,000 10.000 Packaging
3. Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd.’ Thai 3,934,488 - 3,934,488 7.452 Beverages
4. ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd.! Thai 3,768,316 - 3,768,316 7.137 Beverages
5. Sermsuk Plc.’ Thai 1,057,742 - 1,057,742 2.003 Beverages
6. Green Spot Co., Ltd.t Thai 1,000,000 11,230 1,011,230 1.915 Beverages
7. Mr. Supachai Suthipongchai Thai 890,000 - 890,000 1.686 -
8. Bangkok Insurance Plc. Thai 799,948 - 799,948 1.515 Insurance
9. CS. Capital Co., Ltd.? Thai 735,000 - 735,000 1.392 Investment
in another
company
10. Mr. Somkiat Chintammit Thai 587,900 - 587,900 1.113 -
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4.

46

Remarks :

1 The major shareholder of Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (100%)

2 The major shareholder of Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (100%)

3 The major shareholders of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd. are Mr.Piya Bhirombhakdi (13.15%), Mr.Naiyanop
Bhirombhakdi (12.63%) and Mr.Santi Bhirombhakdi (12.27%)

4 The major shareholders of ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd. are Coco-Cola Export Corporation Co., Ltd. (40.8%) and
Jootee Tin Dredging Co., Ltd. (10.2%)

5 The major shareholders of Sermsuk Plc. are So Water Co., Ltd. (64.66%) and SS National Logistics Co., Ltd.

(21.13%)

The major shareholder of Green Spot Co., Ltd. is Wattana Sophonpanich Co., Ltd. (56.58%)

The major shareholder of Bangkok Insurance Plc. is Bangkok Bank Plc. (9.97%)

The major shareholders of C.S.Capital Co., Ltd. is Smart Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (48.96%) and

Watana Chote Co., Ltd. (31.17%)

o ~N O

** Excluding shareholders in Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. a subsidiary of the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the objective
of promoting investor investment, particularly international investors, in order to invest in common stock
of listed companies without being restricted by foreign shareholding limit which does not have the right

to vote at meetings of listed companies.

Shareholders’ Agreement between major shareholders with possible impact on the
issuance and offering of securities or on the management of the Company, co-signed
by the Company

- None -

Other securities

- None -
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Dividend Payout Policy

The dividend policy of the Company is to pay not more than 50 percent of annual net profit after deducting
all types of reserves as required by law and the Company. Each preferred share is entitled to dividend at the
same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht 1.50 for each preferred share. However, the dividend payment will
be subject to net profit, cash flow and the Company investment responsibility including the legal obligation and

other necessities. The past dividend payments of the Company are as follows:

Operation results

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016*
Net Profit (million Baht) 289.74 337.72 326.40 325.86 381.01
Dividend for ordinary share (Baht) 1.50 1.75 1.75 1.75 2.50
Dividend for preferred share (Baht) 3.00 3.25 3.25 3.25 4.00
Percent of net profit (%) 27.75 27.72 28.68 28.72 34.96

Remark: * Dividend rate for operation results of 2016 will be considered approving by the shareholders at the Annual General

Meeting of 2017.
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Management Structure

The Company’s structure of management comprises of

1. The Board of Directors comprises independent directors, non-executive directors and executive directors.
There are sub committees as follows:
1.1 The Audit Committee
1.2 The Risk Management Committee

2. The Management
1.The Board of Directors

» The Structure of Board of Directors
The Board of Directors stated in the Company’s Articles of Association consists of at least 7 directors and not
more than 15 directors. Not less than half of the total number of directors must have residence in the Kingdom.
The Directors must hold qualifications in accordance with the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEQ) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and not have any characteristics prohibited by the SEC and Public
Company Act.

As of December 31, 2016, the Board of Directors comprised of 13 members and Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk,

the Company Secretary Manager, was the secretary to the Board, detail as follows:

Name - Surname Position
1. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director and Chairman
2. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin Vice -Chairman
3. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Director
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima Director
6. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director and President
7. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and the Audit Committee
8. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director
9. Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul Independent Director
10. Mr. Junichi Motono Director
11. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Independent Director and the Audit Committee
12. Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani Director
13. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka Director
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Directors with Signatory Rights on behalf of the Company

Directors with signatory rights on behalf of the Company are Mr. Hirofumi Miki, Mr. Pornwut Sarasin

Mr. Akiyoshi Toba and Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka. The any two of these four authorized directors must sign jointly

with the Company’s seal affixed.

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors

1. Supervises and manages company operations in accordance with the Company objectives, Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting.

2. Establishes or considers and approves vision, missions, strategies, goals and business policies of the Company.
The Board is also responsible for monitoring implementation by management in accordance with the approved
policies, plans and budgets with efficiency and effectiveness.

3. May appoint other persons to operate the Company’s business under the supervision of the Board.
The Board may also appoint such persons with the authority and timeframe as deemed appropriate by
the Board. The Board of Directors reserves the right to cancel, revoke, change or amend such authority.

4. Considers and approves the responsibilities of any Committee and any significant changes made to its
operations as deemed appropriate for the benefit of the Company.

5. Thoroughly considers any conflict of interests .The consideration of the transactions with conflict of interest
are conducted for the best interest of the Company and shareholders .The person who has interest in
the transaction are not be able to participate in decision making process and/or approval of any transactions.

. Establishes or approves a written corporate governance policy for the Company.

. Establishes the policy and to supervise the system to efficiently support the anti-corruption work.

. Ensures that the Company has effective internal control and internal audit systems.

O 00 ~N O

. Considers remuneration for the Board within the limit approved by shareholders.

In 2016, the Board of Directors attended the total of 7 meetings and the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

as follow:
Attending Board Meeting
2016 Annual Attendance /
Name - Surname Position
General The Total
Meeting Meetings**** (Times)
1. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich***  Independent Director and Chairman v’ /7
2. Mr. Pornwut  Sarasin*** Vice-Chairman - 6/7
3. Mr. Hirofumi  Miki*** Director v’ 4/7
o . Independent Director and Chairman v
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn , i /7
of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima Director v’ 3/7
6. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director and President v’ I
) ) Independent Director and the Audit v
7. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul ] 6/7
Committee
8. Mr. Dhitivute  Bulsook Director v 6/7
9. Prof.Dr. Suwimon  Keeratipibul Independent Director v’ /7
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Attending Board Meeting

. 2016 Annual Attendance /
Name - Surname Position
General The Total
Meeting Meetings**** (Times)
10. Mr. Junichi Motono* Director v 3/7
Independent Director and the Audit
11. Mr. Pongpanu  Svetarundra ) - 1
Committee
12. Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani** Director v a/5
13. Mr. Yoshihiro  Kaitsuka Director v’ 1
14. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro* Director - 0/1
15. Mr. Susumu  Yamada** Director v’ 2/2

Notes :
* The Board of Directors Meeting no.1/2016 held on February 22, 2016 had resolved to appoint Mr. Junichi
Motono as the Company’s director in replacement of Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro who vacated his office.

** The General Meeting of Shareholders no.23 for the year 2016 held on April 28, 2016 had resolved to appoint.
Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani as the Company’s director in replacement of Mr. Susumu Yamada who had retired
by rotation and did notintend to continue as director.

*** In the Board of Directors Meeting no.7/2016 held on December 15, 2016, Mr. Hirofumi Miki resigned
as Chairman, but he remains a Director of the Company, then the Board appointed Mr. Dhep Vongvanich,
Mr. Pornwut Sarasin as Chairman and Vice-Chairman respectively.

**** The Board meeting attendance / the total meetings was presented either in amount of times each
member attended the meetings in 2016 or since the members have been in the position of the Board

during the year as the case maybe comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2016.

The current number and position of the Company’s Directors reflects the suitability and equity of each shareholder
groups’ investment stake. The majority of the Directors are not executives, in order to preserve a balance of power

and encourage management credibility.
Directors Representing from Major Shareholders Listed as Follows:

Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company Limited*
1. Mr. Hirofumi  Miki

Nippon Closures Company Limited
1. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima

2. Mr. Junichi Motono

3. Mr. Akiyoshi ~ Toba

4. Mr. Yoshihiro  Kaitsuka

Toyo Seikan Company Limited
1. Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani

Notes:* Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company Limited is the major shareholder of Nippon Closures Company Limited

and Toyo Seikan Company Limited.

Ui edu $1in ) G
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



1.1 The Audit Committee*

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent directors and the
Internal Audit Office Manager as the secretary. In 2016, a total of 6 Audit Committee’s meetings were arranged

according to the 4 planned and 2 extra meetings with the attendance listed as follows:

The Total Number Of Attendance/

Name - Surname Position The Total Of Meetings (Times)**
1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Chairman of the Audit Committee 6/6
2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Member of Audit Committee 6/6
3. Mr. Pongpanu  Svetarundra Member of Audit Committee 2/6
4. Ms. Wannapa Somprasit Secretary to the Audit Committee 6/6

Notes :
* The Audit Committee has their term for three years, started from November 8, 2014-2017.
** The Audit Committee meeting attendance / the total meetings were presented in amount of times each

member attended the meetings in 2016 comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2016.

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has approved and scoped the authority and duties of the Audit Committee as follows:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate by coordinating
with auditor, the internal audit office and the relevant management.

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to be suitable and efficient, to
determine the internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer, dismissal,
develop and performance appraisal of internal audit manager.

3. To review the Company’s compliance with the laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission
concerning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act.

4. To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable, accurate,
complete, transparent and for the highest benefit of the Company.

5. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose
the remuneration of Company’s auditor to the Board of Directors, to attend a non-management meeting
with an auditor at least once a year.

6. To review and follow the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management.

7. To approve the Audit Committee’s regulation before proposing the approved regulation to the Board of
Directors for approval.

8. To review the undertaking of the internal audit office as follows:

8.1 Independence

8.2 Appropriateness of its duties and responsibilities
8.3 Approve the audit plan, budget and manpower
8.4 Report the audit result

8.5 Problem or limit in audit process
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9. To prepare a report of Audit Committee’s Corporate Governance, and to report in the Company’s annual
report.

10. To report the performance of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors of the Company by a quarterly
basis.

11. To perform any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company with approval from the Audit

Committee thereto.
The report of Suspicious Circumstance and Significance

Apart from the mentioned Authority and Duties, the Audit Committee also reports the suspicious circumstance

which has significance as follows:

1. Inspect the matter informed by the Company’s auditor in case of the auditor found the suspicious
circumstance that director, management or any person responsible for the Company’s operation commits
an offence under the rules of Securities and Exchange B.E.2535 and report the result of preliminary
inspection to Securities and Exchange Commission Office and the auditor within thirty days after

received by the auditor.

2. During undertaking the duties, if the Audit Committee find the suspicious act or transaction which
has significant effect on the Company’s financial position and operation result, the Audit Committee
shall report to the Company’s Board of Directors to remedy the matter under the period of time accepted
by the Audit Committee as follows:

1. A conflict of interest transaction.
2. A corruption or an important unusual matter or a fault in the internal audit system.
3. An infringement of laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock

Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act.

In case that the Board of Directors or the management fails to remedy aforesaid matters, any Audit Committee

member shall report to the Securities and Exchange Commission Thailand or the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
The responsibility of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsinle to the Board of Directors in carrying duties and responsibilities assigned
by the Board of Directors while the whole Board of Directors is responsible to all of activities participating

outsiders.
1.2 Risk Management Committee

The Company has established the Risk Management Committee as a sub-committee of the Management
comprised of Senior executive officers and executive officers from variours departments and the President
served as the Chariman in order to ensure that the Company hasmanaged efficiently and shall achieves
the objectives as well as to prepare for the incident which may occur in the future and affect to

the Company’s operation.
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Scope of Duties of the Risk Management Commitee
1. To determine policies, objectives, frameworks and strategies concerning risk management.
2. To set content and criteria in considering all types of the Company’s risks.

3. To communicate with all departments regarding the policies or specified measures which need to be

implemented.
4. To analyze and assess all risks, trends, or incidents which may occur and has influence to the Company.
5. To approve risk management plan, surpervise, monitor and also evaluate outcomes.

6. To periodically report outcomes for acknowledgment risk situations.

2. The Management

The Executive of the Company as of December 31, 2016 comprises of 7 members presented as follows:

Name - Surname Position
1. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba President
2. Mr. Hiroshi Takahashi Senior Vice President - Quality Assurance
3. Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan Vice President - Finance and Accounting
4. Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi Vice President - Plant
5. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka Vice President - Technical
6. Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul Vice President - Administration
7. Mr. Thongchai  Srisook Personnel Manager

The Duties of the Management

1. Manages the operations according to the vision, mission, strategies, policies, plans and g¢oals approved
by the Board of Directors, the Articles of Association of the Company, and resolutions passed by the
Board of Directors’ Meeting and Shareholders’ Meeting.

2. Manages the operations according to the Corporate Governance Policy approved by the Board
of Directors.

3. Prepares annual plan and budget for approval form the Board of Directors and strictly controls the
operations and budget expenditure according to the approved plans and report progresses and operating
results of the Company to the Board of Directors’ Meeting regularly.

The Board of Directors and the management has no illegal records in the past 10 years before submitting

Form 56-1 oncerning information disclosure.
3.The Company Secretary and The Secretary to the Board of Directors

The Company has established the Company Secretary Office comprising of qualified staff with appropriate
experience to give information, legal suggestions and related regulations to the Board of Directors to perform
its duty, and also coordinate all departments to conform with the resolution passed by the Board in order
to comply with Good Corporate Governance principle. The Board of Directors Meeting No.4/2008 as of June
24, 2008 passed the resolution to appoint Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk, the Company Secretary Office Manager
as the Company Secretary and also appointed as the Secretary to the Board of Directors on August 26, 2008.
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The Duties of the Company Secretary and the Secretary to the Board of the Directors
are as follows:

1. To coordinate the schedule for the Board of Directors” meeting all year round and the date for Annual General
Meeting of shareholders as well as inform the Board in advance.

2. To prepare the Meeting agenda, documents and deliver to the Board of Directors together with the
meeting notice.

3. To prepare the Shareholders’ meeting, agenda, documents and to deliver to the shareholders together with the
meeting notice. In addition, manage the meeting smoothly and to comply with laws.

4. To attend the meeting and prepare minutes of the Board of Directors’ and the shareholders” meeting,
taking important matter, questions and useful suggestions during the meeting.

5. To follow up the operation to conform with the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ and the Shareholders’
meeting and report to the Board periodically.

6. To give information or suggestions to the Board of the Directors and the management to perform their duties
in compliance with the laws and regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand including the best practice of the Listed Company concerning the good governance.

7. To prepare Form 56-1 concerning the information disclosure and the annual report with the correct and
complete information complying with the regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand as well as to deliver to all related organizations and shareholders (The annual report only).

8. To prepare the Directors’ profile and registration which have been corrected and updated.

9. To submita copy of the report concerning the interest related the Board of the Directors, the Executives, and other
related persons to the Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committee within 7 days since the report
has been received.

10. To keep the documents as follow in complete, systematic, and simple- to-examine manner
- Meeting notices and minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting and the shareholder’ meeting including
all meeting documents
- Annual report
- Director registration
- Report of Information concerning the interest related to the Board of Directors, the Executives, and other
related person.
11. To give the Company’s information to shareholders, investors, and analysts. To coordinate or set up the meeting
for all related parties periodically.

12. To perform any other acts as specified in the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
4. Directors and Management Remuneration
Monetary Remuneration
1.) The Board of Directors’ Remuneration
In 2016, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 28, 2016 has approved the remuneration of
the total 13 directors in amount of Baht 3,500,000 for the retainer fee and meeting attendance fee of the Board

and the Audit Committee. Year of 2016, the retainer fee and meeting attendance fee of the Board of Directors
for 13 directors amounted of Baht 2,620,000 described as follows:
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Retainer Fee

Attendance fee

Name Of Directors Position (Baht/Year)
(Baht/Year)
XXX¥
1. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich*** Independent Director and Chairman 250,000 150,000
2. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin*** Vice-Chairman 240,000 120,000
3. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Director Not received Not received
o ) Independent Director and Chairman
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn ) ) 240,000 140,000
of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima Director Not received Not received
6. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba**** Director and President Not received -
. ) Independent Director and
7. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul ) ] 240,000 120,000
the Audit Committee
8. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director 240,000 120,000
9. Prof.Dr. Suwimon  Keeratipibul Independent Director 240,000 140,000
10. Mr. Junichi Motono Director Not received Not received
Independent Director and
11. Mr.Pongpanu Svetarundra ) i 240,000 140,000
the Audit Committee
12. Mr. Yoshiki Miyatani Director Not received Not received
13. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka**** Director Not received -
14. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro* Director Not received -
15. Mr. Susumu Yamada** Director Not received Not received
Total 1,690,000 930,000

Remarks :

*Mr.Yasuo Tsujihiro vacated his office since February 2016.

*%

KR¥

Mr. Susumu Yamada retired by rotation since April 2016.

Mr. Dhep Vongvanich is a Chairman in replacement of Mr. Hirofumi Miki from December 2016.

Mr. Pornwut Sarasin is a Vice-Chairman in replacement of Mr. Dhep Vongvanich from December 2016.

AKXX*

KEKXKXKR
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2.) The Audit Committee’s Remuneration

In 2016, a total of 6 Audit Committee’s meetings were arranged according to the 4 planned and 2 extra meetings.
The attendance fee amounted of Baht 310,000 the details of which can be described as follows:

The Total Number Meeting
Of Attendance/ The  Attendance Fee
Name - Surname Position
Total Of Meetings (Baht)
(Times)
1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn  Chairman of the Audit Committee 6/6 150,000
2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul ~ Member of the Audit Committee 6/6 120,000
3. Mr.Pongpanu  Svetarundra Member of the Audit Committee 2/6 40,000

3.) The Management’s Remuneration

In 2016, the Management’s remuneration which included 4 executives relatively under the President and
any persons equally assigned to the same rank of those executives, for a total of 6 executives amounted of
Baht 16,918,144 the details as follows:

Year 2016 Year 2015 Year 2014

Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
Executives (Baht) Executives (Baht) Executives (Baht)

Remuneration

(person) (person) (person)
Salary, Annual Bonus, and
) 6* 16,410,524 6 16,489,054 6 16,181,952
Retirement Compensation
Provident Fund 2 507,620 2 517,482 2 486,282
Total 16,918,144 17,006,536 16,668,234

*Year 2016, there were only 5 from total 6 executives received the remuneration from the Company.

However, the Company considered the executives as permanent employees and are obliged to be responsible
in their own function and line.

4.) Other Remuneration
- None-
5.) Employees
As of 31 December 2016, the Company had 891 employees.
In 2016, the Company paid the compensation to employees totaling 415,683,445.62 Baht in the form of

salary, bonus, attendance reward, overtime, and other welfares. The Company had contributed to the Provident
Fund for the year 2016 in the amount of 14,661,195.68 Baht.
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Provident Fund of the Company

The Company had founded the provident fund comply with ministerial regulations no.162 B.E. 2526 aim
to promote employee’s long term savings. This fund will help the employee to gather their own savings for
use when retire or resign from the Company, subsequently the Company had registered the fund to be under
Provident Fund Act. B.E. 2530. For the employee’s cumulative gathering which will deduct from employee’s
salary, employee has a right to choose from ratio percentage to salary depends on year of service. In addition,
employee can choose themselves the proper investment plan while the Company shall contribute to the fund
by these details:-

Year of service Contribution ratio (percentage to salary)
Less than 7 years 5

7 years to less than 10 years 7.5

10 years over 10

In case that the employee registers to the fund before January 1, 2003, the Company shall contribute when
complete 7 and 10 years of services.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s Provident Fund has a total contribution equal to 344,980,037.63
Baht which comprised of:

1. Crown Seal Public Company Limited registered fund, having 369 members included management, totaling
145,392,917.05 Baht.

2. The registered K-Master Pooled fund, Crown Seal Public Company Limited only, having 33 members included
management, totaling 9,761,787.70 Baht.

3. The registered K-Master Pooled fund - share mixed not over 25%, Crown Seal Public Company Limited only,
having 427 members included management, totaling 189,825,332,88 Baht.

Employee Dispute in the Past 3 Years

-None-

Personnel Development Policy

Human resources are deemed to be the key factors in carrying on the Company’s operations. The Company
realizes that human resources development is the worthiest and most sustainable investment compared
with other categories of the investments. This is because of the reason that the organizational success relies
on the personnel potentials as the significant matter. Any organization having human resources of high caliber
of competency, rishteousness and ethics would certainly be able to create the advantage on the competitiveness
and lead the organization to success in accordance with the required and sustainable goal. The Company
has by far set a wish and given importance on human resources development in order to make the Company’s
personnel both good and smart men and women at all times.

The Company has a policy on the development of all levels of employees in order to enable them to gain
knowledge and skills in systematic and continuous performances by implementing the Annual Training Plan
consisting of the basic training, skills on the executions of a specific work and general knowledge necessary for
use in performing duties: In the year 2016 the Company provided 115 training courses, total employees
participated in the training of 2,392 persons using the budget of 1,471,315.20 Baht categorized into

 In-house Training 73  courses, 2,330 employees participated.

e Public Training 42  courses, 62 employees participated.
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The course outlines for the training conducted in 2016 are:

1. Managerial Skills, Supervisory Skill and Human Resources Management Total 14 courses, 309
employees participated, such as HR for Non-HR, Coaching : On the Job Training, Problem Solving & Decision
Making and Supervisory Skill. These courses provided teaching skills for supervisors, major roles and duties of
supervisor knowledge, overseeing subordinates for performance achievement which enable the employees
to get learning and effectively perform abide by the Company’s policy.

2. Essential Knowledge and Skills Total 18 courses, 408 employees participated, such as Problem Solving
and Data Analysis, Systematic Problem Solving, Product Knowledge Course, Good Organization Culture
Building and Sustainability, The Company’s Code of Conduct etc. These courses provided the proper
understanding of the Company products, the Company regulation to employees which enable them to perform
correctly and abideby the Company’s policy.

3. Technical Knowledge and Professional Knowledge Total 40 courses, 454 employees participated such
as Machinery Working System like Shaft Alignment, Plastics Injection Technology, Design of Experiments (DOE),
Thai Electrical Code 2013 (New Standard), National Skill Standard Test for Plant Electricians, Visual Inspection
Device (VID), Coating, Tin Free Steel Material Knowledge etc. These courses provided technical knowledge
and international standardization tools and equipment usage which the employees can apply for
working effectively.

4. Productivity Improvement & Quality Management System Total 14 courses, 683 employees participated,
such as HORENSO, 7 wastes, Why-Why Analysis, One Point Lesson, Kaizen Suggestion, 5 S, ISO 2589-1, ISO/
IEC1725 etc. which showed that the Company gives precedence to the clean and tidy working environment
for ease of operation, and provided systematic working improvement and effectiveness knowledge which can
enhance employees’ knowledge for their self potential improvement.

5. Energy Environment and Safety in Workplace Total 29 courses, 538 employees participated, such
as Natural Gas Worker Training, Confined Space Training for Licenser, Confined Space Training for Controller,
Boiler Controller, Energy Saving Awareness, Safety Occupational Health and Working Environment, Chemical
Safety, Electrical Safety, Safety in the Use of Machinery, Fire Fighting and Annual Fire Drill which showed that
the Company gives precedence mainly to the employees’ health and safety.

The Company also sends some employees to attend the oversea training programs, to coordinate the
experience exchanged with the leading Industrial organizations, and also to attend public seminars and
conferences in order to gather the useful information for the Company regularly.

In addition, the Company has established channel for direct communications with the employees by
holding the Management-Meets-Employees meeting, at least, 2 times a year in order to give the employees
the explanations on the operation results including the ways on the Company’s management as well as the
opportunity in exchanging ideas and opinions between the Management and employees in order to lead to the
improvements, developments and creations of good relations between the Management and all employees
within the Organization.

In 2016, the Company organized the trainings to give explanations on the Company’s Code of Conduct
continuously in order to enable the employees to have correct understanding on and properly observe such
Code of Conduct in the same direction, in this respect, which emphasis was placed on the observations in
compliance with the Company’s Code of Ethics in 8 points including the channel in lodging complaints and
actions in responding to the complaints when received in the case where a performance in violation of the
Code of Conduct of the Company has been discovered.
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Good Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors is committed to operate the business in accordance with the principles of
good corporate governance and guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors
believes that corporate governance is an important factor that will bring not only success to its business,
in terms of effectiveness, disclosure and transparency, but also maximum benefit to its shareholders and
fairness to all stakeholders operations, and to nurture a sustainable growth to the firm. The Board of
Directors has established the corporate governance policy being the guideline of business operation for
directors, executives and employees of the Company. It has been disclosed on the Company’s website
www.crowseal.co.th, at Investor Relation section.

In 2012, The Corporate Governance of Listed Companies Survey Committee has developed the criteria of the
survey to comply with ASEAN CG Scorecard and best practice of international standards. Thus, the Company is
committed to the revised principles of good corporate governance by The Stock Exchange of Thailand, to attain
the highest international standards of good corporate governance, which are stated in 5 categories namely:

1. Rights of Shareholders

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

3. Role of Stakeholders

4. Disclosure and Transparency

5. Responsibilities of the Board

1. Rights of Shareholders

The Board of Directors recognizes shareholder’s rights by encouraging them to exercise their rights and avoid
violating those rights. ; basic rights of shareholders, right to obtain relevant and adequate information on the
Company in a timely manner and on a regular basis, right to participate and vote in the shareholder meetings
on any transactions that affect the Company. The Board of Directors shall operate not only in accordance
with the principles of corporate governance for listed companies of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, but also
realize to other rights of shareholders, which are more than specified in laws, listed in the Company’s website

www.crownseal.co.th in the Investor Relation section.
1.1 Basic Rights of Shareholder

The Board of Directors recognizes the basic rights of shareholders. We believe that our best effort
to exercise all policies and practices of the rights of shareholders mentioned herein are strictly complied
with fairness to all stakeholders, and also relevant rules, regulations, shall ensure our shareholders to

rely on and be confident to invest with the Company.

The Company shall encourage and facilitates all shareholders to exercise their rights as follows:
 Rights to buy or sell shares
+ Rights to receive adequate information in a timely manner and in an appropriate form for making

decisions
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« Rights to receive share certificates and rights to transfer shares
» Rights to participate and vote in the shareholder meetings, and make decisions on any changes in
importance policy of the Company or any issues that needed to be approved by shareholder meetings

such as amendments to the articles of association or memorandum of association of the Company,

capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.
 Rights to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint the external auditor
 Rights to express their opinions and ask questions related to the Company’s operation.
 Rights to vote by proxy
» In case the Company’s operation result has profits and carries no accumulated loss, the shareholders

have rights to share in profits of the Company.
1.2 Shareholders Meeting

In 2016, the Board of Directors has not only operated in accordance with the basic rights of shareholders,

but also supported the additional acts for shareholders as follows:

+ Schedule for shareholders’” meeting
The Board of Directors has a duty to call an Annual general meeting once a year within 4 months from
the end of fiscal year of the Company and it may call an Extraordinary meeting to discuss any other
important matters, which affects on the benefit of the shareholders. In 2016, the Company had called
the Annual General Meeting on April 28, 2016 at The Sukhothai Hotel, 13/3 South Sathorn Road,
Tungmahamek Sub District, Sathorn District, Bangkok.

The meeting place is considered on basis of the most convenient for transportation, and the size of meeting

room is also suitable for the numbers of shareholders.

« The Inuitation notice to the meeting

The Board of Directors recognizes the rights of shareholders to receive adequate information in a timely
basis and in a form appropriate for making decisions. The invitation notice to the meeting which contains
adequate information, such as, agenda which will be clearly defined whether which agenda is for
the information or for the consideration purpose. The supporting documents for each agenda
will include the opinions of the Board to facilitate the decision making as well. In 2016, an invitation
of the meeting was sent at least 14 days prior to the meeting. The invitation notice and supporting
documents were posted on the Company’s website, announced via the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s
website to inform the shareholders in advance for 30 days before the meeting, and also announced
in the daily newspapers consecutively for 3 days, not less than 3 days prior to the meetings.

The Company’s telephone number was also provided for any enquiry may need.

» Proxy to attend and vote in shareholders meeting
When shareholders could not attend a meeting in person, the Company shall encourage the
exercising of attending and voting rights by shareholders, at least by appointing their proxy or
the Company’s Independent Directors to vote on their behalf. The details of 5 Independent Directors of
the Company are entirely attached to the Notice of Annual General Meeting for their considerations.
The shareholders can direct their vote guideline by fill in the proxy “form KOR” which has been sent
to the shareholders as an attached document with the invitation notice, or the shareholders can

download it from the Company’s website.
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 Preparation for shareholders meeting and Registration
The Company provides one hour registration prior to convening the meeting, a computerized registration

and vote forms shall be facilitated properly, as well as the revenue stamp shall also be free serviced

« Attending shareholders meeting by the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the shareholder meetings, all directors shall attend
every shareholder meeting. The shareholders shall be given an opportunity to make comments
and inquires by the Chairman. The minutes of shareholder meetings shall be prepared where all enquiry
and important comments shall be recorded. In 2016, 11 directors from the total of 13 directors, all
executives, legal representatives and external auditors attended the annual general meeting of

shareholders in order to receive shareholders’ opinion and answer their questions.

1.3 An Extraordinary Meeting

Apart from the Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors may convene an interim meeting called

“an extraordinary meeting” to discuss any other matter proposed for approval by the shareholders. In

addition, shareholders may request in writing to the Board of Directors to call for an extraordinary meeting

by specifying the matters to be considered. The Board of Directors shall call the extraordinary meeting as

requested by shareholders within 1 month after receiving the notice of shareholders.

2.Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company recognizes the equitable treatment of shareholders in order to encourage the confidence of

shareholders to invest in the Company.

84

The Company has encouraged equitable treatment of shareholders as follows:

2.1

2.2

23

24

25

2.6

The right of the votes in the meeting, given by the Company depends on the number of Company’s
shares- one share one vote.

The Company’s website has been used for facilitating shareholders to reach the Company’s information
thoroughly, adequately and timely. The minor shareholders shall also have an opportunity to
propose an agenda for shareholders meeting and nominate any person to be elected as the Director of
the Board in advance, the criteria and process of which has been publicized on the Company’s website.
Telephone service with Company Secretary Officer shall also be provided for shareholders or interested
person to call for more information.

The matters discussed at the shareholder meetings shall be in the sequence as given in the invitation
notice, any matter which is not noticed prior to shareholders, shall not be discussed in the meetinsg.
The shareholders have the right to give all of the votes they have to an individual, or a eroup for
an election of the Company’s Directors. The votes of each shareholder could not allocate more or
less to nominees. The score voted shall be put in order from the highest score down to the latest
ones, the individuals who get higher score shall be appointed as directors as per the number of
Director(s) to be elected in that time.

The Company encourages voting by use of a polling card for each matter in the agenda. A polling card
especially used when shareholders wish to vote ‘No’, or do not wish to make their votes. This practice
also brings more transparency and be inspected for inspection.

The Company has a preventive measure of unfair using insider information by related persons. The

Directors and executives include their spouse and minor children who have the change in the Company’s
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shares owner they have to immediately inform to the Company Secretary Officer before the information
shall be reported further to The Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission within 3 working
days from the date of transaction, sell-purchase or transfer. In addition, the Directors and Executives or insider

department, who are closed to the Company’s internal data, are supposed not to make advantage for

themselves or their relatives and not to disclose any information to outsider or unrelated persons before
the important information is publicized.

3.Role of Stakeholders

The Company recognizes with due care to the rights of stakeholders as well as other concerned parties including
shareholders, customers, trading partners, competitors, creditors, employees and therefore communities and
environment where the Company operates and the society at large. The Company shall set a clear policy on
fair treatment for each and every stakeholder. The rights of stakeholders that are established by laws or through

mutual agreements are to be respected.

Shareholders : The Company is committed to present itself as a high professional representative
to maximize benefit and satisfaction for our shareholders. Conducting business
efficiently with transparency is able to create trust and confidence amongst its
shareholders by considering the Company’s long term growth and appropriate

levels of sustained returns.

Customers : The Company is committed to maximize satisfaction to our customers with
right to-order, high quality products at reasonable price and on-time delivery
service. The Company shall be a proactive agent who is willing to give consultation,
solve problems and complaint, keep strictly our customer’s confidential and

business contract.

Trading Partners : The Company shall treat our trading partners equally and honestly in accordance
with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade law. The commitment
to disclose all necessary information, be transparency and fair, in all aspects

of business transactions including purchasing procedure.

Competitors . The Company has commitment to play fair game of business competition in
accordance with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade law. The
Company encourages fair and free-trading policies, not monopoly. The Company

will not use the illegal information and defame competitors.

Creditors : The Company has commitment to follow the financial contracts we have with our
creditors.
Employees . The Company realizes the importance of the Company’s employees.

All employees shall be treated equally and fairly without discrimination on race,
religious or gender, in accordance with Labor Law, rules and regulations,
receive appropriated compensation as well as the safety work place and
sanitary. In addition, Human Resources Development plan has been invested
for them continuously along with the Company’s business development.
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Community & Environment : TheCompany realizes the importance of natural resources and environment, thus
the policies on environmental control management, has been strictly conducted
to ensure reasonable usage of all resources and comply with relevant
laws, rules and regulations. Pollution prevention is also the important
issue which the Company concerned in every step of works, in order
to prevent the effect on all staff and communities Also, inorder to support
the mentioned policy, the Company has preceded the Corporate Social
Responsibility activity, CSR DAY, to promote the employee of the
organization about CSR.

Anti-Corruption Action : In 2016, the Company has signed the declaration in the Collective Action
Coalition of Thai Private Sector against Corruption with the objectives
of being a part of society to ease of solving corruption problems of Thailand
and to lift up the Company’s Good Corporate Governance level to gain
shareholders and investors’ acceptance and trustworthiness. This will
encourage doing clean business in Thailand and enhance the trustworthiness
in honesty of the Company including to prevent and control corruption risk,
and the impact on the Company’s image. To ensure that the Company’s
action in Collective Action Coalition of Thai Private Sector against Corruption
will be efficient and achieve target as planned. The committee of CAC Project,
the subcommittee for reviewing anti-corruption measures, and the
subcommittee for determining anti-corruption measures were set up,
through enhancing all units to take part in the comments expression and
set up the anti-corruption guidelines and measures to be practiced in
the Company. The Company planned to submit the request for the certificate
from the Collective Action Coalition of Thai Private Sector against Corruption
Committee by the 2" quarter of 2017.

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors ensures that all important information relevant to the Company, both financial and
non-financial : corporate governance policy and environmental policy are normally publicized via The Stock
Exchange of Thailand and Company’s website, annual statements (form 56-1) and annual reports. Furthermore,
The Company has designated various media and activities, the shareholders, analyst and investors can asked
for the Company’s visit or having a meeting with Executives/Senior Executive Officers timely, to disseminate
corporate information to outsiders such as shareholders and investors. In addition, shareholders are able to
reach to information needed through calling to shareholder-administrated unit concerned in order to help them
understand the Company and its business.

The Company recognizes that all information, is disclosed accurately, completely, transparently on a timely
basis that are trustworthy and adequately for shareholders to make decision, so the Company has appointed
the Company Secretary Office Manager, Company Secretary Office, to be responsible for and perform ‘Investor
relations function’ with care to communicate with outsiders such as shareholders, investors, analysts.

The Company’s news and information has been communicated via the following channels:
« The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website is www.set.or.th
« Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website is www.sec.or.th
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« The Crown Seal Plc.’s website is www.crownseal.co.th
e Company and Executives Visit Activity.

 Contact directly via e-mail and telephone.

The shareholders and persons who need more information can contact directly to:

The contact Person : Company Secretary Office Manager

Address : Crown Seal Public Company Limited
5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Tumbol Prachatipat Amphur Thunyaburi,
Pathumtani, 12130

Tel. : (662)-533-0450 ext. 638
Fax. : (662)-974-1118
E-mail . napaporn@crownseal.co.th

Inside Information Control

The Company shall determinate for executives and staff especially staff who are data users, not to disclose
or publicize internal information or data for the sake of one’s own benefit, buy or sell shares, transfer data for
buying or selling shares. Internal data control has to be strictly managed to maximize disclosure and transparency,

including fairness of corporate.
Internal Control

The Board of Directors shall ensure an effective and sufficient internal control system that covers every aspect
of its operation; financial operations, corporate performance. The Internal Audit Office is established to ensure
that all operation units of the Company are in compliance with operating procedures, in addition, Internal Audit
also assess the effectiveness and adequateness of the internal control system, since its works independently, it
can provide adequate control, transparent and can be the balanced mechanisms against improper acts that could
give negative impact to the shareholders investments in the Company and its assets. The Internal Audit directly

report to the Audit Committee.

5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
Sub-Committees
1. The Structure of the Board of Directors

1.1 The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of at least 7 directors and not more than 15 directors with excellent
qualification and experience relevant to the Company’s business. The qualifications of the Board of Directors
must comply with the Act of Public Company Limited, the Regulation of the Security Exchange Commission and
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of at least 5 Independent Directors

as of December 31, 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 13 Directors:

(1) 2 Executive Directors
(2) 11 Non-Executive Directors
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The Chairman of the Board of Directors is not the President.

The name list of the Board of Directors and its responsibilities are referred in Management Structure
section.

1.2 Sub-Committees
The sub-committee consists of
1.2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall consist of 3 Independent Committee members with at least one member
who is knowledgeable in finance and accounting, an Internal Audit Office manager being a secretary.
The qualifications of the Audit Committee shall reflect The Capital Market Supervisory Board’s
requirement on qualifications of independence announcement. As of December 31, 2016, the Audit
Committee consists of 3 Independent Directors who possess high professional and ethical standards
with experience and expertise in internal audit. They are able to be responsible for monitoring and
assessing the adequacy of the internal control, then expressing their opinions with regard to the benefits
of the Company to the Board of Directors. The names of the Audit Committee and its responsibility are
listed and referred in the issue of Management Structure section.

1.2.2 Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee is a sub-committee of management, shall consist of Senior Executive
Officers and Executive Officers, and is chaired by President. The roles and responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee are listed and referred in the issue of Management Structure section.

2. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The meeting of the Board of Directors must be held at least 6 times a year and be scheduled through the
year in advance to ensure that all directors shall manage their time to attend the meetings. In case of needed,
a meeting shall be convened. The agenda and attached documents for Board Meetings must be prepared and
determined clearly whether for information or consideration, and shall be submitted to the Board of Directors not
less than 7 days before the meetings to ensure smooth meeting procedure with clear decisions and resolutions.
In addition, related Executives should attend the Board meeting to present information and express opinions
which benefit to the meeting.

All directors shall be allocated appropriate time for free discussion and to express their opinions, with
regard to the benefit and fairness of the Company’s shareholders and related persons. In case there are any
benefits or significances related in such agenda for interested directors or executives, they shall not participate in
such agenda unless the meeting goes on to next agenda. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall take the
minutes and must prepare a draft meeting report within 14 days after a meeting, then presents to the Board of
Directors for consideration before submitting to the Board of Directors in the next Board Meeting for its approval
and acknowledgement. The Chairman of the Board or the Chairman of a meeting and the Secretary of the Board
of Directors must sign for acknowledgement on the minute, then keep filing for further review and inspection
when needed.

In 2016, The Board Meetings was convened 7 times. The meeting-attendance report of the Board of Directors
is shown in the issue of Management Structure section.
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3.

Performance Assessment
Performance Assessment on the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has arranged the performance assessment on the Board of Directors once a year to
allow each director to jointly make an assessment on overall performance of the Board of Directors and make
a self assessment on individual performance to review the performance, problems and difficulties during

the year for more efficiency.

In 2016, the Secretary of the Board of Directors sent the overall and individual performance assessment on
the Board of Directors forms to every Director and each director is independent to complete such assessment forms.
When the assessment forms are completed, they will be returned to the secretary of the Board for collection
and conclusion and preparation of report to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement in the meeting of
the Board of Directors.

Performance assessment on the Board of Directors as a whole

Performance assessment on the Board of Directors as a whole is made on the criterion divided into 6
following aspects:
1. Structure and Qualification of the Board of Directors
. Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors
. Meeting of the Board of Directors

2
3
4. Duties performed by the Board of Directors
5. Relationship with the management

6

. Self-improvement of the Directors and development of the executives
Performance assessment on individual Director

Performance assessment on individual Director is made on the criterion divided into 4 following aspects:
1. Roles, duties and responsibilities undertaken as the Director

2. Duties performed as the Director

3. Relationship with the management

4. Self-improvement as the Director
Performance Evaluation of the President

The Board of Directors has evaluated the performance of the President every year ended by the criterion

divided into 2 sections :

Section | : Status of Achievements

Section Il :  Performance Measures divided into 10 following aspects:
1. Leadership
2. Strategic planning
3. Actions in accordance with the strategy

4. Financial planning and performance
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. Relationship with the Board of Directors
. Relationship with third party
Personnel management and relationship

Succession plan

© o N o U

Product and service understanding

10. Personal qualification
4. Remuneration

The levels of Directors’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of listed companies in The Stock Exchange
of Thailand which have the similar size of business and being in the same industrial sector. The Company had
joined the Compensation of Listed Company Survey with the Institute of Thai Directors every 2 years so as
that the Directors can use the information for determining Directors’ remuneration appropriately which will be
proposed for approval by an Annual Shareholders Meeting every year. Also consider the duties and responsibilities
of the Directors concerned and the Company’s performance. For directors who are assigned more works and

responsibilities, such as the Audit Committee, shall receive additional remunerations appropriately.

The executives’ remunerations shall be considered and approved with regard of the policies set by the Board
of Directors. The levels of executives’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of companies in the same
industry taking into consideration of the duties and responsibilities, individual performance, the Company’s

performance, with fairness, to motivate the high professional and standard ones to work with us longer.

The remunerations for Directors and executives in 2016 are referred in the issue of Management Structure

section.
Directors and Top Management Nomination and Appointment
(1) Independent Directors

As required by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET), the Company has defined the Board of Directors’ independence as follows:

1. Holding shares not more than 1 percent of the total shares with voting rights of the Company,
major shareholder, or controlling person including related persons.

2. Not being or having previously been a director who takes part in the management, an employee, a staff or
an advisor of the Company unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years
before an appointment.

3. Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws such as parents, spouse sibling and child
of its executives, its major shareholder, its controlling persons, or such other person who will be nominated
to take up the position of executives or controlling persons of the Company or its subsidiary.

4. Not holding business relationship with the Company, major shareholders, or persons holding controlling
power of the Company, which may hinder the exertion of his/her independent discretion, and not being
or having ever been ashareowner with significant implication, or person holding controlling power of the
person holding business relationship with the Company, major shareholder,or person holding controlling
power of the Company unless having vacated from said tenure for not less than two years before
appointment which value < 50 MB / <3% of the Net Tangible Asset (NTA) up to the greater number.
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(2)

5. Not being or having previously been an auditor of the Company or the major shareholders, or the controlling
persons and not being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling persons, or a managing
partner of the audit office which being the auditor of the Company unless the termination of being insuch
position had occurred at least 2 years before an appointment.

6. Not being or having previously been any professional service provider including legal advisor and financial
advisor who receives more than Baht 2 million annually from the Company, major shareholders, or
controlling person and also being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling persons,
or a managing partner of such professional service provider unless the termination of being in such position
had occurred at least 2 years before an appointment.

7. Not being a director appointed as a representative of the Company’s directors, a major shareholder or a
shareholder who is related to the Company’s major shareholders.

8. Not undertaking a business with similar nature or significant competition with the Company, or not being
a major partner of a partnership, or a director who take part in management, an employee, a staff, an
advisor with regular payroll, or owning shares more than 1 percent of all shares with voting right of other
companies with similar business or significant competition with the Company.

9. Not having any other characteristics that prevent the exertion of independent opinion and not having
prohibited characteristics as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s regulations.

Directors and Top Management Nomination
The selection of Directors

A part of the Board of Directors consists of representatives from major shareholders; Nippon Closures
Company Limited and Toyo Seikan Company Limited who nominate Japanese directors to be appointed at
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which passed the resolution of the Board of Directors. Another
part includes the qualified persons nominated by the group of beverage industry who have regular business
with the Company and qualified persons in other fields. All of the Directors are qualified, knowledgeable,
and experienced in various fields which have been useful to the Company.

In the nomination and appointment of the Directors, each person must qualify the Public Company
Act, the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand including the Company’s
policies and the principles of the Good Corporate Governance.

. Having the knowledge, abilities and experience to be beneficial on the Company’s businesses.
. Having a honesty, an ethic and responsibilities, decision making on principle and reasonably.

. Having leadership, vision and independence in making decision.

. Able to devote sufficient time to monitor the Company’s operation

O A W N =

. Having the correct qualifications and having no forbidden characteristics according to the law,
Limited Public Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, and the Principle of Good Corporate
Governance of the Company such as :

(1) be sui juries ;

(2) Not a bankrupt, incapable or incompetent person

(3) Not having been imprisoned by the judgment of a court which is final for an offence related
to property committed with dishonest intent;

(4) Have never been dismissed or removed from government service or a government organization or
a government agency in punishment for dishonesty in performing their duties.

(5) There shall be no restrictions to prevent a person to become a director regarding the rules and

regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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In event of a vacancy of the Director other than the retirement by rotation, the Board of Directors will
select a qualified person with no forbidden characteristics as per stated in the announcement of the Securities
Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the legal specification of the Public Company to
fill the position of the Directors for the next Board of Directors’ meeting. The Director appointed to fill a
vacant position will only serve the remainingterm of that vacant position.

The Minor Shareholders’ Right in the Appointment of Directors

In order to provide the opportunity to the minor shareholders to propose the Shareholders meeting agendas
and nominate a person to be the Director in advance. Therefore, the Company had announced the criteria and
process of which through via the Company’s website and informed to the Stock Exchange of Thailand to ensure
that the shareholders have been informed. However, the Company gives an opportunity to the shareholders in
inquiry and suggestion prior to the date of the meeting by calling or sending questions to the Company Secretary
Officer at all time.

In 2016, the Company had provided the opportunity to shareholders for proposing the shareholders meeting
agendas and nominated persons to be elected as the Company’s directors during October 3, 2016 to December
30, 2016 but no any proposal.

Appointment, Removal, or termination of Directorial positions is summarized as follows:

1. In nomination of Directors to replace Directors who complete their terms, the Board of Directors is responsible
to, recruit a qualified candidate who possesses no prohibited characteristics as stated in the Announcement
of the Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, as well as the Law of
Public Company, and propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting. The Company gives right and opportunity to all
shareholders to nominate and appoint any person to be a director at the meeting via through the Company’s
website, this rigsht has not been exercised.

2. The Shareholders’ Meeting elects Directors by way of a majority vote, according to the following rules:

(1)  Each shareholder has one vote for each share held

(2)  Eachshareholder has atotal number of votes equivalent to the total number of shares held, wherein one share
carries one vote

(3)  Each shareholder is required to exercise all his votes in voting for one or several persons as Directors

(4) Candidates receiving the most votes in successively descending order will be appointed as Directors
according to, but not exceeding, the number of Directors to be appointed on that particular occasion

(5) In the event that two candidates secure an equal number of votes for the final position of Director,
the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote

3. Directors may also leave their posts due to fatality; resign prior to the completion of term (Effective as of the
date the Company has received the Director’s resignation letters); the Court or the Shareholders’ Meeting passes
a resolution to remove a Director according to Section 76 of the Public Company Act B.E. 2535; or a Director lacks
the qualifications as specified in the Section 68 of the Public Company Act B.E. 2535.

4. In case the Director was vacated other than vacating their office by rotation, the remaining Directors will
select a qualified candidate who does not possess any prohibited characteristics as a replacement at the following
Board of Directors’ Meeting with a vote of not less than three quarters of the remaining Directors except the said
Directorial position has a period of less than 2 months to completion of term. The replaced Director may serve

only the period of time remaining to completion of such term.
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The Development of Directors and Management

The Company promotes and facilitates training and the continuing education for related persons with the
Corporate Governance system such as, Directors, Management and Corporate Secretary, This enables continuous
improvement to work performance. In addition, in case there is the new director(s), the Company will arrange
the orientation and plant visit to educate them on the Company business regarding the Company’s operation
overview, the development of business and organization, the good corporate governance policy and code of
conduct.

Furthermore, the related laws and regulations including the other useful information are prepared as the manual
handbook for the new director to well perform the duty.

In addition, so as to ensure that the capabilities and experience of the Board of Directors can be contributed
maximum benefit for the Company, there is no limitation to the number of times a Director may be re-elected,
nor any limitations in terms of a retirement age.

In 2016, the Company Secretary and Internal Audit Office Manager were arranged by the Company to participated
in the Anti-Corruption: The Practice Guide (ACPG) course conducted by The Institute of Thai Directors to apply
the knowledge for anti-corruption work in the Company.

Governance of associated companies

The Board of Directors has established the mechanism for overseeing and controlling the administration
of associated companies by appointing the President and/or Independent directors to be the Company’s
representatives performing as the Director according to its stake in such associated companies.

Internal Information Control

The Board of Directors has a preventive measure of unfair using inside information by related persons. The
Directors, management and also employees who are closed to the Company’s internal data, are supposed not
to make advantage for themselves or their relatives and not to disclose any information to outsider or unrelated
persons before the important information is publicized.

Moreover, the Directors and management include their spouses and minor children who have changed in the
Company’s shares owner have to inform the Securities and Exchange Commission within three working days from
the date of buying, purchasing, transferring and receiving the Company’s shares and inform the Company soonest.
In the case whereby there’s any transaction with the Company during the year, the Directors and management
have to inform to the Company whether such transaction may lead to conflict of interests or not. These measures
are to ensure the transparency and fairness of the Company. Additionally, the Directors and management also

realize the seriousness of penalty for insider trading.
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Shareholding by the Directors and the management

The Company annually disclosed shareholding and changes in the Company shares of the Directors and the
management both directly and indirectly in the annual report. Details are under the heading “Personal information
of the Company directors and management members” on report on changes in securities holding by the Company

directors and management members at December 31, 2016.
The policy to report possible conflict of interests by the Directors

The Board of Directors set up the policy requiring the Company directors and management, which abide by
the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board no. TorJor.2/2552 in order to provide the information for
the Company to follow the connected transaction regulations which have possible conflict of interests and lead
to the Company’s benefit transfers, and benefit for overseeing the directors and management to do fiduciary

duty. The Directors and management have to proceed as follows:

1. Directors, management, and related persons shall fill with the Company a report on interest according to
the form set by the Company’s Board of Directors and submit to the Company Secretary.

2. The new appointed directors and management shall report on his interest and submit to the Company
Secretary within 30 days after an appointment.

3. Directors and management shall fill with the Company a report on his interest and related persons’ interest at
the end December every year sending to the Company Secretary until the Company’s directors and

management resignation.

During 2016, the Company director and management members strictly followed the said policy, by not taking
part in such meeting agenda having possible conflict of interests. Moreover, the Company facilitated information
disclosure pertaining to any conflict of interests by the Company director or management members, via the letter

informing the meeting’s resolution to the news system of The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Auditor Remuneration

1.) Audit fee
Audit fee payable to Office of auditor shown as details below:
- Fiscal year 2014 equal to 840,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2015 equal to 840,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2016 equal to 890,000 Baht

2.) Non audit fee
Service fee for observe and certify the destruction of registered products which under quality standard payable to

Office of auditor shown as details below:

- Fiscal year 2014 equal to 20,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2015 equal to 30,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2016 equal to 20,000 Baht
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Social Responsibility

The Company’s Board of Directors adheres to business operation aligned with ethics and the Company’s
Codes of Conduct. Focusing on Fairness, Honesty, Transparency and concern to all stakeholders in order to drive
the Company to the corporate with high social responsibility and develop itself to the sustainable organization

covering 8 core subjects as follows:

Fair Operating Practices
Anti-Corruption

Respect for Human Rights
Fair Treatment of Employees
Consumer Responsibilities
Environmental Conservation

Community Involvement and Social Development

O N o B WD

Research and Development from Social Responsibility Operations

The Company published all relevant data on the Company website www.crownseal.co.th on the Environment

& Social page topic of Social Responsibility.

96 s1euUsEInt 2559
Annual Report 2016



NISAIUANMYTULAEMISUSHISTAONISAYIUIEEA

1.msauaunely

AnzNIIINIYRILTIMY Ilviauddnsesruunmsmuaunelustdelilos Tnsueumnglinuznssunisnsoaey
Fauszneufenssunsdase imthilaeumuliuigve dszuunsmvauaeluiivanzan uaviiussavsaa lned
dtinsanaeuneluiiianufudaszandisuimsnenunssennznssunimmsaaeuimihiiussiduniuiiiome
vosszuunMsmuauneluvesuiTn Welviiuleinidny fszuudeyauaznsneaumanisiudigndesuazifofold
fimsufoanungsadeu ulsune nszuiunsianuresuime ngunsuastetaduiiieidesiunsdiiiugsia nindau
1830387 fegasuaznisldnindduiinisaiuay guaiusnunduegaf nisaiiuauresuiena Wuldedis
fiuszansnin sastsdinnslimineinsedaduan nsUftRouldsudunsmuununy sonedasiuinglsvasduay
WhnnguaauTen

TunsUssuanenssnIsATaaouassi 1/2560 WaTufl 15 nuanius 2560 Tneflanznssumansrvaeuidnsisdsze
AsuTs 3 viw Idfinsandeununalssiiunuiismevesssuumsnuaungluesuiing muwuuiidinuslasdiine
AENTINNSHTUNENTNEuAERAIANENTSNG (n.8.0.) FednvhauunAnues COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) Usznausie 5 eafusznoundn uay 17 ndnmsdes Sanszdfey el

1. amwwmé’aumimuqu

. Insivueidevied Wushia nagns weuau saudsdimvaneg uazddTananisiiiunuegnedniay

. finsdalassaivesdnsuaranenslsdudyregnedniau munzan uardennaadiun1sadugsnavesusene
sufamsinhlunssannmihfionu iefmuaseazBeanthiieruiuinveu uasanuautRvesfufianuluusiay
AR NATUNIY

. fnsdaviulenionsiiuguaiansii uazasseussamesuism Wuaednualdnus eldiluuuUfuRva
lunmsaiiugsia

. Insiauanuianuaunsavemtinauegiate

2. MsUsliuAULEYS
. fnsusiidannssunsuimsaudsaduanednuaidnes Sadidanslugdulsesu wasduimsssiugaes
Feeineg Wunssuns wasimununumvthiiesnsdniau
. dnvhgilonmsuimsanudes Weiduwumensuitaliessdnau wagldimuandninasilunsyszidiuaia
Boausazszauliegnamunzay TnefinnsanlemainuasnansenusaiidusnGuuay sty
. SnvhuNuLavINAsNSANIsANLEDT SaumtInesnns raenadestuladumnudsstanielusaynieuen
fifinswasuntas

-
3. NANIINAIUAN
. fmstwuaulovie Bidumdunmsuiifou Snsdavhusun fd e uazsulszanalsysd dmsu
yheaeag weliilainaufoinuduldedaiussaninm uazussgmudmaneiisald
- fisudovufifiau srunanseud@nmualiogsdnaunasiuaednuaidnys lnefinnsnumuwazysuuseli
donadeatuanznsaliiuAsunias Tamfansaouniu manssnugentaynsiiaening welinisufiRa
Wulvegrammnzan Tsda fienuagosn uazaneldinismuaumeluiifiieme
- msvhgansaufuyeraiiAsfostuuiing Suoranfnnudnudommadsslond gansaufiieduasdowin
Fupounsufimusndou uastormuaieg Aieatesesagniowmungrmneaiiounssyhiuyarameuen

Uit ehdu $1dn o) Q7
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



4. AMUTLUUFTEUINALBEAN SRR TUBYA
. Falvilsruutoyauasreminsfomsianislusaznisusnesdng Inennineiieatosanansosudoyamsaume
fpgansuiiu gnded viuan uasiisane dmsuldlunisufifiau uasdszneunsdndule
. fimsUszquanznssMIUTINY uazUszyuineudms Wemeneaulovie fiemdunsuimsnuuazdoya
FudulunmsuftRnuunginiiiiedesedsaiane
. U3t fimsihszuunu AP Whanldlumstuiindeya Ussmnanansufinu davhessuiiediesyideya

'
=

yansiu savidlironiuneg Business Objects Tunssenuna dwilvmtnauufoinuldedisasan gnies
wiugn saenuiuIMsTiteyatifisame dmsumsiesed ieusneumsdndulasgisminduaziiuszansam

. fiszuuihmanaasndevessuasaumatardeya Mvanza iisame naemauiimsimunuudsesgndy
fuansaume oaananssnunnanisaiiviiliszuungavsinvieiinmnuidemesesyuu uagldfinmsdndou
wrwdrsewnidudulszdmny

- wilnauagldsudeyatasiiuseuu Intranet dauypranisusnaunsasuitoyanumaiulesd vesu3eny
www crownseal.co.th @aldtnunsiansananugnies asuiu nmhsnuiilduseunng sesuiinyeu
Foyaludutug ué

5. n13AanNLAUIZIIUNE
a £ 1 a Id o A Y o o ddyw a a a wa
. fnsdauszguiheuimsdulssdmnbien waslimhduiviananuy uldlunmsfianunanisuimsnuiasufoa
Nursmtnnunszau ieliuladlasudunuiulusudhmnewazununuiinmualy Tnesenulinussgy
AENITUNITUTEN NS Uegeaane mnuan1saiiuauwanssliandimvung fvsegus sednaiuuiay
waunmnglidheudmsluandunsuilosaziunsenuliauenssunisussne nsu Tunisusvyuaswoly
. dnavddnasaaesunigludu et iaduauuanenssunsesasulunisiiuguassuunisaugun ety

AruznssuNsAsIRaey ldfimsanasumunaystidiurufismevesssuumuaungluvesitng feszidulee
feuivns saaeumunsnuramsUftinunsnaeuvesdinasadeunisly suuuNIIIFeUUTEIT
fanuifuinusems fsvvunmsmuauneluiifisanosnzauiuanmnssifiugsia duaduliuiony dufugsi
I¢ognesmdu waranunsoquasnumindaunaslivinennsegraiussaninm el liwudounniesitfianssardy
Renfuszuunsauguaely

wenanil aeutyinieuenvesuisng fie UsEn dlnau e S1in Fadudnsisaeusunmsiulssdondyd
U 2559 luinuteunnsesiianszdrfgneriussuuamuaunelusudnduaznsiuvaauieny

2. nMsasdaunglu

AuznssuMsmsIRde Ui ugualinisufifnuvesdinasisasunelulinnududass Wesssu uasdinnudeney
panassIndnnmsaneseunslu wasielinsufiRnuesdiinasnaeundludmududasy aunsovimihd
paaounardnalfetadiuil SeimuslisenunanisnsiaeulagnssionmznsIINSATINEBY WarT1BNUALITY
Msudmsiileussq inguszasduaznagnsvesuTTny nssiogdnnsivg

Tl 2559 AaznssuNInTIREeUVRIUIEN ldRarsamumukaslimnuiureunginsvesdinasiaaeuniely
ieLdumsatiuayuuardauadulinsufoRnuasieasuniely aeandesiuinnsgiuaina angnssunsasTaaoy Jald
fnsamumusuamhiuasanuiuinvey anuiudassvesditinsaaeunisly seandedialunisufifom
naaoulldsumnuile aduayunniuimsuasifumsnsiaynsesiu weannszuumseuaungluvesuiem 19

il eounssunansaeuvesuisne lRsalnuiuseulunisutet Tende Bndheddamsdiinnseaounislu
safemaiannligisaiuma fdinsfnw Ussaunisal Whiumseusufivmnzan emefunsuftRnth it
nsnsmaouneluresuiine Tngldfiarsanusits wemsumw aulsyans udnnisdriinmasavaeunielu Haus
¥ 2550 Ineilnandinenisine Usematedasiifteuasdszaunsainisinny

98  swwnuuszil 2559
Annual Report 2016



dtaneaeungluresudve ldiduianssunmadeunuunumngaaoulsy i tadldTunseyiRnnauenssuns
AT19d0U aeatliun1snsavaeunsufURnuvemtlsnuie Tudussuunisauaunigly nsujdRaungunos
Formua dotsduvesuitvy iiengmnefiAsadessineg wieslduuzihfudmstaziiuiaveunnenu eusulgs
sruveliiiseaniammanndu uasfanunanisuiuusudlomadoiausuurangnaaounisly wasdaoutiyd
ogsasiiaLe uasTonuRTIrnaznIIINInTaaeullulsEdmnlasina

3. NNFUTUITIANITAMULELS

AZNTIUNSTEIUSTEN Y Wanudidgludesnisudmsaudes Tnglddaliiiauznssunisuinisainuies
(Risk Management Committee) ¥iuthilunisiwunulevns Taquszasd nsounsduiuaulunsuimsnnuides
Uszfiupnnuidessing forintunndadenely wazdasoneuen sudsmuauuanicdumsuins wavdams
andsslveglusziufisensuld Inefifuimsusasmhsnulugiuinveulumsussifiuwasudmsdanseuides el
nsfdunuresuitng vssgaandmneiifvuali

TnefdninasrvaeuneluynntnAfnn1un1sadun1saLLRuInnIsANUEsadUsS e SUTRAR UNaUTETIUYDY
SEAUAMILALINAINITIANIT HaUIaURADANENISUNIIATIERULBRISN ALY naus1euliAEnIIUNIS
USENT NITUMALSUNIIU

Uit ehdu $1in Gmsw) - QQ
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



Internal Control and Risk Management

1.Internal control

The Board of Directors has put its emphasis on the internal control system continuously and has assigned
the Audit Committee consisting of independent director to review whether the Company has the suitable
and effective internal control system while the internal audit office which is independent from the management
is required to directly report to the Audit Committee, to assess the sufficiency of the internal control system
of the Company to ensure that the Company has the accuracy and credible information system and financial
report, and performed incompliance with rules, regulations, policies and working process of the Company, laws
and requirements related to the business operation, and that the properties of the Company are actually
in existence and they are controlled, maintained and put under proper care and that the operation of
the Company is undertaken efficiently with resources utilized economically and is conducted in accordance with

the plan aligning with the objectivesand targets of the Company.

In the meeting of the Audit Committee no. 1/2017 held on 15" February 2017, with attendance of all three
Audit Committees. They had considered reviewing the result of the sufficiency of the Company’s internal control
system in accordance with the form provided by the SEC Office adopted from the concept of COSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) consisting of 5 major components and 17 minor
principles with major content as follows:

1. Control Environment:
e The Company specify the term of the visions, mission, strategy, and plans. In order to reach the success
of Company’s goal.
» The Company clearly set up the organization chart according to the proper responsibility. This include
job description, scope of works and qualification in each position.
+ The Board of Directors adopt the policy in accordance with the principles of Good Corporate Governance
and corporate ethic.

« The Company consistency provide the opportunity to develop knowledge and skill for all employees.

2. Risk Management

» The Company established the Risk Management Committee by having the President as the Chairman and
the Management as the committee, which have clearly role in operation.

+ Having the manual in Risk management to clearly set the guidance on practice and the criterion for risk
assessment in each level are established properly through the consideration of the opportunity to incur
(Likelihood) and the impact of the loss in both financial and no financial

 Giving an approval for the Risk management plans and measures as well as evaluate the efficiency of Risk
management, review, revise plans to cope with the change of risk factors both internal and external

that may cause.

3. Activities Control
« The Company has guidelines policy for operation in all departments. There are the action plan, key performance

indicators, and the annual budget to ensure the effectiveness of operation in reaching the goals.
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« The Company is given written procedure and authority manual of each management levels and regularly
review them to be in line with the changing situation. It is to assure that the operation is transparent
and flexible under appropriate and adequacy internal control.

« In case if a connected transaction with the Company’s related person whom may lead to conflict
of interests. That connected transaction shall comply with rules, regulations and related laws as same as

any other transaction.

4.Information and Communication

e The Company set up various channels for communications both internal and external. All concerning
parties can access to accurate, updated and adequate information for their operation and decision-making.

« The Board of Director’s meetings and the management meetings are regularly meet in order to deploy
the policy, working guidelines and share necessary information to involved officers.

e The Company has introduced SAP system to record data and analyze the operating result. Also prepare
for a financial report by using the Business Objects software which facilitates more accurate work for the
officers. To support the faster and more efficient decision-making for the management.

« The Company set up security system of internet usage securely and sufficiently. Having contingency plan
to reduce the effect of system shut down that may cause damage to the whole system. We also go over
and practice the contingency plan yearly.

« The employees can access data for information via internet, while outsider can receive information from
the Company’s website www.crownseal.co.th which has been proved by the responsible department

manager or assigned officers.

5.Monitoring and Evaluation
« The management team meets monthly in order to monitor the performance of employees in all levels by
their key performance indicator. To ensure the operation is following the plan and reaching the goal, by
regularly reporting to the Board of Directors. When the results appear differently from the goal,
the committee will have some questions, suggestions and assign the management to resolve the problem.
Then report for the up- coming meeting.
 Established the internal audit office to support the Audit Committee performing duty on supervision of

the internal control

The Audit Committee had considered reviewing the result of the sufficiency of the Company’s internal control
system conducted by the management and had reviewed the report on the operation result Internal Audit as
yearly audit plan. It was of opinion that the Company has sufficient internal control for the business which
encouraged the Company’s business smooth operation, and helped the Company to look after its properties and
to use its resources efficiently. They found no significant non-conforming matter related to the internal control

system.

In addition, the external auditor of the Company, E.Y Office Co., Ltd. which is the certified public accountant
for the financial statements for the year 2016 has found no significant non-conforming matter related to

the internal control system on accounting and finance of the Company.

2. Internal audit
The Audit Committee assigned to supervise the internal audit office is independent, fair and competent in

accordance with the internal audit professional standard and to maintain the independence of the internal audit
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office to conduct examination and check-and-balance duties so it is assigned to directly report to the Audit
Committee and make a report related to management to achieve the objectives and strategies of the Company

directly to the President.

In 2016, the Audit Committee had considered reviewing the charter of Internal Audit Office to encourage the
operation of internal audit to be align with the International Standard for the professional Practice of Internal
Auditing through reviewing the authorities, duties and responsibilities , independence of Audit Committee Office
to reduce the limitation of auditing of Internal Audit Office in cooperation and support from executives and all

managements to continuously improvement of internal control system.

The Audit Committee of the Company has approved the appointment, rotation and termination of employment
of the internal audit manager, developed to possess adequate education and experience, and provided proper
training course related to internal audit work of the Company. The Audit Committee has appointed Ms. Wannapa
Somprasit to become the internal audit manager since 2007 with educational background, related certificates

and working experience provided.

The internal audit office of the Company has undertaken the audit activities in accordance with the annual
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee through examination on performance of various departments with
respect to internal control system, compliance with rules, regulations, requirements, Article of Association of the
Company or related laws and has provided recommendations to the management and the person in charge for
better performance. Also, follow up on the result of improvement according to the recommendations of the

internal auditor and external auditor, then directly report to the Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

3.Risk management

The Board of Directors has put priority on risk management through formation of the Risk Management Committee
to determine the policy, objective, risk management framework, to assess possible risk incurred from internal and
external factors and to determine measure to manage the risk to be at acceptable level while the management
of each department is responsible for risk assessment and management to ensure that the operation of the

Company is undertaken and achieved as the target.

The internal audit office is assigned to monitor the performance in accordance with the risk management plan
periodically and monitor the assessment result of residual risk level management and then make a report to the
Audit Committee for comments before submission of a report to the Board of Directors for consideration and

acknowledgement.
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2. Necessities and Reasons for Entering into the Transactions

In 2016, the Company had transactions with related persons which can be categorized to 4 types (as disclosed

in article 1) as follows:

1. A normal business transaction
2. A supporting normal business transaction
3. A property rental or lease with no more than 3 years transaction

4. An asset or service transaction

The entering into above transactions, the Company had considered its reasons and necessities, conditions and
the fair price to gain the highest benefit for the Company. In case that ordinary business and supporting ordinary
business transactions, the Company proceeded with normal commercial terms of the ordinary and usual course
of business which is the same criteria as an external person. For the property rent and lease transactions with
no more than 3 years and the transaction related to the assets or services, the Company determined the rent
and service fee according to the fair value from the independent appraiser and using sharing cost basis according

to the proportion of workload plus the profit comparing with the market price.

The entering into any transactions/contracts with any other persons who have conflicts of interest with
the Company, the necessities and reasons will be considered including all criteria and fair value to prevent the

conflicts of interest and gain the highest benefit for the Company.

U3 v dadn @) 1] ]
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Report on the Board of Directors’
Responsibility for the Companys’
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547
and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department
of Business Development dated September 28, 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E.2543. The Board
considered the accounting policies pursued to be appropriate, and they have been applied consistently with
adequate disclosure of important information in the notes to the financial statements. EY Office Limited, the
Company’s external auditor, has audited the financial statements and expressed an unqualified opinion in the

auditor’s report.

The Board establishes and maintains the risk management and internal control system to obtain reasonable
assurance that accounting records are accurate, completely and enough to maintain the Company’s assets and
be aware of weak point in order to prevent fraud or significant operational irregularities. The Board has appointed
the Audit Committee consisting of 3 independent directors to provide appropriate and effective oversight of the
financial statements, internal control system and internal audit. The opinion of the Audit Committee has already

been disclosed in its report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board is of opinion that the Company’s internal control system and internal audit that was sufficient to
obtain reasonable assurance in the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2016, which present fairly,

in all material respects, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Unyosle 778

(Mr.Dhep Vongvanich) (Mr.Akiyoshi Toba)

Chairman Director and President
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Audit Committee Report

To the Shareholders

The Audit Committee of Crown Seal Public Company Limited consists of three knowledgeable Independent
Directors, with experience in economics, business, accounting and auditing. These members are appropriate
qualifications as requirements of The Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) which are consisting Mrs. Pilai
Piemphongsarn as chairman of the Committee, Mr. Satit chanjavanakul and Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra as the

Committee member and Ms. Wannapa Somprasit as the Audit Committee secretary.

The Audit Committee has independently performed according to its assignment from the Board of Directors
in accordance with the Stock Exchange of Thailand regulations. For the year 2016, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings with the external auditor, senior executives, and internal audit manager. In addition, the Committee
held a private meeting with the external auditor to know that they had performed independently and cooperated
with the Company’s management as well. Moreover the Audit Committee held the extra-meetings with the
Coordinating Committee 2 times to discuss the internal control of the operating result that should be monitor.

The significant matters are summarized as follows;

1. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements for Year 2016 and
discussed with the external auditor, in all material respects, regarding the accuracy, completeness, reliability
of the financial statements, key audit matters and the sufficient disclosure. The Audit Committee is of the
opinion that the financial statements have been presented fairly in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting

Standards, including the disclosure sufficiently to stakeholders’ benefit.

2. The Audit Committee reviewed the evaluation results for the Company’s internal control system, which have
been used the guideline from Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and have been prepared
by the managements. In addition, the Committee reviewed the internal audit reports that have been
performed as audit plan. The Audit Committee has opinion that the internal control system of the Company

has sufficiency and appropriately control for operational business.

3. The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with law on the Securities and Stock Exchange, the Stock
Exchange ofThailand’s regulation and other laws relating to the Company’s business. The Company has

performed in compliance with law, regulation and relevant requirements continuously.

4. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s connected transactions or the transactions may lead to conflict
of interest to ensure accuracy and complied with the Stock Exchange of Thailand regulations which have been
considered natures of transactions, reason and necessity. The Committee is of opinion that it has reasonability,

fairness and adequate disclosure of information completely.

5. The Audit Committee considered the Company’s external auditors for 2017 that the independence, performance,
experience and qualification with the appropriateness of audit fee. The Audit Committee consequently
recommended that the Board of Directors propose the appointment of EY Office Ltd. Mr. Chayapol
Suppasedtanon C.P.A. Registration No. 3972 or Ms. Pimjai Manitkajohnki C.P.A. Registration No.4521 or
Ms. Rosaporn Decharkom C.P.A. Registration No.5659, as the Company’s external auditor for 2017 at

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
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6. The Audit Committee reviewed the risk management report for the year 2016 and the actions taken to
mitigate significant risks of its business. The Committee has an opinion that risk management is appropriate.

And assigned an internal auditor to monitor the result of action plan and residual risk level after taken action.

7. The Audit Committee has considered the internal audit charter to encourage the internal audit performance

accordance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. The Audit
Committee has considered the revision of internal audit charter which has been revised an authority, duties
responsibilities and independence to reduce limitation in auditing of Internal Audit Office in cooperation

and support from executives and all managements to continuously of internal control system.

8. The Audit Committee considered and approved an internal audit plan of 2017, which emphasizes the
effective control in marketing and sales, procurement and inspection process, production control process at
the beginning of raw materials, work in process and finished goods until control waste. In addition, the
monitoring movement of inventories and allowance for devalue, assigning the internal audit office to monitor
the operation that complied with anti-corruption policy. In order to communicate the significant deficiencies

of its internal control with improvement guideline.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn
Chairman of the Audit Committee
February 21, 2017
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The Explanation and Analysis of Operating
Results for the Year 2016 Compared to 2015

Operating result for the year 2016 ended December 31, 2016

Financial statements by equity method, the Company had invested with the Associated Company of which
the Company was at the state of under-construction and not yet in operation. The Company had the share of
loss for investment in associated company for the amount of 9 million Baht. As the result the Company had the
net profit by equity method for the year 2016 for the amount of 372 million Baht. The Company had gain from
the exchange differences on translation of financial statement in foreign currency for the amount of 0.6 million

Baht. As the result the comprehensive income had the amount of 365 million Baht for the year 2016.

Separate financial statements, the Company had net profit for the amount of 381 million Baht. The earnings
per share were 7.3 Baht. The net profit ratio was 12.6% and the return on equity was 13.4%. The Company had

comprehensive income for the amount of 372 million Baht for the year 2016.

In year 2016, the Company had the total revenues of 3,012 million Baht consisted of sales and service income
for the amount of 2,884 million Baht or equivalent to 95.7% of total revenues. Other incomes consisted of
income from sales of scrap metal, administrative income, rental income, and interest income for the total of 128

million Baht or equivalent to 4.3% of total revenues.

For the cost of sales and services, the Company had total cost of sales and services for the amount 2,306
million Baht or equivalent to 80.0% of sales. The Company had gross profit for the amount of 578 million Baht or
equivalent to 20.0% of sales. It was due to the fact that the Company had the controlling measure for the cost
of sales in the appropriate and competitive level in the market. The gross profit of the Company had increased
from the sale of high proportion of the high profit products and the low cost of sales.

The Company had selling and administrative expenses for the amount of 234 million Baht or equivalent to
7.8% of total revenues. It was consisted of selling expenses for the amount of 65 million Baht or equivalent to
2.2% of total revenues. The administrative expenses were amounting 169 million Baht or equivalent to 5.6% of

total revenues.

The Company had the corporate income tax as shown in the income statement for the amount of 91 million
Baht. The Company had the tax benefit from two factors for the amount of 4 million Baht. First was derived from
the writing off long-term investment in the bankrupt company. It had reserved the full allowance for loss on
diminution in value since 1998. That company has gone bankrupt and the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered closing
the case. The second, the Company had invested in machinery and equipment and exempted from corporate

income tax under Royal Decree (N0.604) B.E. 2559 that has stipulated the corporate income tax exemption.

In addition, the Company had reserve for employee’s benefit with actuarial losses for the amount of 15 million
Baht. It came from the current service cost for the amount of 4 million Baht and service cost for the amount of

11 million Baht (or equivalent of the net of income tax for the amount of 8 million Baht) for previous period.
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Unit : million Baht

Different
Year 2016 Year 2015

Amount %
Earnings before tax 472 409 63 15.4
Less Corporate income tax 91 84 7 8.3
Net Profit - Cost Method 381 325 56 17.2
Share of (loss) from investment in associated 9) 2 (7) 350.0
company
Net Profit - Equity Method 372 323 49 15.2
Exchange differences on translation of financial 0.6 (3) (2.4) 80.0
statements in foreign currency
Actuarial losses — net of income tax (8) - 8 N/A
Total comprehensive income 365 320 45 14.1

The significant changes had the following details:
* Revenues

The Company had the total revenues increased from the previous year for the amount of 9 million Baht or
equivalent to 0.3%. It came from the increase of sales and service income for the amount of 41 million Baht or
equivalent to 1.4%. The other income had decreased for the amount of 32 million Baht or equivalent to 20.0%.
[t was due to the decrease of sale of scraps in relation to the market price of metal. There were other income
from compensation of products and machineries from Insurance and related company in 2015.

Unit : million Baht

Year 2016 Year 2015 Different
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Revenues

Sales 2,711 90.0 2,681 89.3 30 1.1
Service income 173 5.7 162 54 11 6.8
Total sales and service income 2,884 95.7 2,843 94.7 a1 1.4
Other income 128 4.3 160 5.3 (32) (20.0)
Total revenues 3,012 100.0 3,003 100.0 9 0.3

* Sales, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

In 2016 the Company had sales and printing services incomes for the amount of 2,884 million Baht, which was
higher than previous year for the amount of 41 million Baht or equivalent to 1.4%. The cost of sales and services
were 2,306 million Baht or equivalent to 80.0% of sales. The Company had gross profit for the amount of 578
million Baht or equivalent to 20.0% of sales, which had increased from the year 2015 for the amount of 108
million Baht or equivalent to 23.0%. Mainly, it was due to the increase in proportion of sale quantity and high
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proportion of high profit products. In addition, the Company had decreased the cost of sales from the lower raw
material price. The energy cost had decreased from the efficiency in controlling the production of energy of the
Company as well as the decrease of energy cost in the market. These were able to compensate the increase of

manufacturing expenses of previous year.

Unit : million Baht

Year 2016 Year 2015 Different
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Sales and Service income 2,884 100.0 2,843 100.0 41 1.4
Cost of sales and Service 2,306 80.0 2,373 83.5 (67) (2.8)
Gross profit 578 20.0 470 16.5 108 23.0

* Selling & Administrative Expenses

The Company had increased the administrative expenses for the amount of 14 million Baht or equivalent to
9.0%. The main reasons were in the year 2016 the personnel expenses of the Company had been increased for
the amount of 9 million Baht or equivalent to 10.0%. The other expenses had increased for the amount of 5
million Baht. It came from the Information Technology services to the related companies. There was the increase

of travelling expenses.

Unit : million Baht

Year 2016 Year 2015 Different
% of total % of total
Amount Amount Amount %

revenues revenues
Selling & administrative expenses
Selling expenses 65 2.2 66 2.2 (1) (1.5)
Administrative expenses 169 5.6 155 5.1 14 9.0
Total expenses 234 7.8 221 7.3 13 5.9

® Corporate Income Tax

The corporate income tax for 2016 had the amount of 93 million Baht, which had increased for the amount
of 8 million Baht from the previous year. It was due to the Company had the earning before tax had increased

for the amount of 63 million Baht or equivalent to 15.4%.

The Company had the deferred tax reversal for the amount of 2 million Baht increasing for 1 million Baht,

coming from the increase of reserve employee benefit and allowance for diminution in value of inventories from

the previous year.
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Unit : million Baht

Different
Year 2016 Year 2015
Amount %
Income Tax
Current income tax 93 85 8 9.4
Deferred tax expenses 2) (1) (1) (100.0)
Total 91 84 7 8.3

* Capital Expenditures

In the year 2016, the Company had the capital expenditures for the amount of 126 million Baht. The
main portion of the investment was the machinery for new product and increasing the efficiency. Moreover,

the Company had increased the capacity of production according to the demand of markets.
Financial Status
* Assets

The total assets of the Company at the year-end of 2016 were 3,582 million Baht, which had increased from
2015 for the amount of 255 million Baht or equivalent to 7.7%. It consisted of the current assets, investment
in associated company, long-term investment, investment properties, property plants & equipment and other
non-current assets in the ratio of 52.3%, 1.0%, 1.3%, 13.2%, 31.1% and 1.1% respectively. Assets categories

were as follows:

Unit : million Baht

Financial statements in which equity method

31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Different

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Current assets 1,875 523 1,567 47.1 308 19.7
Non-Current assets :
Investment in associated company 35 1.0 a3 1.3 (8) (18.6)
Long-term investment 45 1.3 45 1.4 - -
Investment properties 474 13.2 474 14.2 - -
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,115 31.1 1,186 35.6 (71) (5.9)
Other non-current assets 38 1.1 12 0.4 26 216.7
Total Assets 3,582 100.0 3,327 100.0 255 7.7

Total current asset was 1,875 million Baht had increased from 2015 for the amount of 308 million Baht or

equivalent to 19.7%. It consisted of
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- Cash and cash equivalent for the amount of 275 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of 224
million Baht or equivalent to 44.9% from previous year. It came from the Company had invested cash in
current investment of fixed deposit for the amount of 710 million Baht, which had increased for the amount of
500 million Baht or equivalent 2.4 times. The cash and fixed deposit had increased for the amount of 276
million Baht. It came from the increase of net profit and the Investment in machinery and equipment had

decreased from previous year.

- Trade and other receivable for the amount of 372 million Baht, average collection period was 47 days and
account receivable turnover was 7.6 times. Trade and other receivable had been decreased for the amount

of 34 million Baht or equivalent to 8.3% from previous year due to the economic slowdown at the year-end.

- Inventory for the amount of 510 million Baht, holding period was 23 days and inventory turnover was 15.4
times. Inventory had been increased for the amount of 68 million Baht or equivalent to 15.4% due to the
economic slowdown at the year-end. The Company had allowance for diminution in value of slow and under quality

inventories for the amount of 34 million Baht or equivalent 6.7% of inventory.

Investment in the associated company by equity method had the amount of 35 million Baht, which had
decreased from previous year for the amount of 8 million Baht or equivalent to 18.6%. It was due to the Company
had recognized the share of loss from investment in associated company for the amount of 8 million Baht and the

exchange differences on translation of financial statement in foreign currency for the amount of 0.6 million Baht.

Property, plant and equipment amounted of 1,115 million Baht, return on fixed asset was 47.8%, which had
decreased from 2015 for the amount of 71 million Baht or equivalent to 5.9%. The main reason was the Company
had increased the investment in new machinery including capacity expansion and new product for the amount
of 98 million Baht. The calculation of the depreciation of total assets was 162 million Baht and written off the

asset for the amount of 7 million Baht.

Other non-current assets had the amount of 38 million Baht, which had increased from the year 2015 for the
amount of 26 million Baht or equivalent to 2.2 times. It was due to the year 2016 the Company had increased

the asset of down payment for the purchase of machinery at the year-end.
* Liabilities

The total liabilities of the Company at the year-end of 2016 were 603 million Baht, which had decreased from
year 2015 for the amount of 15 million Baht or equivalent to 2.4%. It consisted of current liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities, and non-current liabilities, for the ratio of 67.2%, 4.5% and 28.3% respectively. Liabilities categories
were as follows:

Unit : million Baht

31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Different

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Current Liabilities 405 67.2 431 69.7 (26) (6.0)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 27 4.5 31 5.0 (4) (12.9)
Non-Current Liabilities 171 28.3 156 253 15 9.6
Total Liabilities 603 100.0 618 100.0 (15) (2.49)
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Current liabilities amounted of 405 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of 26 million Baht or

equivalent to 6.0%. It consisted of

- Trade and other payable for amount of 350 million Baht, payment period was 50 days and Payable turnover
was 7.3 times. Trade and other payable had been decreased for the amount of 24 million Baht or equivalent

to 6.4% from previous year. It was due to the decrease price of raw materials.

- The corporate income tax payable for the amount of 33 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount
of 7 million Baht or equivalent to 17.7%. It was due to the earning from second half operation had decreased

from previous year.

- Other current liabilities for the amount of 21 million Baht, which had increased 5 million Baht or equivalent
to 35.9%. It came from value added payable had increased, the Company had purchased the raw material

and machinery and equipment decreased from previous year.

Deferred tax liabilities amounted of 27 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of 4 million Baht or
equivalent to 12.9%. It was consisted of the deferred tax assets, which came from the allowance for diminution
in value of inventory, had increased for the amount of 2 million Baht and provision for long-term employee’s
benefit had increased for the amount of 3 million Baht. Deferred tax liabilities, which came from the temporary

difference of depreciation had decreased for the amount of one million Baht.

Non-current liabilities had the amount of 171 million Baht, which had increased from year 2015 for the amount
of 15 million Baht or equivalent to 9.6%. It came from the provision for long-term employees’ benefits for
the amount of 157 million Baht, which had increased from previous year for the amount of 15 million Baht or
equivalent to 16.2% and the rental received in advance for the amount of 13 million Baht, which had decreased

for the amount of one million Baht or equivalent to 6.9%.
® Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31" December 2016, the shareholders’ equity as reflected in the financial statement by equity method
amounted of 2,979 million Baht, which had increased from the previous year for the amount of 271 million Baht
or equivalent to 10.0%. It was due to the Company had the retained earnings as of 31% December 2016 amounted
of 1,987 million Baht, which had increased from previous year for the amount of 270 million Baht or equivalent to
15.7%. The Company had other components of shareholders’ equity for the amount of 24 million Baht, coming
from surplus on land for the amount of 26 million Baht and loss the exchange different on translation of financial
statement in foreign currency for the amount of 2 million Baht. In addition during the year 2016, the Company
had paid the dividends for 2015 for the amount of 94 million Baht.

Liquidity and Source of funds & Used of funds

- Liquidity in 2016, the Company had cash and cash equivalent for the amount of 275 million Baht, which
had decreased from the year 2015 for the amount of 224 million Baht. Mainly, the Company had invested

cash in current investment.
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As of 31* December 2016, the Company current ratio was 4.62 times which had increased from the previous
year, of which the current ratio was 3.63 times. The debt to equity ratio was 0.20 times had better than the
previous year, which was 0.23 times.

- Source of funds & Used of funds for 2016 consisted of

1. Cash flows from operating activities amounted 484 million Baht, which was the income from operating activities
before changes in operating assets and liabilities amounted 658 million Baht. The Company had increased the
change of operating assets for the amount of 48 million Baht, coming from account receivable and the
inventories. The change of operating liabilities had decreased for the amount of 27 million Baht, coming from
trade and other payable and provision for long-term employee’ s benefit. In addition, the Company had paid

the corporate income tax for the amount of 100 million Baht.

2. Cash used in investing activities had the amount of 614 million Baht. It was mainly from the investment for the
purchase of new machinery for the amount of 98 million Baht, the asset of down payment for the purchase of
machinery for the amount of 27 million Baht and current investment from fixed deposit for the amount of 500

million Baht. In addition the Company had interest income for the amount of 11 million Baht.

3. Cash flows from financial activities had the amount of 94 million Baht. It was mainly from the Company paid

dividend to common shares and preferred shares.
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UM RUTILERS

Ruaaueauidsauleide WwMIRuanzianig

V8L 2559 2558 2559 2558
Funsnd
Auniwdvyuiou
RSuanuarsensiisuwintuan 7 274,803,264 498,774,412 274,843,264 498,774,412
Guamuiaaim 710,000,000 210,289,460 710,000,000 210,289,460
Qﬂwﬁmaﬁmaz@ﬂwﬁéu 6,8 372,502,211 406,306,624 372,502,211 406,306,624
FurALAD 9 510,542,509 442,310,110 510,542,509 442,310,110
aum%wa‘muﬁauﬁu 6,712,397 9,005,838 6,712,397 9,005,838
saBuniwdnyuisu 1,874,600,381  1,566,686,444  1,874,600,381  1,566,686,444
Auniwdlinyuiiey
Ruasuluuigngm 10 35,383,856 43,315,499 46,341,825 46,341,825
Ruamuszeze? 11 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738
pdaumIngifionisasu 12 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000
ity o1suazgunsal 13 1,115,118,439  1,185,665000  1,115,118,439  1,185,665,000
Funsndlafisnnu 14 2,706,498 2,902,932 2,706,498 2,902,932
Funswdluvauioudy 35,258,281 8,948,080 35,258,281 8,948,080
saudunndlinyuiou 1,707,763,812  1,760,128,249  1,718,721,781  1,763,154,575
TmBuUnSng 3,582,364,193  3326,814,693  3,593,322,162  3,329,841,019
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(mhe: um)
sumsiudauans
RuasueuiSaulaide N sRwamzianig
NUNYLIAR 2559 2558 2559 2558
6, 16 350,407,306 374,432,084 350,407,306 374,432,084
6 992,608 992,608 992,608 992,608
33,549,214 40,785,420 33,549,214 40,785,420
20,563,539 15,131,764 20,563,539 15,131,764
405,512,667 431,341,876 405,512,667 431,341,876
6 13,400,208 14,392,816 13,400,208 14,392,816
23 26,970,353 30,732,551 26,970,353 30,732,551
17 157,212,897 142,035,405 157,212,897 142,035,405
197,583,458 187,160,772 197,583,458 187,160,772
603,096,125 618,502,648 603,096,125 618,502,648
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JUNNTRURNIZANG

Eme) 2559 2558 2559 2558
dauvasgtioviu
URRINAT
Nuannzidey
Viuysuans slinldavanduiuna
799,988 ¥ yadWiuar 10 UM 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
Viueniley 52,000,012 Yu yadwiuae 10 um 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000
nuﬁaaﬂuam}’ﬁmﬁ’;
Viuysuans slnliavanduiuna
799,988 YU yafviuay 10 UM 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
viuandlay 52,000,012 ¥u yaA1viuay 10 U 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
duiumnu
drufuyaruysuEns 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704
duiuyaaiuansy 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339
Mlsavau
IAATIUR - d15890UNY VY 19 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000
galailddnass 1,987,085129  1,716,771,507  1,996,383,731  1,717,496,065
osAUsznouduvesduvesiiony 24,574,896 23,932,495 26,234,263 26,234,263
suduvetiavu 2,979,268,068  2,708,312,045  2,990,226,037  2,711,338,371
soumijaunazduvesfiou 3,582,364,193  3,326,814,693  3,593,322,162  3,329,841,019
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(vihe: um)
sumsiiudauans
Ruawmuaaidulaide WNMIRuaNEAans
NUYLIAG 2559 2558 2559 2558

6 2,710,904,155 2,680,650,215 2,710,904,155 2,680,650,215
6 173,147,152 162,035,633 173,147,152 162,035,633
21 128,420,464 159,842,722 128,420,464 159,842,722
3,012,471,771 3,002,528,570 3,012,471,771 3,002,528,570
2,171,985,378 2,233,424,181 2,171,985,378 2,233,424,181
133,979,537 139,189,492 133,979,537 139,189,492
65,438,641 65,987,687 65,438,641 65,987,687
169,094,778 154,526,611 169,094,778 154,526,611
2,540,498,334 2,593,127,971 2,540,498,334 2,593,127,971
471,973,437 409,400,599 471,973,437 409,400,599
10 (8,574,044) (2,327,805) - -
463,399,393 407,072,794 471,973,437 409,400,599
23 (90,963,261) (83,544,899) (90,963,261) (83,544,899)
372,436,132 323,527,895 381,010,176 325,855,700

24
7.16 6.22 7.33 6.27
7.05 6.13 7.22 6.17
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2559 2558 2559 2558
372,436,132 323,527,895 381,010,176 325,855,700
642,401 (3,373,397) - -
642,401 (3,373,397) - -
(8,523,578) - (8,523,578) -
(8,523,578) - (8,523,578) -
(7,881,177) (3,373,397) (8,523,578) -
364,554,955 320,154,498 372,486,598 325,855,700
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JUNTRUTENS

Ruamunitdinlade

(Wae: un)

JUNNSRURNIZANT

2559 2558 2559 2558
463,399,393 407,072,794 471,973,437 409,400,599
17,115,445 15,686,858 17,115,445 15,686,858
170,602,542 163,093,018 170,602,542 163,093,018
8,574,044 2,327,805 - -
32,266 159,075 32,266 159,075
11,938,737 8,070,012 11,938,737 8,070,012
(12,894,990) (10,264,017) (12,894,990) (10,264,017)
(254,182) 225,422 (254,182) 225,422
658,513,255 586,370,967 658,513,255 586,370,967
35,095,203 30,291,635 35,095,203 30,291,635
(85,347,843) 31,125,496 (85,347,843) 31,125,496
2,293,441 6,122,933 2,293,441 6,122,933
61,257 (1,172,464) 61,257 (1,172,464)
(23,702,575) (20,153,508) (23,702,575) (20,153,508)
5,418,302 (439,944) 5,418,302 (439,944)
(992,608) (1,179,275) (992,608) (1,179,275)
(7,415,717) (4,217,808) (7,415,717) (4,217,808)
583,922,715 626,748,032 583,922,715 626,748,032
(99,830,770) (76,666,041) (99,830,770) (76,666,041)
484,091,945 550,081,991 484,091,945 550,081,991
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NsEUARUAAIINAINTTUAMNU
Ruasuinsdfiuiy (499,710,540)  (170,000,000)  (499,710,540)  (170,000,000)
s‘??aqﬂmaj (97,734,419)  (277,646,987) (97,734,419)  (277,646,987)
Ruansuainnisdminegunsal 743,035 171,474 743,035 171,474
dunsneladfifmuiindu (2,655,400) (38,080) (2,655,400) (38,080)
Rusedrmthidaniesinsanas (Rudw) (26,616,488) 24,089,640 (26,616,488) 24,089,640
aenilosu 11,599,495 10,811,630 11,599,495 10,811,630
Ruaagnsldlulufanssuasmu (614,374,317)  (412,612,323)  (614,374,317)  (412,612,323)
ASTUARUANIINAINTTUIAWRU
eRulunag (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
Ruangnsldlulufanssudnmidu (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
RuaauazsenaifisuviRuaniiuiu (@aag) GUE (223,881,304) 43,870,736 (223,881,304) 43,870,736
nansznuaINMIUAsuLUameswanUdsy

flse Guanuazsenisiieuwinituan (49,844) 152,775 (49,844) 152,775
RugnuazseniisuvinSuannud 498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
Rusauazsensifisuwinuaadaist (Munewe 7) 274,843,264 498,774,412 274,843,264 498,774,412
foyansuaiuandameiiaiy
sensildlefuanusznoude

M sUsulsdsemaUseleniszesuveIntnmy 10,654,472 - 10,654,472 -
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2559 2558 UlguIgNITMIUAIIAN
519lA91nN5U8 - HNn1TUY 686,696 725170 dunuuandilsdamuiiy
sglaannsTausnsRuiuEL 170,021 159,588 unuuInilsduiy
s1elaannslan 3,135 2,441  Teeudoyen
egunsal ezlvalazingiu 1,034 1,355 iwmmmﬂﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁw&wﬁmﬁugnﬁwﬁ"ﬂﬂ
s1elaAusTng 13,051 11,453  s1aenudeyan
%@i’mqﬁu 1,756 1,344 &’unummﬁ’ﬂﬁumﬁm
Foorlnanaziaiosdns 21,524 32304 duyuuaniilsdauiia
1YAEANDNITNER 21,677 22311  OM150UaTURILDAUNYLAATEUAT
SRE LGV TR T 247 858  §1AMU
Touyaruadesdnsiitonssudvdsusu 623 4,358  §1AMU
Ruduwadng 60,455 60,455  ufiusznedig
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%

AUIYNS Asaluil
(W28: WUUIMN)
UNTRUTIRANIRIUAINU
aa | Y a
snuITaulade /
JUNSRULRNIEARNTT

2559 2558
naUselomiszozdu 19,340 19,209
NaUszlevtnd19nanau 278 223
334 19,618 19,432

[

YOARIANITEMINNUSEN WA AINTISTLALI 89U ad TUR 31 SuIAN 2559 kay 2558 fs18azidennadl
(WU28: WUUIN)

UNTRUTIUARIRIUAINU
puAdaIulaLde /
JUNITRURNIZNINTT

2559 2558

anvitiniadn - Aansiieadesiu (e 8) 97,533 100,699
anwiiisu - Aanmsiliileadasiu (rneing 8) 7,615 7,859
ity - Aensiieadesiu (newa 16) 19,923 22,733
ANYITUAIUTN

A 14,393 15,386
vin: dhufiasuimunnelunilsd (993) (993)
qnd 13,400 14,393
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7. ﬁuanua:swmmﬁumrhﬁuam
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WNTRUTIANIRI WA
AuRsaulaLEe /
JUNSHULRNIZANNT

2559 2558
NuEn 171 180
RUNINFUIATS 274,672 498,594
PRI 274,843 498,774

a TUN 31 SuAN 2559 WuenesunsndwazduanUseanlonsinenleseninesssay 0.10 04 1.00 sial
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8. anhlimsAuazanniisdu
(e Wuum)

UNTRUTIUANIRIUAINU

audsaulade /
JUNSRULRNIZARNTT

2559 2558
gniin1sén - Aansiieadedu
mqwﬁmﬁwﬁumﬂi’uﬁﬁqﬁmum?ﬁz
gelaifsrivuntnge 69,330 70,978
ATy
laiiAu 3 ihou 28,203 29,721
mmgﬂwﬁmﬁﬁw ~ AansTiiendestiu 97,533 100,699
anwiinisén - AansitlaiRendasty
ogrilasistunnTuiifatmundisy
Falaifamvundnsy 215,106 238,169
AN9TSE
Taiifiu 3 1hou 46,996 55,286
3-6 oy - 256
6 - 12 \fiou - 15
i’mgﬂwﬁmiﬁw - Aansiildifendeetu 262,102 293,726
gnviiay - Aamsfideatesi
NUNATOY - 93
s1elaAnesu 7,615 7,766
mmgﬂuﬁﬁu - AamsTAgTesiu 7,615 7,859
gnuiiau - AansiflaiRendasty
HUNATO9 2,277 1,945
gﬂmﬁmﬂmimsmﬁa@ 1,108 694
Bu 9 1,867 1,384
muqmﬁﬁgu - Aamsiilaiendesiu 5,252 4,023
sgnuiimsfuazgnviiou 372,502 406,307
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9. AUMPAHAD
(WUR8: WUUIN)

uMsRuTanIiuamuaaisalides / sumstuangianis

2559 2558

EREQUFITHT 185Uy

ansAuli ansAnuli

Juyarans Audn Juyarnans Audn

1YY flarlésu  pavde-gns TR fagldfu  muvde-qvd

uidusagy 155002 (24,732) 130,270 143,866 (22,002) 121,864
NUITNININ 142,040 (8,518) 133,522 97,549 (4,926) 92,623
fnnAuuay TanAuUdos 179,399 (8,749) 170,650 167,120 (5,932) 161,188
AUAITENINNN 13,191 - 13,191 11,673 - 11,673
ozlua 62,910 - 62,910 54,962 - 54,962
Ry 552,542 (41,999) 510,543 475,170 (32,860) 442,310

Tuszninldaglu vsdvmduiinnisuSuansamuuesdudauvieiluyaransfiagldasu S1uiu 17 duum
(2558: 16 a1uum) lnsuanududiuniwesiunuaig waziinnsndusienissuanyarduiiauniodiuiu
8 &M (2558: 12 &uum) NNTYINAEEUAT

10. Quainufuussnsiu
10.1 5198LLBUAVDIUSENSIU

(WU28: WUUIN)

suMsRudauang WY
Ruawmuaaigdnlady wnnzAans
Sometu  dedou yarmudoyd
UM anwaggsie lwlseve Quasu magdulady FIANY
Sovay 2559 2558 2559 2558
PT Indonesia Caps ~ Hankazdminey AN5150U33
and Closures USSRt dulniide
Uszinmehdmsu
PSRy 25 35,384 43,315 46,342 46,342
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UM IRUTARIRUAMUALTTdUlAEe WNSRURNIEAINTT

GRIIRIN
duuteinls @en)  mlsvemudaaiady
UTENTI nRuamulusiensy anfuamuluusensy Rudunaiy
2559 2558 2559 2558 2559 2558

PT Indonesia Caps and
Closures (8,574) (2,328) . B, _ )

o Y

10.3  dayaniansiiuniianszdrAyvasuienion

v

[

Joyann1sRunuiuanseglusunstivresuseniulagaguiasl

(M: a1uUm)

31 SuAN
2559 2558
43U518N1571UEN1INIRY
Aunsngsm 358 359
WisdusIY 216 186
Auning - ans 142 173

(Wa: a1uUm)
° o s
dmsudduan
JUN 31 5uAY

ayunensilsnayuioaia 2559 2558

shele - -
V1A (34) 9)
° ] < A

mlwmnuwmasaau - -

lsvnnudaadasu (34) ©
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11. Quanus:yzy1)

(WU28: WUUIN)

JUNMIRUTIANIR UM UANIITELEY /
U WNTRUANILNINT

e Ruamu

(Sovaz) 2559 2558
USYN 180N aluuas 3119 10.00 - 10,000
UTEN U9NDALAL LLNNHLLW?’]L‘\]@%Q 9109 1.61 9,494 9,494
UTEN LY suna 9719 10.00 35,000 35,000
USEN auuneaniiiosen 31in 0.08 180 180
USEN ING1EnINT 9110 0.03 273 273
USEW Wesenladneanaesd 31109 0.06 350 350
FINTIAMU 45,297 55,297
n: ﬁhlﬁamiamawauﬂam - (10,000)
RuamusTeLed - gnd 45,297 45,297

v
1Y o

Tuhsuungay 2559 vsEn-larndmineRuawuluuiem wesina dlauwds 91dn Msd1uau 1leannusem
AanaMaNazaeuazAaaazaenanlalmaTlinAdugn

12.  9dInTsunswelianisainu
(Miae: Wuum)

UM IRUTANIR UM UANIATAWMEY /
WUMIRURNIERING

2559
firudnassuaz
fawdieliian  Aseadns fiRuan 524
BannUUYTHIUY 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
gonnNUyTUael 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
srelaandrdnsut 1,316 - - 1,316
USRS - - - -
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(V78: WUUIN)

UM IRUTANIRUAMUANIITEWLMEY /
JUNTRUANIENINTSG

2558
fiRusnassuay

el Fneadis NAuLan U
YoM UUTAUY 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
v uUalatel 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
shelamdmsul 1,273 - - 1,273
Alyane - - - -

meldaualuonandmivedanFumingifonsamu asUldded

(MU28: WUUIm)

2559 2558
melu 1 993 993
110031 1 U ueldiAu 5 9 3,972 3,972
11AN91 5 Y 9,428 10,421

Tufousuinau 2559 uay 2558 UsEneladntninisussliusamedmisunindiienisamu lneusem awsiu
& o o v = & v a a v a yvas = & ot
wswinsda (Uszinelune) $1ia SINLﬂqu"dizLuummaaizaﬂismuimmﬂwumwﬁmmamLﬂummsmiu
msfmuasiainusagldyaasiunuUieuunugns (Depreciated Replacement Cost Approach) Luinausitu
NSINUATIANEINEE5 I UlATINTTAIUITIAY USEN NI S1AUsziliuvesdunsngnuidainandaiuiull

wANF9INTIAYsEIluATIeN usEnRaliliuiuussyargfsssuvesduning
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13. nau a1msuazaunsn

(g Wuum)
WUMIRuFuanstiuamunuldsdwldide / eumsiluawizianig

2559
Funindd
UANSYAAINIY
ATl Funiwddauansyadinusiau
\ATeamNUs
91ATUAY fosaededdd  Aunsnd
duvduue  eBesdns  dwnauuas FEUIN
i 21A19 wavgunsal  euWIUY findta EetY
511U / S1AiA
1 un91Au 2559 99,000 450,100 2,424,959 91,256 101,228 3,166,543
%mﬁu 19,584 2,121 75,430 97,735
vy (1,734)  (32,978) (7,014) (41,726)
lowtn (ean) 2,746 119,535 8,798  (131,079) -
31 5UAN 2559 99,000 451,112 2,531,100 95,760 45,579 3,222,551
Adeusanazay
1 4n31AU 2559 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
AdonsAdmsuT - 15,775 135,595 10,784 - 162,154
AndeusIAd v UdIuT - (1,492)  (27,290) (6,817) - (35,599)
RRVAIRE
31 §u2MAN 2559 - 305,798 1,733,518 68,116 - 2,107,433
WaAENSANUYY
31 5UAN 2559 99,000 145,314 797,582 27,644 45,579 1,115,118
AdeusAEmIul
2559 (153 &uum Tameglusununsndn duimdorueglualidnglumsuims) 162,154
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(vihae: Wuum)
uMIRuFauansiuamunuisdnlade / swunisRuawizians

2558
Aunsndda
uEnIYAAIAIL
sAdivl Funiwddauansyadinusiamu
\A3DIRNUAT
RGUEEE) fanapdodld Funsng
dudiuup  edesdns  ddnaudes I
iy 91A15 wargunIal  e1umIvug ks 5
AU / Al
1 unsnAu 2558 99,000 443912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
Foudia - - 21,402 2022 254223 277,647
Mg - (r47)  (43,898) (1,472) - (46,117)
Toultn (o9n) - 6,93¢ 285,671 8,660  (301,265) -
31 §uAN 2558 99,000 450,099 2,424,960 91,256 101,228 3,166,543
Andousaazan
1 unsnAu 2558 - 275,916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
Adausidmsud - 16,443 128,649 9,152 - 154,244
AndeusIAdmS AR - (844)  (37,532) (1,470) - (39,846)
I1%U"e
31 §uNAN 2558 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
yaAgNsAuUnYY
31 §uNAN 2558 99,000 158,584 799,747 27,106 101,228 1,185,665
Andeusiadndud
2558 (150 &1uun sweglusiununisudn duidesmegludldielunsuims) 154,244

Ut aladalilinnsusziliusianfifuassagaluiousuiiay 2557 lnausev ot wdwnsda (Usznelne)
diin WneldiBseuiieunaeaindunasilunmsivunyargfsssy

9 1% v A

WINUIENI4ARILaA1U0TIAURING19M83T5 1Y Yarnudad o Jufl 31 Suaieu 2559 wag 2558 Andu

FIUIU 66 UV

au Juf 31 Suney 2559 vsEnailonanswazgunsaliuiuniledainandeusimvaaudiuwidindddauey yae

Y

audndnewinAdeusiamarauvesdunsngfinanandusiuig 1,365 a1uum (2558: 1,251 a1uum)
91A1TUAIATEITNTUNAIUNBNTINAVTTINAUTENINUTENTUUTEN venenuAL uuuyliAlReIe 11n lag
U3en Yuiinemsuaziesesdnsaenanmudadiuiduvesuienaddyammnudyd o Jui 31 suneu 2559
11U 12 &0 (2558: 15 a1uun)
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[y

14. aunswaludccu

ALY
I
oLy
ANT1UY
imuUaned

1 o o 1 ¥ A
ARRINYETEUAUT
ARRINgEInsUY
ANFAINUIYE NS UAIUNF ALY

AFnIMUIearanUane

Aunsndlididae - and

UL

& o

CRRTH
sAulaned

I o o

ARRINYaTELALT

v o

1 1 o v A
ANARINNUIFINTUU

I o o

AR RN avaulalst

aunsndlididae - and

162 swomdsednd 2559
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(WU78: WUUIN)

IUNTRUTIANIRIUAYLANITEl e /
WNMIRURNIENANT

2559
gonAlIs
ADURINDS avsnisuan Pt

45,004 630 45,634
2,655 - 2,655
(274) - (274)
47,385 630 48,015
42,416 315 42,731
2,534 315 2,849
(271) - (271)
44,679 630 45,309
2,706 - 2,706

(vhae: Wuum)
JUNTRUTLANIRIUAYUANITEleEe /
UATRUANIENINTT

2558
gonAlIS
ADURIADS avsnisuan Pt

44,966 1,260 46,226

38 - 38

45,004 1,260 46,264
40,067 630 40,697
2,349 315 2,664
42,416 945 43,361
2,588 315 2,903




15.  AudniiudtyduazAuddusze=aunnamounsiu

vignaieduidnifudydsuinisuagradundussevdundeldlalyd s Jum 31 Suinau 2559 §1uau 175
AUV kaE 900 AUV MIUAISU (2558: 175 a1UUM kA 900 A1UUIN ANNENTU) 2RkusInalidiinnse

AUsEnu

16. HMnlinmsAua:intau
(Mae: Wuum)
sUMIRUTLanItuamu
audvdlade /
JUMIHURNIZAINIT

2559 2558

A miinnsén - AansilaiRendeaiu 270,099 282,551
Bviey - Aamsiiedesty

ANANENITHANAIIINY 9,040 10,868

Bug 10,883 11,865
s miisy - AamsiiAeteety 19,923 22,733
Bviiay - AansiililAundeiy

iy 25,451 35,730

AlgI18A193Y 34,934 33,418
53 - Aansiladiieadeatu 60,385 69,148
s minsfuasdmisy 350,407 374,432

17. drisedvads:lguuszg:81390dwinau
(VU8 WUUIN)

UNTRUTIRARIRIUAINU
ada | Y a
AuITdulede /
JUMSHRURNIZANNT

2559 2558
NAUSELYYUNRIDBNINNINUVDINLNIY 48,251 48,224
(Assn1saunuitu)
HaUsEleUUNA 198N INITUYDINTNU 89,287 76,797
(asemsuauselowd)
naUsylovisyezennsuresniineguy 19,675 17,014
334 157,213 142,035
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Fruukudrsemalselevindseanainauveantnay (asenisnadselevy) fadutuvaendnauilessn

Mnauanslasad
(WU28: WUUW)
sUMIRuBaLanatuamu
mudddlade /
UM IHURNIZAINIT

2559 2558
dsemauselevlsrer1veant NI LA Ul 76,797 75,304
duisuslusuilsvanu :

Aunuusnistutiagdu 4,241 3,797

é\’unumamﬁa 2,476 2,527

duisuluflsnanuidaedadu:

MANUINMIYTEUUNM IV NAdIRAERSUTER WY
duiinnnsiUasunlasoauuinianstu 2,903 -
aiauﬁt,ﬁmmﬂmsﬂ%’uﬂqqmﬂﬂizaumszﬁ 7,751 -

nauszlovifianeluszwingd (4,881) (4,831)
dspwmausylevissezenvemtnaulalsd 89,287 76,797

AldInneiuraUslevindteanainauvesningu ((assnisnadsylev) Sudlusrenisdeluillusudiils

Pamusanslided
(Wae: Wuum)
sumsiudauansiiuasnu
anadsdulaLde /
JUMTRURNIZAINTT

2559 2558
AUNUUY 4,875 4,619
AlIgluNSBLaENITUIIG 1,812 1,705
334 6,717 6,324

USIN1AIn3198918915eNaUselevlndsenannauesndnau dasenisuausslewd) aelu 1 Y919ntn
WuduuUszana 5 a1uum (2558: 99udU 4 auum)

A TUN 31 SUIAN 2559 SreElIanadgnuIntnlun15918915eNaUsE e Y UNA 909N NITUVDINLNIY
(Oasanisuauselewy) Usyanas 6 T (2558: 6 )

v
Yo

aunAgruiiddylunisussanumsmuvdnadnmaniUssusoaguldssd
wmiﬁu%mamﬁuamu
AnudsdlaLde /
JUMTRURNIZAINTT

2559 2558
(Sovaznol) (Sovazsol)
ININANARA 3.00 3.50
Snsmstutiuiiou 5.00 5.00
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18.

19.

20.

HansenuresNsiisukUatanuiguididgydeyardagiuvesniseyniunalselevindeonanauves
wiinau (Iasanisnausele) o Tuil 31 sunaw 2559 way 2558 aguladil

31 5U3AN 2559

LﬂEEJUIWQ NANTENUAD mﬁauim NANTZNUAD

Wy d1509 anaa 41509

(Sowaz) (Wuu ) (Sovaz) (Wuu M)
gnI1ANAR 0.5 (3,071) 0.5 3,252
Sanstutuiou 1.0 7,478 1.0 (6,775)

31 U3AN 2558

wwasulim NANTENURD wwanulin NANTZNUAD

gy #1994 anag #1999

($ovaz) (Wuum) (Sovag) (Wuum)
gnI1ANAA 0.5 (2,761) 0.5 2,954
SanstuEuiou 1.0 8,536 1.0 (7,657)

HUUSHans
vuysuansvesusemluwiuysudvdsiasyylediefavsliiutuiunasuiuiuailudnsuieaiuiuaiy

v
£ o a

wazdiavslasuRulunaiiududniuas 1.50 v visll Huysudvsidurinldazautuiuna SnislidnSoenides

q
a a a

asnziuLuRgfuiuadyuasdidnsulanluiuandylaluiuinisgavievemnaiiou ludnsiuyiuans
1 Viusieviuandley 1 v

a L LY a o

o Jufl 31 §unneu 2559 way 2558 venaundevesiuysuansndalilatinisldavsuvanduiuandyidiuau
799,988 iU

d15030NUNNHUIY

aelduntygAreanng 116 wianses1vdygAusEmumaudiin w.e. 2535 uSEn1Aesdnassnilsgns
Uszdddrumilsiiidunudiseshitesninfesas 5 vosilsgniuszsdindesenviayuazanonun (§13)
qunimudrsesiaedisnulitesninfesar 10 veauaansifou drsesmungumnedinaldansntily
eduduna

duiunuanmstisimMaunswe

drufiunuainnisisiaduning Aediiuyuainnisisiaaudsdiuiunuiliaunsadiuinduaiay

q 9

avauwazliaunsadnedututiune
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21.

22.

166

s1wldau

(W2E: Wuum)
UNTRUTIRARIRIUAINU
anuisdulade /
JUNSRULRNIZARNNT

2559 2558
seldannisueiayianuazesiva 85,491 102,598
srelaA1usms 13,051 11,453
aonilosy 12,895 10,264
B9 16,983 35,528
521 128,420 159,843
Adnemuanuyus

ensAlgIIea ANy UsEnoUMETIeNSATlTIeidAgydne LUl

(B2E: NUUIm)
UNTRUTIUARIRIUANU
adsaulade /
JUNSRULRNIZANNT

2559 2558
Ruiiou Aussarnayseloviduvoaneinau 468,779 438,580
AdeNsIAaEAFRS LY 170,603 163,093
PIANUNTANYaR1vRIFUMALTEBLAEART N AU ey o Ind 17,115 15,687
ANANSNITNANT Y 21,677 22,311
A8 YUEIELA 31,299 33,220
AYaLLTHLAE TN 101,517 108,810
fngRuuay TanAudesldly 1,539,549 1,517,470
msLﬂﬁauwaﬂu?{uﬁﬂﬁﬂL%ﬁ]gﬂuammiwdwﬁw 55,627 51,157

eIzl 2559
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MM eauld / rigumeduldsodoiyd

v '
=]

AldIenBRuladmsulauanium 31 Sunau 2559 way 2558 agulasail
(e Wuum)

WATRULARIIUAY
AIsalalEe /
WNMIRUANIEAINSG

2559 2558

aERulalag:
mRuladfuaradmsul 92,572 84,493
TensUsulmldTensduliiiuanaveslneu 22 212
aERuldsan1siaUayd:
mRuldsensdiatyfannisinraunnseinsiuaensndu

NUMIHALANA1TIATT (1,631) (1,160)
AnldinenBRuldiuanseglusuilsanu 90,963 83,545

v
IS 1

$19N1INTENVLOATENINM LI Biualdanen1BRuladael
(mde: Wuum)

dumiﬁuéﬁmamﬁuamu

madulade WUNMIRWANIZAINIS

2559 2558 2559 2558
mlsmednydneundtulaiiuana 463,399 407,073 471,973 409,401
gnn8Ruladfyana 125% uay 20% 12.5% uaw 20% 20% 20%
Mlsmsdgneungluladfurranndnsnng 94,394 81,880 94,394 81,880
emsUiulssataemBRulitiyaravetneu 22 213 22 213
HANTENUNNA MU
Alddnedoing 5,981 6,909 5,981 6,909
e asavsHnldfuay (7,803) (4,296) (7,803) (4,296)
Bu 9 (1,631) (1.161) (1,631) (1.161)
371 (3,453) 1,452 (3,453) 1,452
Aldaendtuldiuansoglusutilsanu 90,963 83,545 90,963 83,545
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v '
v v

drulsznavvesdunindnstulasedavytnazuiidunstulasedadyin Usznauniy

(W78: WUUIN)

ﬂULLﬁﬂ\?i?U%ﬂ’]iﬁu

AUNTRUTIRARIIURINU
Audaulade /
JUNSRULRNIZARNNT

2559 2558

ﬂ"lLﬁamiamawmyjaﬁﬁuﬁnmmﬁa 8,400 6,572
A150INaUsElevUsL L E1IVDINTNIY 21,792 18,768
ANYISUATLN 2,680 2,878
3u g 1,804 1,772
uAUnsnIn18RulATeNIAnUYT 34,676 29,990
AdeusIALaEAFRS LY 29,396 28,472
fAlsannsasunlasargisss

yosodmiunIngiitensasmu 25,692 25,692
ﬁautﬁunummwﬁmmﬁﬁu 6,559 6,559
sumbauMTEUlETonIa Jeya 61,647 60,723
wilaunditulfsomsintnd - av’ 26,971 30,733

24. mistioku

mlsreuduiugiudwialaemsiilsdmnsul (suflsauiaeiadu) dediuiiededihndnves
Vuandlyneenagluseningd

flssioriutsuandunlnemsilsdmiud (biuilsamuidaieiodu) Meonasimvessuuiuiiededs
dwiinvesiuaniiyfiooneglussvidiuiunuiueiednhminvesfuaiiyiiuisneadessenioutasiu
affleuniusuanieaulfidutuany Teausfinlédnsuanduuandy o Sufulvie m Yusoniu
anglgyLie UL
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@

inlssieviutunugIuwazilsreuuiuan wanansaualaned

UM IRUBENIRUaMUANITELlEY

dmsulaugaiui 31 Sunay

Sunfuaniioyiiede
Mlsdmsuan gt miin Mlssionu
2559 2558 2559 2558 2559 2558

Gfuuw)  Gluuw) Gl Glugy) om0
Mlsraudunugy

mlsdmiune 372,436 323,528 52,000 52,000 7.16 6.22
NansEuvasiuasiyisuwinuiuan

uysuanSuUasanm - - 800 800

mlssiaviuusuan

lsiduvesffevuaiiyaunmindnsg
Tdansuvasanmduuandey 372,436 323,528 52,800 52,800 7.05 6.13

JUMSRULRNIEANTT

dmsulaugaiui 31 Sunay

Srunfuaniioyiiede
Mlsdmsuan gt miin Mlssionu
2559 2558 2559 2558 2559 2558

Gfuuw)  Gluuw) Gl Glufy) om0
Mlssaruvunugy

mlsdmiune 381,010 325,856 52,000 52,000 7.33 6.27
NansEuvasiuasiyisuwinuiuan

VuySuAnSuUasEnIw - - 800 800

mlssiaviuusuan

flsiduesffevuaiiyaumindng
Tdansuvasanmduruandey 381,010 325856 52,800 52,800 7.22 6.17

25.  gayaniams@uiuuncnudiudiu

v

Jayadiunuaiivnumiauelaennsesiunenumeluvesusenangiouadaaulagaaasunisaniuny
leSunaraeumuegsanase wWeldlunsdrdulalunsinassninenslifudnuiasUsslunanisaiiveny
Yosauny MallgiguadiadulagegaiunisaiiunuvesuienAenssunsEilomna

e Tnguszasilunsuimsnuy uienadalassadsesdnsdunbegsianulssnvvowdniaeivaz uins usen,
Tdununsgauiadu 3 diunu dsil

U3 hiu d1dn ) 169
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



170

AUNUNAALAYUHIN YUY

—_

AUUS IR UE S UUNSEUBY

N

3. dunuedwnsumindiienisamu

usTnlifinissudiunusiiunududiununsenudnamu

fisnnadadulageagnasumunanisduiunuvesusazmiegsiauenaindu ienguszasdlunisdnauls
Aerfumsdnasmineniwagmsussiiunansufiiau imUssdunamsufiRnuresdiuamilagiiansan
Nnilsvideviavuanmsmidunu dviayamlpeliinasidetuililunmsindlsdenauanmasiduamly
sum s agnalsfinny UiEmUImMsus s iamu FeihliAndldeemanisiu wazselininisiu
AanssuuimsnuuasSiuldvestaingy falu melduagaldinesmnanidiinstiudmldudardainey
ANy

v '
v a

Toyaelauarilsvesdinnuresuienadmiulaugaiui 31 Suneu 2559 way 2558 dawioluil

(WU28: WUUIN)

HARULAY Fudnaiamiwei aamulu
YBNINIBUL dmununszlos DHIMNIUNSWE PRt
2559 2558 2559 2558 2559 2558 2559 2558

s1¢lé

- luuseina 1,976,383 1,993,500 173,147 162,036 1,316 1,273 2,150,846 2,156,809

- feUsTIA 734,521 687,150 - - - - 734,521 687,150
qujlﬁﬁgqélu 2,710,904 2,680,650 173,147 162,036 1,316 1,273 2,885,367 2,843,959
NAN1IANLUIIUY
Slsv9dInay 559,218 484,134 38921 22549 1316 1273 599455  507.956
seldwazarldtefililadudn
nenidesy 12,895 10,264
seldEu 28,718 45,708
AlgaelunIsuINIg (169,095)  (154,527)
druutanuInRuamuluIensy (8574)  (2,328)
flsnaualgarenddula 463,399 407,073
Al BRule (90,963)  (83,545)
mlsdmsud 372,436 323,528

Usnadliugsialulungiamansuande Usemalng laelingliannmsveduamslulssinatassinsssmed
wanslumsnetenu Inedunsndlinyuidsuimun snviuluamuluusensweglussmelng

Tl 2559 vsgneneldangndselngdwauanuse Wudnautuuszana 1,017 Suum Janaindiny
nanwarvIerInvuy (@ 2558 Ixeldaingndrselngdruiuaiusie Wudwiudu 1,032 d1uum F91190n
AUNUNAALAZUER N UL)

eIzl 2559
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naaNUA1SaUAITW

Usnanasndnauuisnldutuiadinomudsesdsdndunumss udydfnomudiseadosin we,
2530 lnegniinaudieavaudusiedeulusniiovay 5 vesludoutaruSengaunuliludnsiesas 5 - 10
%aaﬁmﬁauwﬁmm ﬂszﬁwﬁmmﬁLﬂuam%ﬂﬂawuﬂﬁau‘?uﬁ 1 Un91AN 2546 USENI9EYENNUDATINLAYIT
Luamamumu 7 Yiduuway 10 Yidu ﬂaqwumimLaawwummﬂmauswwaﬂmwmﬂmsﬂmwu nansine
10 Lazay msfl:mmeummmawuﬂmuuuaaﬂmﬂmummvLuausuaqﬂawwuawww Iuivmwﬂ 2559
UsEnlisusRuaumudsnardueldinediuan 18 duum (2558: 18 duum)

27. Ruduuainy

Ruduwa Ruluna
dngseny  Fgsieu
auililag suRulunadny ySuEns anley
(U m) (um) (um)
FuilumaUsydl 2557 AvsvymansydievuileTud
27 Wweu 2558 93,600 3.25 1.75
sruduiunadivszniadnelul 2558 93,600 3985 1.75
Fuilunauszdd 2558 Aszymanstryifeuidlotud
28 w1y 2559 93,600 3.25 1.75
sruRutlunaiiuszniasielud 2559 93,600 3.5 1.75

28. miszgnuu

au Jufl 31 SurAn 2559 way 2558 UsEmalnnseyniuiwielull
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying the financial statements of Crown Seal Public Company Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position, in which the equity method is applied as at
31 December 2016; and the related statements of income, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity; the statement of cash flows, in which the equity method is
applied for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Crown Seal Public Company

Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Crown Seal Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2016, its financial performance and cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage
of His Majesty the King as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a

whole.
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Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Revenue recognition

As revenue from sales is the significant figure in the income statement and are the key performance indicator
to which users of the financial statements pay attention. Export sales have term of delivery which should be
considered when record. In addition, the economic has directly resulted in more intense competition in the
industry. There are therefore risks with respect to the amount and timing of revenue recognition.

| have examined the revenue recognition of the Company by

® Assessing the appropriateness and testing the effectiveness of the Company’s IT system and its internal
controls with respect to the revenue cycle by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an
understanding of the controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed
controls.

® On a sampling basis, examining supporting documents for sales transactions occurring during the year
and near the end of the accounting period to verify the occurrence and accuracy of revenue, whether
revenue recognition was consistent with the conditions, and whether it was in compliance with the
Company’s policy.

® Reviewing of credit notes that the Company issued after the period-end.

® Performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible irregularities in sales
transactions throughout the period.

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

Estimating the net realisable value of inventory, as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, is an area
of significant management judgment, particularly with regard to the estimation of allowance for diminution in
the value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories. This requires detailed analysis of the product life cycle
and the economic circumstances. There is a risk with respect to the amount of allowance set aside for

diminution in the value of inventories.

| assessed and tested the internal controls of the Company relevant to the determination of allowance for
diminution in the value of inventories by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding
of the controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls. In addition,
| also assessed the method and the assumptions applied by management in determining such allowance.
The procedures that | performed included:

® (Gaining an understanding of the basis applied in determining the allowance for diminution in value of
inventories and reviewing the consistency of the application of that basis, and the rationale for the

recording of specific allowance.

® (Comparing the inventory holding periods and inventory movements to identify product lines with

indicators of lower than normal inventory turnover.

® (Comparing net proceeds from sales transactions occurring after the date of the financial statements with
the cost of inventory for each product line.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information
included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s
report thereon. The annual report of the Company is expected to be made available to me after the date of
this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Company, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
| am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction of the
misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fairly presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrecate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

® Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

® (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® F[valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. | am responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Company audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit
opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not
be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chayapol Suppasedtanon.

Chayapol Suppasedtanon
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3972

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 21 February 2017
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 274,843,264 498,774,412 274,843,264 498,774,412
Current investments 710,000,000 210,289,460 710,000,000 210,289,460
Trade and other receivables 6, 8 372,502,211 406,306,624 372,502,211 406,306,624
Inventories 9 510,542,509 442,310,110 510,542,509 442,310,110
Other current assets 6,712,397 9,005,838 6,712,397 9,005,838
Total current assets 1,874,600,381 1,566,686,444 1,874,600,381 1,566,686,444
Non-current assets
Investment in associated company 10 35,383,856 43,315,499 46,341,825 46,341,825
Long-term investments 11 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738
Investment properties 12 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,115,118,439 1,185,665,000 1,115,118,439 1,185,665,000
Intangible assets 14 2,706,498 2,902,932 2,706,498 2,902,932
Other non-current assets 35,258,281 8,948,080 35,258,281 8,948,080
Total non-current assets 1,707,763,812 1,760,128,249 1,718,721,781 1,763,154,575
Total assets 3,582,364,193 3,326,814,693 3,593,322,162 3,329,841,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

Liabilities and shareholders' equity o
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6, 16 350,407,306 374,432,084 350,407,306 374,432,084
Rental received in advance to be recognised

within one year 6 992,608 992,608 992,608 992,608
Corporate income tax payable 33,549,214 40,785,420 33,549,214 40,785,420
Other current liabilities 20,563,539 15,131,764 20,563,539 15,131,764
Total current liabilities 405,512,667 431,341,876 405,512,667 431,341,876
Non-current liabilities
Rental received in advance - net of

current portion 6 13,400,208 14,392,816 13,400,208 14,392,816
Deferred tax liabilities 23 26,970,353 30,732,551 26,970,353 30,732,551
Provision for long-term employee benefits 17 157,212,897 142,035,405 157,212,897 142,035,405
Total non-current liabilities 197,583,458 187,160,772 197,583,458 187,160,772
Total liabilities 603,096,125 618,502,648 603,096,125 618,502,648

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
Shareholders' equity o
Share capital
Registered
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of
Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000
Issued and paid-up
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of
Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
Additional paid-in capital
Premium on preferred shares 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704
Premium on ordinary shares 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 19 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000
Unappropriated 1,987,085,129 1,716,771,507 1,996,383,731 1,717,496,065
Other components of shareholders' equity 24,574,896 23,932,495 26,234,263 26,234,263
Total shareholders' equity 2,979,268,068 2,708,312,045 2,990,226,037 2,711,338,371
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,582,364,193 3,326,814,693 3,593,322,162 3,329,841,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Note

Revenues
Sales 6
Service income 6
Other income 21
Total revenues
Expenses
Cost of sales
Cost of service
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Profit before share of loss from investment

in associated company and income tax expense
Share of loss from investment in associated

company 10
Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense 23

Profit for the year

Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year
Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2016 2015 2016 2015
2,710,904,155 2,680,650,215 2,710,904,155 2,680,650,215
173,147,152 162,035,633 173,147,152 162,035,633
128,420,464 159,842,722 128,420,464 159,842,722
3,012,471,771 3,002,528,570 3,012,471,771 3,002,528,570

2,171,985,378

2,233,424,181

2,171,985,378

2,233,424,181

133,979,537 139,189,492 133,979,537 139,189,492
65,438,641 65,987,687 65,438,641 65,987,687
169,094,778 154,526,611 169,094,778 154,526,611
2,540,498,334 2,593,127,971 2,540,498,334 2,593,127,971
471,973,437 409,400,599 471,973,437 409,400,599
(8,574,044) (2,327,805) - -
463,399,393 407,072,794 471,973,437 409,400,599
(90,963,261) (83,544,899) (90,963,261) (83,544,899)
372,436,132 323,527,895 381,010,176 325,855,700
7.16 6.22 7.33 6.27

7.05 6.13 7.22 6.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2016

184

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements in foreign currency - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of
income tax

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Actuarial losses - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of
income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2016 2015 2016 2015
372,436,132 323,527,895 381,010,176 325,855,700
642,401 (3,373,397) - -
642,401 (3,373,397) - -
(8,523,578) - (8,523,578) -
(8,523,578) - (8,523,578) -
(7,881,177) (3,373,397) (8,523,578) -
364,554,955 320,154,498 372,486,598 325,855,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
2016 2015 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 463,399,393 407,072,794 471,973,437 409,400,599
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Loss on diminution in value of inventories
and write off of inventories and spare parts 17,115,445 15,686,858 17,115,445 15,686,858
Depreciation and amortisation 170,602,542 163,093,018 170,602,542 163,093,018
Share of loss from investment in associated company 8,574,044 2,327,805 - -
Loss on sales of equipment 32,266 159,075 32,266 159,075
Long-term employee benefits expenses 11,938,737 8,070,012 11,938,737 8,070,012
Interest income (12,894,990) (10,264,017) (12,894,990) (10,264,017)
Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange (254,182) 225,422 (254,182) 225,422
Profit from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 658,513,255 586,370,967 658,513,255 586,370,967
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade and other receivables 35,095,203 30,291,635 35,095,203 30,291,635
Inventories (85,347,843) 31,125,496 (85,347,843) 31,125,496
Other current assets 2,293,441 6,122,933 2,293,441 6,122,933
Other non-current assets 61,257 (1,172,464) 61,257 (1,172,464)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables (23,702,575) (20,153,508) (23,702,575) (20,153,508)
Other current liabilities 5,418,302 (439,944) 5,418,302 (439,944)
Rental received in advance (992,608) (1,179,275) (992,608) (1,179,275)
Provision for long-term employee benefits (7,415,717) (4,217,808) (7,415,717) (4,217,808)
Cash flows from operating activities 583,922,715 626,748,032 583,922,715 626,748,032
Cash paid for corporate income tax (99,830,770) (76,666,041) (99,830,770) (76,666,041)
Net cash flows from operating activities 484,091,945 550,081,991 484,091,945 550,081,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which

equity method is applied Separate financial statements

2016 2015 2016 2015

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in current investments (499,710,540) (170,000,000) (499,710,540) (170,000,000)
Acquisitions of equipment (97,734,419) (277,646,987) (97,734,419) (277,646,987)
Proceeds from sales of equipment 743,035 171,474 743,035 171,474
Increase in intangible assets (2,655,400) (38,080) (2,655,400) (38,080)
(Increase) decrease in advance for purchase of machinery (26,616,488) 24,089,640 (26,616,488) 24,089,640
Interest income 11,599,495 10,811,630 11,599,495 10,811,630
Net cash flows used in investing activities (614,374,317) (412,612,323) (614,374,317) (412,612,323)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (223,881,304) 43,870,736 (223,881,304) 43,870,736
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (49,844) 152,775 (49,844) 152,775
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7) 274,843,264 498,774,412 274,843 264 498,774,412
Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash transactions: -

Adjust of provision for long-term employee benefits 10,654,472 - 10,654,472 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

@)

General information

Crown Seal Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. Its major shareholder is Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., which was incorporated in Japan. The
ultimate company of the Group is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. The Company is principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of caps for bottles and the hire of printing sheets for can. The registered
office of the Company is at 5 Soi Rangsit - Nakhon Nayok 46, Tambon Prachatipat, Amphur Thanyaburi,
Pathum Thani.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in
compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated
28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company.
The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed

in the accounting policies.

New financial reporting standards

Below is a summary of financial reporting standards that became effective in the current accounting year
and those that will become effective in the future.

Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company has adopted the revised (revised 2015) and new financial reporting
standards and accounting treatment guidance issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions which
become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These financial reporting standards
were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards, with most of
the changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and
accounting guidance to users of standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not

have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements
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Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of the revised financial
reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2016) and new accounting treatment guidance which is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2017. These financial reporting standards were
aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the
changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and

accounting guidance to users of standards.

The management of the Company believes that the revised financial reporting standards and interpretations
and new accounting treatment guidance will not have any significant impact on the financial statements
when they are initially applied. However, one standard involves changes to key principles, which are

summarized below.
TAS 27 (revised 2016) Separate Financial Statements

This revised standard stipulates an additional option to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in separate financial statements under the equity method, as described in TAS
28 (revised 2016) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. However, the entity is to apply the same
accounting treatment for each category of investment. If an entity elects to account for such investments
using the equity method in the separate financial statements, it has to adjust the transaction

retrospectively.

This standard will not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements because the
management has decided to continue accounting for such investment under the cost method in the

separate financial statements.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyers. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax of goods supplied after

deducting discounts and allowances.

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of

completion.

Rental income is recognised as income using the straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement.
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Export subsidies granted by the Ministry of Finance in the form of tax coupons are recognised as income

when the Company obtains written notification of approval of the tax coupon.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with

an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is

generally based on collection experiences and analysis of debt aging.
Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of cost (under the weighted average method)
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes all production costs and attributable factory

overheads.

Raw materials, chemicals, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and
net realisable value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.

Investments

Investment in associated company is accounted for in the financial statements, in which the equity
method is applied, using the equity method and is accounted for in the separate financial statement

using the cost method.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments,
are stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial

recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in

the value of investment properties are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at the revalued amount. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Land are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an independent
professional appraiser to their fair values. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure

that the carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value at the end of reporting period.
Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s
assets, the increase is credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the cumulative

increase is recognized in equity under the heading of “Revaluation surplus on assets”. However,
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4.8

4.9

192

a revaluation increase is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation

decrease in respect of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s
assets, the decrease is recognized in the income statement. However, the revaluation decrease
is charged to the other comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed an amount

already held in the “Revaluation surplus on assets” in respect of the same assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings and building improvements 5-20 vyears
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles 3-5  years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is included

in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

(if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at

each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to the income statement.
A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows.

Useful lives
Computer software 3and 5 years

Licenses 6 years
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the Company,

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated company and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a
voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, and key
management personnel, and directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the

Company’s operations.
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4.10 Long-term leases

4.11

4.12

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to the income
statement over the lease period. The equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the

useful life of the asset.

Leases of equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht

at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount
of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less

than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. However in cases where land was previously
revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is recognised in equity up

to the amount of the previous revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The increased carrying amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal, which exceeds the carrying amount

that would have been determined, is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

194

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when

incurred.
Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans)

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The
fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as
expenses when incurred. In addition, the Company has contributions for provident fund made before
the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 was effective. The Company manages this fund itself and will pay it

to the employees upon their terminations.
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined
benefit plan. In addition, the Company provides other long-term employee benefit plan, namely long

service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined
by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected

unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income and for other long-term benefits are recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation

authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of

the reporting period.
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4.16

4.17

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise
deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary

differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that are

recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. Unrecognised gains and losses from the translations are
included in determining income. Premiums or discounts on forward exchange contracts are amortised on a

straight-line basis over the contract periods.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The Company applies
a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be
measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an
identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value
using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant

observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in fair

value measurement as follows:

Levell - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities
Level2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
Level3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times
requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are
inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and

actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgments and estimates are as follows.
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Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and
estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts

and the prevailing economic condition.
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

Allowances for diminution in the value of inventories accounts are intended to adjust the value of
inventories for probable losses. The management uses judgment to estimate losses, based on an
analysis of inventory aging, taking into account the current situation with respect to sales of inventory

items, on a specific basis.
Allowance for diminution in value of investments

The Company treats other investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The

determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.
Investment properties

The Company presents investment properties at the fair value estimated by an independent appraiser,
and recognises changes in the fair value in the income statement. The independent appraiser values
the investment properties using the sales comparison approach and the depreciated replacement cost

approach. The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value are described in the related note.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of
the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives

and residual values when there are any changes.

The Company measures land at revalued amount. Such amount is determined by the independent
valuer using sales comparison approach, and such valuation involves certain assumptions and estimates as

described in the related note.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a
periodical basis and records impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is
lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and

expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of
the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the

arrangement.
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Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing,
require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset and to choose a

suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is
determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions,

including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position
that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily available, the
management exercise judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to
these models is taken from observable markets, and includes consideration of credit risk (bank and
counterparty, both) liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments. Change in
assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised in the statement of financial

position and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. Such
transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related

parties.
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /

Separate financial

statements Pricing policy
2016 2015
Transactions with related companies
Sales of caps 686,696 725,170  Cost plus margin
Service income from printing sheets 170,021 159,588  Cost plus margin
Rental income 3,135 2,441  Contract price
Sales of equipment, spare parts and 1,034 1,355  Price charged to other
raw materials customers in the normal

course of business

Administrative income 13,051 11,453 Contract price

Purchases of raw materials 1,756 1,344 Cost plus margin

Purchases of spare parts and machinery 21,524 32,304 Cost plus margin

Royalty fee 21,677 22,311 A percentage of net sales of
each product

Claim payment for damaged goods 247 858 At cost

Transfer value of machine shared the 623 4,358 At cost

ownership
Dividend paid 60,455 60,455  As declared

Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had employee benefit expenses

payable to its directors and management as below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits 19,340 19,209
Post-employment benefits 278 223
Total 19,618 19,432
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As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those

related parties are as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015

Trade accounts receivable - related parties (Note 8) 97,533 100,699
Other receivables - related parties (Note 8) 7,615 7,859
Other payables - related parties (Note 16) 19,923 22,733
Rental received in advance

Rental received in advance 14,393 15,386
Less: Current portion (993) (993)
Net 13,400 14,393

Additional information concerning the transactions with the related parties is as follows.

a) The relationships between the Company and related parties are summarized below.

Company Type of business Relationship
PT Indonesia Caps and Closures Produce and distribute packaging caps for Associated company
beverage
Boonrawd Brewery Group Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Thai Namthip Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd.  Manufacture and sale of packaging Shareholder and common directors
Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of packaging Shareholder and common directors

Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  Manufacture and sale of 2 & 3 - piece cans  Common shareholders and directors

Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of plastic packaging Common shareholders and directors
Next Can Innovation Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of 2-piece cans Common shareholders and directors
Saiwai Shoji Co., Ltd. Sale of machinery and spare parts Common shareholders

Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd.  Containing service and sale of aerosol can Common shareholders
Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Plastic injection mould and blow mould ~ Common shareholders

manufacturing

b)  The transactions with trade accounts receivable - related parties are conducted in the normal
course of business of the Company and in accordance with its established objectives, which are
the manufacture and distribution of products to customers who are shareholders of the Company

and are in competition with each other, and the provision of printing services.

o) Other receivables - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from rental, sales of equipment
and spare parts, administrative assistance and the provision of IT infrastructure servicesto related

companies.
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d) Other payables - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from purchases of raw materials,

spare parts and machinery, accrued royalty fee and accrued claims payments for damaged goods.

e)  The stipulated conditions of the provision of printing services to Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co.,

Ltd. are that payment is to be made on a monthly basis and the period of service is indefinite.

f) Rental received in advance represents rental received under the agreement to rent out certain

plots of land to Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. for a period of 30 years, ending 1 July 2031.

Moreover, the Company entered into agreements to rent out additional land and building to
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The rental for this land, determined based on the appraisal
value, and for the building, calculated on the basis of depreciated cost, is payable in annual
amounts. Compensation for the years ended in August 2016 and 2015 totaled Baht 0.3 million and
Baht 0.3 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the compensation for extending of this

agreement is in decision process.

Q) The Company rents office space and provides central services, to Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Compensation for the years ended in December 2016 and 2015 totaled Baht 1 million and Baht 1

million, respectively, payable on a monthly basis.

In December 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd., a company in the group, to rent office space and central services for a period of six months
ending in June 2017, with the fee of Baht 0.6 million.

h)  The Company entered into agreements to provide the rentals of server and storage machine to
the related companies in the group of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd. Agreements cover for a
period of 4 years, ended in December 2015. Compensation is Baht 3 million, payable on an annual

basis.

The Company extended agreements for a period of 4 years ending in May 2020, with compensation

amounting to Baht 4 million.

i) The Company entered into agreements to install and provide administrative services for computer
software and hardware and personnel systems to related companies in the group of Toyo Seikan
Group Holdings Ltd. Compensation under these agreements for the years 2016 and 2015 totaled Baht

12 million and Baht 7 million, respectively, payable on a monthly basis.

The Company extended the agreements to provide the above services for a period of one year,

ending in December 2017, with compensation amounting to Baht 9 million.

j) The Company entered into sales of assets and service of generating the electricity with Bangkok
Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The compensation payment is fix rate per month and the period of
services is not specified. Compensation for the years 2016 and 2015 was approximately Baht 2

million each.

k) The Company entered into technical license agreement with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., whereby
the Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps. The agreement ends
in December 2017. Compensation is payable at a percentage of net sales of products stipulated in

the agreement, on a semi-annual basis.
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Moreover, the Company entered into an additional technical license agreement with such
company, whereby the Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of

composite caps. The agreement runs for 6 years, ending in December 2016, with compensation in

the form of an initial payment of JPY 5 million and an annual fee at a percentage of net sales of

these products.

7. Cash and cash equivalents
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Cash 171 180
Bank deposits 274,672 498,594
Total 274,843 498,774

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed deposits carried interests between
0.10% and 1.00% per annum (2015: between 0.10% and 2.03% per annum).
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8. Trade and other receivables
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Trade accounts receivable -related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 69,330 70,978
Past due
Up to 3 months 28,203 29,721
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties 97,533 100,699
Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 215,106 238,169
Past due
Up to 3 months 46,996 55,286
3 -6 months - 256
6 - 12 months - 15
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties 262,102 293,726
Other receivables - related parties
Advances - 93
Accrued income 7,615 7,766
Total other receivables - related parties 7,615 7,859
Other receivables - unrelated parties
Advances 2,277 1,945
Receivable from scrap sales 1,108 694
Others 1,867 1,384
Total other receivables - unrelated parties 5,252 4,023
Total trade and other receivables 372,502 406,307
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9. Inventories

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Reduce cost Reduce cost
to net to net
realisable  Inventories- realisable Inventories-
Cost value net Cost value net

Finished goods 155,002 (24,732) 130,270 143,866 (22,002) 121,864
Work in process 142,040 (8,518) 133,522 97,549 (4,926) 92,623
Raw materials 179,399 (8,749) 170,650 167,120 (5,932) 161,188
Goods in transit 13,191 - 13,191 11,673 - 11,673
Spare parts 62,910 - 62,910 54,962 - 54,962
Total 552,542 (41,999) 510,543 475,170 (32,860) 442,310

During the current year, the Company reduced cost of inventories by Baht 17 million (2015: Baht 16
million), to reflect the net realisable value. This was included in cost of sales. In addition, the Company
reversed the write-down of cost of inventories by Baht 8 million (2015: Baht 12 million) resulting from

inventories destructions.

10. Investment in associated company
10.1 Details of investment in associated company

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statement

in which
equity method Separate financial
is applied statements

Carrying amount

Associate's Nature of Country of  Shareholding based on
name business incorporation  percentage equity method Cost
(%) 2016 2015 2016 2015
PT Indonesia  Produce and Republic of
Caps and distribute Indonesia
Closures packaging caps
for beverages 25 35,384 43315 46,342 46,342
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10.2 Share of comprehensive income and dividend received

The Company has recognised its share of profit (loss) from investment in associated company in the

financial statements in which equity method is applied and dividend income in the separate financial

statements as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Share of other

Share of profit (loss) from comprehensive income
investment in associate from investment in Dividend received
Associates’ name during the year associate during the year during the year
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
PT Indonesia Caps and
Closures (8,574) (2,328) - B B .

10.3 Summarised material financial information of associate

Financial information of the associated company is summarised below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December

2016 2015
Summarised information about financial position
Total assets 358 359
Total liabilities 216 186
142 173

Net assets

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended

31 December

2016 2015
Summarised information about comprehensive income
Revenue - -
Loss (34) 9)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income (34) 9
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11. Long-term investments
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /

Companies Separate financial statements
Shareholding
percentage (%) 2016 2015
Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. 10.00 - 10,000
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1.61 9,494 9,494
Petpak Co., Ltd. 10.00 35,000 35,000
Muang-Ake Golf Co., Ltd. 0.08 180 180
City Sports and Recreation Co., Ltd. 0.03 273 273
Muang-Ake Vista Golf Course Co., Ltd. 0.06 350 350
Total cost 45,297 55,297
Less: Allowance for loss on diminution in value - (10,000)
Long-term investments - net 45,297 45,297

In January 2016, the Company wrote off all investment in Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. since this

company went bankrupt and the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered closing the case.

12. Investment properties
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements
2016
Allocated land

and

construction

Land for rent thereon Vacant land Total
Net book value at beginning of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Net book value at and of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Rental income for the year 1,316 - - 1,316

Expense - - - -
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements
2015
Allocated land

and

construction

Land for rent thereon Vacant land Total
Net book value at beginning of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Net book value at and of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Rental income for the year 1,273 - - 1,273

Expense - - - -

Future rental income of investment properties were the following:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2016 2015
Within 1 year 993 993
Over 1 and up to 5 years 3,972 3,972
Over 5 years 9,428 10,421

In December 2016 and 2015, the Company hired an independent appraiser, American Appraisal
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. to appraise the fair value of investment properties.The valuer determined the value
of land using market price comparison approach, while the depreciated replacement cost approach
was used to value construction in development projects. Since the appraised values of such assets
were not different from the value previously appraised, the Company therefore did not adjust their fair

values.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016
Revaluatior
basis Cost basis
Furniture,

fixtures, office

Buildings and ~ Machinery  equipment Asset
building and and motor under
Land  mprovements  equipment vehicles installation Total

Cost / Revalued amount
1 January 2016 99,000 450,100 2,424,959 91,256 101,228 3,166,543
Additions - - 19,584 2,721 75,430 97,735
Disposals - (1,734) (32,978) (7,014) - (41,726)
Transfers in (out) - 2,746 119,535 8,798 (131,079) -
31 December 2016 99,000 451,112 2,531,100 95,760 45,579 3,222,551
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2016 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
Depreciation for the year - 15,775 135,595 10,784 - 162,154
Depreciation on disposals - (1,492) (27,290) (6,817) - (35,599)
31 December 2016 - 305,798 1,733,518 68,116 - 2,107,433
Net book value
31 December 2016 99,000 145,314 797,582 27,644 45579 1,115,118
Depreciation for the year
2016 (Baht 153 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance 162,154

in administrative expenses)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015
Revaluatior
basis Cost basis
Furniture,

fixtures, office

Buildings and  Machinery  equipment Asset
building and and motor under
Land  mprovements  equipment vehicles installation Total

Cost / Revalued amount
1 January 2015 99,000 443,912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
Additions - - 21,402 2,022 254,223 277,647
Disposals - (747) (43,898) (1,472) - (46,117)
Transfers in (out) - 6,934 285,671 8,660 (301,265) -
31 December 2015 99,000 450,099 2,424,960 91,256 101,228 3,166,543
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2015 - 275,916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
Depreciation for the year - 16,443 128,649 9,152 - 154,244
Depredation on disposals - (844) (37,532) (1,470) - (39,846)
31 December 2015 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
Net book value
31 December 2015 99,000 158,584 799,747 27,106 101,228 1,185,665
Depreciation for the year
2015 (Baht 150 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance 154,244

in administrative expenses)

The Company had its land revalued, at the latest in December 2014 by American Appraisal (Thailand)

Co., Ltd., using sales comparison approach to value its land.

Had the land been carried on historical cost basis, its book value as of 31 December 2016 and 2015

would have amounted to Baht 66 million.

As at 31 December 2016, certain items of buildings and equipment were fully depreciated but are still
in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets
amounted to Baht 1,365 million (2015: Baht 1,251 million).

The Company shares the ownership of some building and machinery with Bangkok Can Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. and records the building and machinery in proportion to its ownership. The carrying amount
of its portion as at 31 December 2016 was Baht 12 million (2015: Baht 15 million).

208  swswusedb 2559
Annual Report 2016



14. 1Intangible assets
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016

Computer

software Licenses Total
Cost - at beginning of year 45,004 630 45,634
Acquisition 2,655 - 2,655
Write-off (274) - (274)
Cost - at end of year 47,385 630 48,015
Accumulated amortisation - at beginning of year 42,416 315 42,731
Amortisation for the year 2,534 315 2,849
Amortisation on write-off (271) - (271)
Accumulated amortisation - at end of year 44,679 630 45,309
Intangible assets - net 2,706 - 2,706

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015

Computer

software Licenses Total
Cost - at beginning of year 44,966 1,260 46,226
Acquisition 38 - 38
Cost - at end of year 45,004 1,260 46,264
Accumulated amortisation - at beginning of year 40,067 630 40,697
Amortisation for the year 2,349 315 2,664
Accumulated amortisation - at end of year 42,416 945 43361
Intangible assets - net 2,588 315 2,903
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15.

16.

17.

210

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

Unutilised bank overdrafts and short-term loan facilities of the Company as at 31 December 2016
totaled Baht 175 million and Baht 900 million, respectively (2015: Baht 175 million and Baht 900

million, respectively). Such loan facilities are unsecured.

Trade and other payables
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015

Trade accounts payables - unrelated parties 270,099 282,551
Other payables - related parties

Accrued royalty fee 9,040 10,868

Others 10,883 11,865
Total other payables - related parties 19,923 22,733
Other payables - unrelated parties

Other payables 25,451 35,730

Accrued expenses 34,934 33,418
Total other payables - unrelated parties 60,385 69,148
Total trade and other payables 350,407 374,432

Provision for long-term employee benefits
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans) 48,251 48,224
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) 89,287 76,797
Other long-term employee benefits 19,675 17,014
Total 157,213 142,035

Provision for post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans), which represents compensation

payable the employees after they are retired from the Company, was as follows.

eIzl 2559
Annual Report 2016



Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year
Included in the income statement:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Recognition in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss arising from:
Financial assumptions changes
Experience adjustments

Benefits paid during the year

Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015

76,7197 75,304
4,241 3,797
2,476 2,527
2,903 -
7,751 -

(4,881) (4,831)

89,287 76,7197

Line items in the income statement which post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) are

recognised are as following:

Cost of sales
Selling and administrative expenses

Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
4,875 4,619
1,812 1,705
6,717 6,324

The Company expects to pay Baht 5 million of post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) during

the next year (2015: Baht 4 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for post-employment benefits

(Defined benefit plans) is 6 years (2015: 6 years).

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below.

Discount rate

Salary increase rate

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015

(% per annum) (% per annum)
3.00 3.50
5.00 5.00
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18.

19.

20.

212

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the post-

employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are summarised

below:
31 December 2016
Increase Effect to obligation = Decrease  Effect to obligation
(%) (Thousand Baht) (%) (Thousand Baht)
Discount rate 0.5 (3,071) 0.5 3,252
Salary increase rate 1.0 7,478 1.0 (6,775)
31 December 2015
Increase Effect to obligation = Decrease  Effect to obligation
(%) (Thousand Baht) (%) (Thousand Baht)
Discount rate 0.5 (2,761) 0.5 2,954
Salary increase rate 1.0 8,536 1.0 (7,657)

Preferred shares

The preferred shares of the Company are registered shares granting dividend entitlements at the rate
of the ordinary shares plus Baht 1.50 per share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative.
Each preferred share has the same voting rights as the ordinary shares and is convertible to ordinary

shares in a ratio of 1:1 on the last day of every month.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, 799,988 preferred shares remained unexercised.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set
aside to a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought
forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not

available for dividend distribution.

Revaluation surplus on assets

This represents surplus arising from revaluation of land. The revaluation surplus can neither be offset

against deficit nor used for dividend payment.
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21.

22.

Other income

Income from sales of scrap metal and spareparts
Administrative income
Interest income

Others
Total

Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows.

Salary, wages and other employee benefits

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on diminution in value of inventories and write off of
inventories and spare parts

Royalty fee

Freight-out expense

Repair and maintenance expenses

Raw materials and consumables used

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
85,491 102,598
13,051 11,453
12,895 10,264
16,983 35,528

128,420 159,843

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
468,779 438,580
170,603 163,093

17,115 15,687
21,677 22,311
31,299 33,220
101,517 108,810
1,539,549 1,517,470
55,627 51,157
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23. Income tax / Deferred tax liahilities

Income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is made up as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 92,572 84,493
Adjust in respect of income tax of previous year 22 212
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences (1,631) (1,160)
Income tax expense reported in

the income statement 90,963 83,545

Tax reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied Separate financial statements
2016 2015 2016 2015
Accounting profit before tax 463,399 407,073 471,973 409,401
Applicable tax rates 12.5% and 20% 12.5% and 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax
multiplied by applicable tax rate 94,394 81,880 94,394 81,880
Adjust in respect of income tax of
previous year 22 213 22 213
Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 5,981 6,909 5,981 6,909
Additional expense deductions allowed (7,803) (4,296) (7,803) (4,296)
Others (1,631) (1,161) (1,631) (1,161)
Total (3,453) 1,452 (3,453) 1,452
Income tax expense reported in
the income statement 90,963 83,545 90,963 83,545
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The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2016 2015
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories 8,400 6,572
Provision for long-term employee benefits 21,792 18,768
Rental received in advance 2,680 2,878
Others 1,804 1,772
Total deferred tax assets 34,676 29,990
Depreciation and amortisation 29,396 28,472
Gain on change in the value of investment properties 25,692 25,692
Revaluation surplus on land 6,559 6,559
Total deferred tax liabilities 61,647 60,723
Deferred tax liabilities, net 26,971 30,733

24. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive

income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive
income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at

the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Financial statements in which equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December

Weighted average

Profit for number of Earnings
the year ordinary shares per share
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand  (Baht) (Baht)

Baht) Baht) shares) shares)

Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 372,436 323,528 52,000 52,000 7.16 6.22
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Convertible preferred shares - - 800 800
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming the

conversion to ordinary shares 372,436 323528 52,800 52,800 7.05 6.13

Separate financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

Weighted average

Profit for number of Earnings
the year ordinary shares per share
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand  (Baht) (Baht)

Baht) Baht) shares) shares)

Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 381,010 325,856 52,000 52,000 7.33 6.27
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Convertible preferred shares - - 800 800
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming the

conversion to ordinary shares 381,010 325,856 52,800 52,800 1.22 6.17
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Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting the chief
operating decision maker has received and regularly reviewed to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The chief operating decision maker has been

identified as the Company's authorised director.

For management purposes, the Company are organised into business units based on its products and

services and have three reportable segments as follows:

1. manufacture and sale of caps
2. hire of printing sheets for can
3. investment properties

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of its business units separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing performance. Segment
performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and on a basis consistent with that used to
measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements. However, the Company’ financing activities
which give rise to finance costs and finance income, administrative activities, and income tax are
managed on a group basis. Therefore these income and expenses are not allocated to operating

segments.

The following table presented revenue and profit information regarding the Company’s operating

segments for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Manufacture and Hire of printing Investing in
sale of caps sheetsfor can properties Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenue
Local 1,976,383 1,993,500 173,147 162,036 1,316 1,273 2,150,846 2,156,809
Export 734,521 687,150 - - - - 734,521 687,150
Total revenue 2,710,904 2,680,650 173,147 162,036 1,316 1,273 2,885,367 2,843,959
Operating results
Segment profit 559,218 484,134 38,921 22,549 1,316 1,273 599,455 507,956
Unallocated income and expenses
Finance income 12,895 10,264
Other income 28,718 45,708
Administrating expenses (169,095)  (154,527)
Share of loss from investment

in associated company (8,574) (2,328)

Profit before income tax expense 463,399 407,073
Income tax expense (90,963)  (83,545)
Profit for the year 372,436 323,528
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26.

27.

218

The Company mainly operated in Thailand, with sales derived from both local and foreign markets as
reflected in above table. All of non-current assets, except for investment in associated company are
located in Thailand.

For the year 2016, the Company has revenue from three major customers in amount of Baht 1,017
million, arising from sales of caps segment (2015: Baht 1,032 million derived from three major customers,

arising from sales of caps segment).

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Employees contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 5% of their
salaries, and the Company contributes at rates of 5%-10% of the employees’ salaries. For employees
who joined the fund before 1 January 2003, the Company has to pay extra contributions when their
length of service reaches 7 years and 10 years. The fund, which is managed by Kasikorn Asset Management
Company Limited, will be paid to the employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules.
The contributions for the year 2016 amounting to Baht 18 million (2015: Baht 18 million) were

recognised as expense.

Dividends paid

Total Dividend per  Dividend per
Approved by dividends  preferred share ordinary share
(Thousand (Baht) (Baht)
Baht)
Final dividends for 2014 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders on 27 April 2015 93,600 3.25 1.75
Total dividends declared in 2015 93,600 3.25 1.75
Final dividends for 2015 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders on 28 April 2016 93,600 3.25 1.75
Total dividends declared in 2016 93,600 3.25 1.75
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28.

29.
29.1

Commitments
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company has the following outstanding commitments.

a) The Company has commitments, which mature within one year, to local and overseas suppliers

under purchase orders for raw materials, spare parts and service hiring, and capital expenditures,

as follows.
(Unit: Million)
31 December 2016
Purchase orders  Purchase orders
Foreign Purchase orders  for spare parts for capital
Currency for raw materials  and service hiring expenditures Total
Baht 169 17 18 204
US dollar 1 - - 1
Japanese yen - 19 305 324
Euro - - 1 1
(Unit: Million)
31 December 2015
Purchase orders  Purchase orders
Foreign Purchase orders  for spare parts for capital
Currency for raw materials and service hiring expenditures Total
Baht 157 20 35 212
US dollar 1 - - 1
Japanese yen - 9 - 9

b)  The Company has bank guarantees of Baht 9.7 million (2015: Baht 10.0 million) issued by a bank
on behalf of the Company. Letters of guarantees are to guarantee electricity usage of Baht 9.5
million (2015: Baht 9.5 million) and the purchase-sell agreements with a state agency of Baht 0.2
million (2015: Baht 0.5 million).

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, current

investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables. The financial risks associated with

these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.
a)  Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The
Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and

therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not
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have high concentration of credit risk since it has a large customer base. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables as stated in the statements of

financial position.

b) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits at financial
institutions. However, since most of the financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates
or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be

minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in the
table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified
based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.
(Million Baht)
Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements
31 December 2016

Fixed interest
rates maturity Floating Non-interest

within 1 year  interest rates bearing Interest rate

(% per annum)
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 268 7 - 0.04 - 1.05
Current investments 710 - - 1.55-1.60
Trade and other receivables } } 373

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - 350

(Million Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements
31 December 2015

Fixed interest
rates maturity Floating Non-interest

within 1 year  interest rates bearing Interest rate

(% per annum)
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 454 35 10 0.04 - 1.50
Current investments 210 - - 1.85-2.03
Trade and other receivables B} B} 406

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - 374
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o)

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into
forward exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts

mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are summarised

below.
31 December 2016
Financial Financial
Foreign currency assets liabilities Average exchange rate
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign
currency unit)
US dollar 2 1 35.57and 36.00
Japanese yen - 34 0.30 and 0.31
31 December 2015
Financial Financial
Foreign currency assets liabilities Average exchange rate
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign
currency unit)
US dollar 3 1 35.83 and 36.25
Japanese yen 16 39 0.30 and 0.30
Forward exchange contracts outstanding are summarised below.
31 December2016
Foreign currency  Sold amount Contractual exchange rate  Contractual maturity date
(Million)  (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.43 34.77 - 35.72 20 January 2017 -
9 May 2017

31 December 2015

Foreign currency  Sold amount Contractual exchange rate  Contractual maturity date

(Million)  (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.83 35.42 - 36.13 3 February 2016 -
17 September 2016
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29.2 Fair value of financial instruments

30.

31.

32.

33.

222

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying interest
at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different

from the amounts presented in the statements of financial position.

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value

using different levels of inputs as follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Long-term investments - - a5 45
Investment properties - 468 6 474
Land - 99 - 99
Liabilities for which fair value are disclosed
Foreign currency forward contracts - 15 - 15

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate
capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December
2016, the Company's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.20:1 (2015: 0.23:1).

Event after the reporting period

On 21 February 2017, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to propose
to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to be held in April 2017 to adopt a resolution to pay a
dividend of Baht 250 per share for ordinary shareholders and Baht 4.00 per share for preferred
shareholders, or a total of Baht 133 million, to the shareholders in respect of the 2016 profit. Such
dividend will be paid and recorded after it is approved by the Annual General Meeting of the

Company’s shareholders.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 21
February 2017.
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Our Products

1. Crown Cap

Crown cap is a bottle closure made from pressed steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel) lined with liner
to prevent leakage. Once closed, crown cap preserves the original content quality with an excellent sealing
performance. Crown cap is used for carbonated drinks, beer, soda, soy milk and fruit juices.

2. Pilfer - Proof (PP Cap)

PP cap is a screw cap developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing aluminum sheet into
cylindrical shape, perforated (between the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust - proof, easy to open, can be
recapped if the content is not wholly consumed. PP cap is suitable for carbonated drinks, health drinks, energy
drinks, electrolyte, spirit and medicine.

3. Maxi Crown

Maxi crown is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated tin free steel shell. The score is developed
for easy opening by simply pulling the attached ring. This closure gives a perfect anti - pilferage feature. Maxi
crown is suitable for non refrigerated products.

4. Maxi Cap

Maxi cap is a bottle closure made from coated aluminum sheet pressed into one piece, scored and lined.
Apart from the same general characteristic as Maxi crown, Maxi cap is made of aluminum, rust-proof and more
suitable for products kept in high humidity. Maxi cap is used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit juices.

5. Maxi - P

Maxi - P is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated aluminum shell. The general characteristic
is as same as Maxi Cap except the pulling ring is made of plastic. Maxi-P is used for drinking water, beer, spirit and
fruit juices.

6. Plastic Cap

Plastic cap is a screw cap made from plastic resin which is melted and molded into shape. The inside is
designed either with or without liner material to prevent leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for easy
opening, it can recap after used. Now plastic cap is used in many products upon customer’s requirement such as
carbonated drinks, non - carbonated drinks, products which using high temperature filling process and products
which using aseptic filling process.

7. Composite Cap

Composite cap is made from plastic resin which is melted and injected into shape. On the top of cap is
combined with tin free steel sheet that pressed into shape and having liner to prevent leakage. The cap has
knurls around the side for easy opening. A tamper evidence band is provided for anti - pilferage purpose.

8. Hand - Crowner
Hand - Crowner is specially designed to crimp crown caps tightly, It is efficient in protecting the product inside.
The hand crowner is easy to use and hand - carry.

9. Maxi Crimping Machine
A single - head, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine can be used to crimp all Maxi series. It is designed with high
technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.

For sales please contact: Tel.(662) 533-0450-9
Domestic sales ext.550 or Export sales ext.557, Fax.(662) 974-1115
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